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GI BILL PROGRAM

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 1987

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING

AND EMPLOYMENT,
COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS,

Washington, D.C.
The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 1 p.m., in room 334,

Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Wayne Dowdy (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Montgomery, Solomon, Dowdy, Smith of
New Jersey, Wylie, Jontz, and Patterson.

Also present: Representatives Schroeder, Bateman, and Pickett.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. WAYNE DOWDY

Mr. DOWDY. We will call the committee to order.
I want to welcome you all to the first hearing of the Subcommit-

tee on Education, Training and Employment in the 100th Congress.
We are meeting today to review, H.R. 1085, a bill authored by the
chairman of the full committee, Sonny Montgomery, and cospon-
sored by 174 Members of the House. MIS bill would make perma-
nent the educational assistance program for members of the All-
Volunteer Force under chapter 30 of Title 38 and the program of
educational assistance for members of the Selected Reserve under
chapter 106 of Title 10. Together, these programs are generally
known as the New GI Bill.

During the past -several years, two issues of particular concern
have been widely debated m this country. The first is the impor-
tance and availability of high quality education for our Nation's
citizens. The second is achieving and maintaining a strong national
defense. With the enactment of the New GI Bill in October 1984,
the Congress took an important step toward addressing both issues.
the New GI Bill trovides an excellent opportunity for post-second-
ary education and training to thousands of young people who, but
for this program, might not be able to further their education. At
the same time, the New GI Bill provides a cost-effective means to
strengthen our national defense by recruiting high quality young
men and women.

Last week I visited service training bases with Chairman Mont-
gomery and many of the individuals who will be testifying before
the subcommittee later today. I was impressed by the enthusiasm
expressed for the New GI Bill by those in positions of command. I
was even more impressed, however, by the interest in the program
shown by the young recruits. By their questions and comments,

(1)



2

these young people demonstrated a deep appreciation for the im-
pedance of education in their lives and a definite ability to know a
good deal when they see it. At Fort Knox, the statement was made,
"If you give a recruit a dollar today, it will be gone tomorrow. If
you give a recruit an education, it will be with that recruit the rest
of his life." The young people we met' Understand the truth and
wisdom in that statement and are grateful that in exchange for
honorable service they will be provided the means to pursue fur-
ther education and increase their skills.

Our newest° service members are bright, ambitious and eager to
serve their country. They are also entering the military to get an
education, and/they know the New GI Bill is one of the most effec-
tive programs available to them.

They knoW' that if they choose to leave the service after comple-
tion of their enlistment, the New GI Bill will assist them in their
readjustment to civilian life. They also 'Imow that if they choose to
stay in the military, they can use their education benefits while
they are on active duty. The men and women we met and talked
with last week are the future leaders of our Nationmilitary lead-
ers, community leaders and national leadersand I can assure you
our future is in good handii.

In response- to the President's State of the Union Message last
month, the Speaker of the House, Jim Wright, stressed that in the
100th Congress education would be in its rightful place at the pin-
nacle of our national priorities. He pointed out that the best finan-
cial investment this country ever made was the GI bill established
at the end' of World War II. We on this committee agree with the
Speaker and knew that the New GI Bill will provide the same divi-
dends as did ;" predecessorsdividends to the service members, to
the Armed For, ;a and to the Nation.

There is broad, bipartisan support for continuation of the New
GI Bill in both the House and Senate. The Senate ,Veterans' Affairs
Committee held hearings on this issue earlier this month, and Sen-
ator Cranston and Senator Murkowski have long been staunch ad-
vocates of the New GI Bill. The time for testing is ever. The time
has come to make the New GI Bill a permanent program.

Before we proceed to our first witness, I want to give the ranking
minority member of this subcommittee, Chris Smith of New Jersey,
an opportunity to make a statement. Chris, I look forward to work-
ing closely with you during the 100th Congress.

62
[The prepared statement of Congressman Dowdy appears on p.
.]

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH

Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
First of all, I want to thank you for convening this hearing to

look at and discuss H.R. 1085, to make the New GI Bill program
permanent. The distinguished chairman of our full committee is
the father of the New GI Bill, which is now a test program. I think
it is significant that every member of the House Veterans' Affairs
Committee has cosponsored H.R. 1085. I thank our chairman for
his tenacious work on behalf of this vital piece of legislation.

to
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Mr. Chairman, we know from talking with commanders and new
recruits that the New GI Bill test program has been a tremendous
success. Rarely have I seen a level of enthusiasm and consensus for
any government program to match that which exists for the New
GI Bill.

Thanks in large part to it, the military services have the highest
quality recruits ever to join up. And everybody comes out a winner:
the recruit, the Department of Defense and our Nation as-a whole.

Improvemants have been suggested for the New GI Bill and pos-
sible ways to improve the program are being considered by this
committee. However, I agree with Mr. Montgomery that we ought
to keep first things first and elevate this program from a test
status to a permanent status. Then we can consider how to make a
great program even better. It certainly is obvious how I feel about
the New' GI Bill. I have expressed this time and time again in this
committee, as well as the floor of the House. I am going to vote to
make it permanent.

Mr. Chairman, we have many witnesses who are going to testify
about the program this afternoon. While there is little doubt about
how our subcommittee markup will go, it is important for us to
demonstrate the strength and depth of the support for the New GI
Bill. DOD and VA officials, representatives of respected military
associations and veterans' groups will share their valuable experi-
ence and insights with us, and I look forward to learning what they
will have to say on this important subject.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Congressman Smith appears on p.

79.]
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you very much, Mr. Smith. We are pleased to

have with us also the Ranking Member of the full Veterans' Af-
fairs Committee of the House. It is my pleasure to call on my col-
league, Jerry Solomon from New York. Mr. Solomon.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. GERALD B.H. SOLOMON

Mr. SOLOMON. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I am going to be very brief because we have a long line up here

today. But I really want to thank you and, of course, Sonny Mont-
gomery, whb is going to make a statement here in a minute, for
organizing the oversight hearings we had at the four military bases
this past week. It certainly was extremely enlightening to me and I
know all members of the committee.

I can recall back in 1979 having visited Paris Island, S.C., the
stark differonce today in the military recruitment bases. The kind
of recruits that we are getting, is just really something to see. I, for
one, believe that the'peacetime GI bill has a lot to do with the kind
of recruits we are getting today. Not only is the peacetime GI bill a
good recruitment tool and a. good retention tool as well, but it is
still a readjustment program for those young men and women who
serve in our military. They always lag behind their peers who have
gone on to college or work and have moved up the promotion
ladder. They never quite catch up. That is what the peacetime GI
bill is all about.
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When they do live up to their obligations as U.S. citizens and
serve their country, they ought to have that opportunity to catch
up, and certainly I think the peacetime GI bill is a big step in that
direction.

I just want to thank all of you and thank all of those who trav-
eled with us from the veterans' organizations as well as the mili-
tary associations because your input and the input you will give us
today is going to help us make this cetime GI bill Sonny Mont-
gomery

going
I think some. y said on the trip, to make

it permanent like it should be. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair-
man. Let's.get on with it.

Mr. DOWDY. Thank you, Mr. Solomon.
We will call on our colleague, Jim Jontz, from Indiana who was

also with us last week on our field hearings. Jim.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. JIM JONTZ
Mr. Jorrrz. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Let me say how pleased I am to be at this hearing this afternoon

and to be a cosponsor of this legislation, and how appreciative I
was of the opportunity to participate in the trip last week and how
helpful that was. We do have a long list of witnesses this after-
noon.

Our distinguished Veterans' Committee chairman, Mr. Montgom-
ery, was so bashful during the trip in expressing his true feelings
about this GI bill that I ant looking forward to hearing his testimo-
ny this afternoon. I think it will be very enlightening.

Thank you very much.
Mr. DOWDY. We are very pleased to have our colleague from

South Carolina, Liz Patterson.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. ELIZABETH J. PATTERSON
Mrs. PArrEasorz. Excuse me for being late. Let me just sort of

second what my colleague to my left has just said. It is a real
honor for me to be here and to be serving with our distinguished
chairman, Mr. Montgomery, and I hope today that I can learn
more so that I can beas I am a cosponsor of this legislationbut
be a strong advocate with others who are not sponsors so we can
get this legislation passed and see it on the books in the very near
future. I look forward to your testimony.

Mr. DOWDY. All right. We want to thank all of you for being
present. It is a great honor for me to have the opportunity to intro-
duce our lead-off witness. When I was first elected to the House of
Representatives, I was given the opportunity to meet for the first
time then-retired former Senator, President Pro Tem, Jim Eastland
from Mississippi. I was ushered into Mr. Eastland's office and at
some point in our conversation he said he wanted to give me some
advice. He said he wanted me to remember to do two things as a
young Congressman. He said "You always remember to be quiet
and always vote with your chairman."

I hope Sonny Montgomery will vouch for the fact I have followed
Senator Eastland's advice. Sonny Montgomery is the father and
the chief architect of the New GI Bill, and, Mr. Chairman, we look
forward to your testimony.

4. 0
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STATEMENT OF HON. G.V. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY, A REPRE-
SENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI,
AND CHAIRMAN, FULL COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS

Mr. MONTGOVIZRY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I notice you start-
ed the meeting right on time.

Mr. Chairman, let ma congratulate you on assuming the chair-
manship on the Subcommittee on Education, Training and Employ-
ment. I am delighted you are holding this hearing and that so
many members are present. I want to welcome my good friend who
just came in, Pat Schroeder, who is on the Subcommittee on Per-
sonnel of the House Armed Services Committee. We invited the
members of that subcommittee to attend today and expect that
there might be others who will come in later.

I appreciate having the opportunity to talk about the New GI
Bill and legislation to make it permanent. H.R. 1085 makes no
other changes in the existing program, and 174 of our colleagues
have joined as cosponsors of this bill.

I have just seen the Speaker of the House, and he is very sup-
portive of the New GI Bill. He wants to bring this legislation up as
soon as possible, and he wants to brie / it up as separate legisla-
tion. If he gets the opportunity today, Mr. Chairman, he will come
over and make his own statement. He wants to move H.R. 1085 as
soon as possible.

The future of the New GI Bill is .one of the most critical issues
we must act on in this session. This legislation was jointly referred
to the Armed Services Committee. I hope to get early action by the
Armed Services Committee and save the bill to the floor, as I men-
tioned, by the end of March. I am optimistic that we can complete
action on H.R. 1085 in record time.

Mr. Chairman, you and several other members of the Education
Subcommittee, along with representatives of military associations
and veterans' organizations, were with me last week on our visit to
service training bases where we had the opportunity to observe
first-hand the enthusiasm for the New GI Bill expressed by baLe
commanders, recruiters, trainers and eapecially the recruits them-
selves. I know you will agree with me that those in the best posi-
tion to evaluate this program gave it an "A" plus. It is succeeding
as a very important readjustment benefit. As secondary benefit is
that it has proven to be a recruiting tool for all the services. It is a
program which is going to greatly benefit the Nation as a whole.

On October 19, 1984, the New GI Bill was signed into law. It was
a day that marked the culmination of more than 4 years of hard
work on both sides of Capitol Hill to further ensure the Nation's
strength and security. Already we can look back on that day as one
of the most important in the history of our country's Armed
Forces.

On January 28, 1981, I first introduced and some of you cospon-
sored, H.R. 1400, a bill to establish the New GI Bill. Prior to that
date, we had worked for over 8 months with the military service
departments to lay the ground work for this legislative proposal. It
has proven to be time well spent. the New GI Bill is fulfilling the
purposes set out by Congress. First and foremost, it will assist in
the readjustment of members of the Armed Forces to civilian life

0 l 1
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after their separation from military service. It is providing educa-
tion assistance for tens of thousands of young men and women ho
otherwise might not be able to go to college or pursue other pe.ti-
secondary training /education.

A first century philosopher observed only the educated are free.
This statement is still true as we move into the 21st Century, and
it is our responsibility to enable those who protect our freedom to
also pursue their personal freedom and self-improvement through
education.

In addition to facilitating readjustment, the New GI Bill is de-
signed to attract high quality personnel to the Active and Reserve
components of the Armed Forces. Without the New GI Bill, the
services would be forced to compete with an expanding job market
and educational institutions in order to attract high quality young
people and larger percentages from a shrinking pool of eligible re-
amts. However, since the implementation of the New GI Bit?, and
because of it, the Congress and the military have forged a new,
stronger alliance with our community colleges, universities and
training institutions to ensure that those individuals who desire
further education may do so and may do so with the knowledge
tha' they earned it in service to their country.

Several of our witnesses who will testify later this afternoon ac-
companied us when we visited basic training bases last week. I
know they gained a deeper insight into the importance of the New
GI Bill. It is very important that we get out of Washington and
into the field so that we can talk with elm) who really know what
is important to recruits and the services. Brigadier General Paul
Funk, of the Armored School at Fort Knox told us he had com-
manded troops in the 1960s, the 1970s and in the 1980s. H said
that young people coming into the Army today are the best ever.
According to General Funk, the New GI Bill has made the army a
great place to soldier.

The Adjutant General of Kentucky, General Billy Wellman, told
us, "the New GT Bill is the most attractive and important benefit
we have to offer. I don't know of any other program more impor-
tant to the Military, Guard, Reserve and Active Forces, than the
New GI Bill."

Mr. Chairman, as far as I am concerned, statements like these
and others we heard last week make the case for establishing the
New GI Bill and make a strong case to make it a pefmanent pro-

. This is a bipartisan effort with 174 original cosponsors. The
Speaker of the House is totally behind it, and I want to thank y lu
for giving me this opportunity to be the lead-off witness and for
having this hearing this afternoon. Thank you very much.

71
[The prepared staLment of Chairman Montgomery appears on p.

Mr. DOWDY. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for your lead-
ership on this issue.

Mr. Smith.
Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH. Thank you.
The distinguished chairman, Sonny Montgomery, is fond of

saying this is the only committee in Congress that applauds their
witnesses. I would like to note there is no chairman in the House
more fair, courteous, or helpful to members of the committee than

12-
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this distinguished chairman, Sonny Montgomery. No chairman in
the House is more committed to the subject matter under its juris-
diction than this distinguished' chairman. I say that very sincerely.
I have been on this committee since first being elected in 1980, and
it has been an honor to serve with you, Sonny.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you very much, Chris.
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. We want to

welcome our colleague from Colorado, Pat Schroeder, who is a
member of the Personnel Subcommittee on Armed Services. Pat, do
you have any comments?

Mrs. SCHROEDER. I want to join in thanking the chairman. We
are working hard to move it out of Armed Services very rapidly
and looking to this committee for leadership, because I think the
main concern has been that it gets out and it gets funded and they
don't play games with it.

I think the gentleman from Mississippi has seen lots of games
played. Everybody wants to be both for it and agai. it, or at least
some people have. So I salute his getting it on the fast track and
everybody helping.

Mr. DOWDY. Chalmers Wylie, a member of the committee.
Mr. WYLIE: Thank you.
I would like to associate myself with the previous remarks. I

would associate myself with the remarks of Chris Smith. Chairman
Montgomery is the fatherI use the word advisedlyof the All
Volunteer GI Bill, and he has certainly made this his number one
priority, and we on this side are going to give him help in getting
this bill out.

Mr. DOWDY. I would also like to welcome our colleague from Vir-
ginia, Herb Bateman, a member of the Armed Services Committee.

Mr. BATEMAN. Delighted to be here. Yon can see how bipartisan
we are.

Mr. DOWDY. We will call our next panel of witnesses represent.
in tho Veterans' Administration. All the witnesses this afternoon
will comply with the 5-minute rule. We will insert your prepared
statements into the record. Our first panel is from the VA. Mr. R.J.
Vogel, Chief Benefits Director. Mr. Vogel, if you would, I would ask
you introduce those who accompany you.

STATEMENTS OF RJ. VOGEL, CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR, VET-
ERANS' ADMINISTRATION, ACCOMPANIED BY GRADY HORTON,
DEPUTY CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR FOR PROGRAM MANAGE-
MENT; DENNIS It WYANT, DIRECTOR, VOCATIONAL REHABILI-
TATION AND EDUCATION; AND JAMES P. KANE, ASSISTANT
GENERAL COUNSEL

STATEMENT OF &J. VOGEL
Mr. VOGEL. Thank you. To my right is James Kane, Assistant

General Counsel of the Veterans' Administration; and to my left,
Dr. Dennis Wyant, Director of the Vocational Rehabilitation and
Education Service of the Department of Veterans' Benefits.

Mr. Chairman, let me say how pleased I am to be here today to
give you our views on malsing the New GI Bill permanent. We at
the VA have a rich history. Smce June 1944, over 18 million veter-
ans and service persons have trained under three GI bills for a

13



8

total cost of some $60 billion. The GI bill has been acclaimed by
many observers as the best investment America ever made. For
over,four decades since the original GI bill, the Veterans' Adminis-
tration, working with the Congress, has responded to the require-
ments of the law while at the same time trying to be flexible in
adapting to emerging,policies of the educational community, veter-
ans needs and governmental priorities.

In October 1984, Public Law 98-525 was enacted bringing into
being the New GI Bill test program. This new law, as amended by
Public Law 99-576, provides a program of educational benefits not
only for servicepersons and veterans but also for reservists.

the New GI'Bill Reserves was the program with the first signifi-
cant number of trainees. To the end of January 1987, close to
46,000 reservists will have trained under this program. We are pro-
jecting that number of trainees will peak in fiscal year 1989

Mr. DOWDY. Excuse me for interrupting, but we are very honored
to have with us at this time the Speaker of the House. As we said
earlier, the Speaker made comments on national television about
the importance of the GI bill. Mr. Speaker, we welcome you, we
thank you for your interest in this legislation. Mr. Vogel, if you
would keep your seat, we will ask Mr. Wright, the Speaker, if he
would, to come forward at this time and make whatever comments
he has.

STATEMENT OF HON. JIM 'WRIGHT, SPEAKER OF THE U.S. HOUSE
OF REPRESENTATIVES

Speaker WRIGHT. That is very gracious. I surely wouldn't want to
interrupt the testimony ,nor to intrude into your committee's hear-
ing. I am here just to be in a supportive role and to encourage you
and to thank you for taking up this legislation.

I think it is one of the important things that faces us. The GI bill
of rights truly was, I believe, the most dramatically sound invest-
ment that we have made in my lifetime. I believe it has paid off in
so many ways that they almost are countless. So I encourage you. I
just wanted to drop by and give each of the members of this com-
mittee my best wishes and my expressions of appreciation for your
expeditious consideration of this bill whichi think is one of the im-
portant things that we can do in this Congress.

[Applause.]
Mr. DOWDY. Again we thank you, Mr. Speaker, very much.
Mr. Vogel, we thank you for allowing us to interrupt your testi-

mony. If you would proceed.
Mr. VOGEL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We are.projecting1he number of trainees will peak in fiscal year

1989 at about 140,000.,Over time we do expect that the larger pro-
gram will be the New GI Bill Active Duty. Close to 180,000 trainees
are expected in fiscal year 1992. The number of trainees in the pro-
gram is low right now because few individuals have yet served long
enough to become eligible for training. In fiscal year 1987, we
expect 800 ,of these trainees. With all this background out of the
way, Mr. Chaiiman, I want to say that the aAministration supports
making the New GI Bill permanent.
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There are two changes to the current operations of the program
that are proposed in the President's 1988 budget. These are, one, to
shift the funding responsibility for the basic benefit from VA to
DOD and, two, to restructure the basic benefit so as to offer pro-
gressively lower benefits for shorter terms of service. The Adminis-
tration strongly urges that any amendatory GI bill legislation
which this subcommittee may be considering include all the
changes to in the New GI Bill proposed in the President's budget.

That concludes mny testimony, Mr. Chairman. I would be glad to
respond to any questions from you or the members of the subcom-
mittee.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Vogel appears on p. 83.]
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you very much, Mr. Vogel, for your state-

ment. We understand that the Department of Defense is going to
recommend a reductior! in the basic benefit. If this were to happen,
what in your opinion would be the effect on the New GI Bill as a
readjustment benefit?

Mr. VoGEL. My personal view is that it would severely impair
the readjustment benefits aspect of the New GI Bill. A low amount
of educational assistance, with the cost of today's education would
be virtually meaningless for a separated veteran.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Smith.
Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. Smrrii. Thank you, Mr. Vogel, for your testi-

mony. I am pleased and delighted the Administration supports
making the GI bill permanent. Although you, noted you would like
to see some changes as we move along, those will be contemplated.

One question: Does the VA have adequate personnel in anticipa-
tion of some of the numbers you have cited to carry forward with
the program, and do you also have sufficient funding?

Mr. VOGEL Mr. Smith, we have had a fall-off in the caseload in
compensation and pension and in the vocational rehabilitation
areas. We think that we can divert the resources otherwise used in
those program areas to the administration of both the Chapter 106
and the Chapter 30 program.

Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. Smrrii. Do you anticipate requesting in fiscal
year 1988 additional funds for the program?

Mr. VOGEL. The funding needs for the program in 1988 are based
on our projections working with the Department of Defense and
the number of accepted

Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH. What is requested will fit the need?
Mr. VOGEL. Yes, sir.
Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH. Thank you. I yield back.
Mr. DOWDY. We will ask Mr. Montgomery, the chairman of the

full committee, if he has any questions of this witness.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. No.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Solomon, the ranking membor of the full com-

mittee.
Mr. SOLOMON. Mr. Chairman, I don't have any questions at the

present time. We do want to thank the Veterans' Administration
for their support of making this peacetime GI bill permanent. I
think we are going to hear some testimony later on, testimony that
I agree with, that there are changes that need to be made. Howev-
er, our chairman, Sonny Montgomery, has said the main thing
right now is to get this program permanent and advertised, and

r
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from there we Swill work to:make what changes we can. I will be
working with, you, and we appreciate your coming before us today.

Mr. DOWDY. Thank you. Jim Jontz?
Mr. JoNTz. No questions.
Mr. DOWDY. Mrs. Patterson?
Mrs-PATTERSON. No questions.
Mr.'DOWDY. Any other member of the panel have any questions

of the ;e witnesses?
Mr. WYLIE. I would like to ask one question.
As I understand it, and I didn't hear it in the testimony, but you

have a little difference of opinion as to how the program should be
funded. Is that right?

Mr. VOGEL. My personal opinion, Mr. Wylie?
Mr. WYmE. Yes, your personal opinion.
Mr. VOGEL. That question has been posed by both the Full Com-

mittee in :the HOuse and Senate. The VA has been in the GI bill
administration business for a long time. We are proud of what we
have done. There was a significant give and take between the Ad-
ministrator and the Executive Office of the President cn the issue
of funding'the New GI Bill.

Consistent with past practice, my personal opinion is that if the
funding and the policy and procedures were in one agency, the Vet-
erans' Administration, we could march on in the future with this
program as we have in the past with previous GI bills.

Mr. WYLIE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you for your testimony. We would ask unani-

mous consent of the members of the subcommittee to keep the
record open for any additional questions that may be asked. Mr.
Vogel, we would ask that you and the other witness today respond
to those written questions.

Mr. VOGEL. Thank you, sir.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. MONTGOMERY. I certainly appreciate, Mr. Vogel, your com-

ments that you feel administrative funding and keeping it under
one agency in the Veterans' Administration is where it belongs. Is
that basically what you said?

Mr. VOGEL. Yes, sir.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. I certainly agree with you. We feel if you get

out and see these young men and women after they get through
with the service, that is what the GI bill is, it is a readjustment
program, and the way it is drawn up now, $10,800 is waiting on
them, and we think the sky is the limit as far as education for
these young people who have an obligation and serve their country.

I want to thank you for statements you made here today.
Mr. WYLIE. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Yes.
Mr. WYLIE. The reason for my question was there has been some

indication that the money ought to go to the Department of De-
fense at the Pentagon and have it transferred back to the VA, as I
understand it.

It seemed kind of foolish upfront to me to have it appropriated to
one-agency and then have it transferred back to the agency that
was going to administer it. That is why I wanted to elicit the com-



11

ment from Mr. Vogel here today. I knew it was along the lines ofYOur thinking;Mr. Chairman.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DOWDY. Thank ,you very much, Mr. Vogel.Mr. DOWDY. Our next witness is from the Department of De-fense. We will ask Hon. Chapman B. Cox, Assistant Secretary ofDefense for Forte Management and PersonnelMr. Cox, as wehave said, we are going to try to adhere to a 5-minute limit on yourstatement Any prepared testimony will be submitted for therecord.
We welcome you.
Mr. Cox. Mr. Chairman, would you like Mr. Shaw to join me atthe table?
Mr. DOWDY. Yes, Mr. Dennis Shaw, Principal Deputy AssistantSecretary of Defense for Reserve Affairs.
We will proceed with the testimony of Mr. Cox and then Mr.Shaw.

STATEMENT OF HON. CHAPMAN B. COX, ASSISTANT SECRETARY
OF DEFENSE FOR FORCE MANAGEMENT AND PERSONNEL,
DEPARTMENT. OF DEFENSE

Mr. Cox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
It is a privilege for me to appear before this committee whichhas done so much over the years for American service men andwomen. The men and women of the Armed Forces are the back-bone of our Nation's defense structure. They are proud and patriot-ic citizens and I know they are grateful to this committee for en-suring their fair treatment.
We in the Department of Defense are also grateful.
Today you have requested that I comment on the Administra-tion's position with respect to the New GI Bill. This program, ad-ministered under your oversight, is a good example of the impor-tant role you play in providing for American military personnel intheir transition back to civilian life.
For over 40 years, veterans have been eligible for Federal educa-tion assistance under a variety of programs. These assistance pro-grams have been authorized for a number of reasons:
One, to provide service members with a compensating benefit foradversities they endure such as low pay, harsh environments, phys-

ical danger and undesirable tasks;
Two, to make service in the Armed Forces more attractive;Three, to provide training and readjustment to civilian life forthose who have served in the Armed Forces; and
Finally, to provide an education for those veterans who mightnot otherwise be able to afford one.
These programs have been of considerable value both to theNation and to its service members.
The Educational Assistance Test Program, which we conductedduring 1981, confirmed that educational benefits, if sufficientlygenerous, can attract high-quality people to the Armed Forces. Aseparate study, conducted by the Congressional Budget Office inMarch 1982, validated the results of the Education Assistance Test

447t



12

Program and also pointed out that enlistments of high school grad-
uates with above-average aptitude test scores increased with gener-
ous education benefits.

We believe the New GI Bill has the potential to be an effective
recruiting incentive. For this reason, we support making this pro-
gram permanent. However, to fit into the overall context of the
DOD recruiting program, we believe that it should be more of a
targeted benefit. For this reason, we are submitting a legislative
proposal that will do three things:

One, restructure the basic benefit to provide a benefit that varies
with the term of enlistment;

Two, continue targeted incentives, known as "kickers"; and
Three, transfer funding of the basic benefit from the VA to DOD.
Placing both policy and fiscal responsibility for the New GI Bill

with the' Department of Defense will 'permit a concentrated ap-
proach to using educational benefits as a recruiting incentive.

We will be able to build on the level of variable basic benefit
with additional targeted incentives that recognize the special re-
cruiting needs of the individual. services. These "kickers" can be
varied as necessary and tied to hard-to-fill skills, test scores or
other criteria.

This concludes my prepared statement. Thank you again for the
opportunity to appear. I will be pleased to respond to your ques-
tions.

Mr. DOWDY. Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Cox appears on p. 89.]
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Shaw, we welcome you.

STATEMENT OF HON. DENNIS SHAW, PRINCIPAL DEPUTY ASSIST-
ANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE FOR RESERVE AFFAIRS,
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Mr. SHAW. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I appreciate the opportunity to speak on behalf of the Reserve

components with respect to the New GI Bill. It is the first time
that members of the Selected Reserve have had an opportunity to
participate in this type of general entitlement program, and we are
grateful for that opportunity.

the New GI Bill is popular with the members of the Selected Re-
serve, and I would Ii1.-e the committee to have an opportunity to see
that graphically.

Represented on these charts are the numbers of participants, in
thousands, by fiscal year quarters since the New GI Bill was en-
acted back in the mid-part of 1985.

It is even better to look at the number of enrollments on a
monthly basis.

I show you this by month because it shows the New GI Bill for
reservists is not a start-stop program. There are no peaks and val-
leyE. in our enrollments. They are just up, and we expect that to
continue.

We see some positive things coming fron the program. Although,
I must say even at this point in time we are not able to quantify
the recruiting and retention value of the GI bill to the degree we
would like. But, we are going to do that.

0
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We requested the Sixth QRMC take a look at the New GI Billwith respect to its impact on recruiting and retention and it costeffectiveness.
What we have found, however, in looking at a 15-month periodimmediately after the enactment of the GI bill and the same sea-sonal 15-month period before enactment of the bill, is that thenumber of 6-year enlistments increased by 2 percent. That soundssmall, but that is 8,300 more people who enlisted for 6 years in the15-month period after the, GI bill than in the 15-month period priorto enactment of the New GI Bill.
With respect to equality, if we look at non-prior service enlistees

who have high school degrees, and compare 1984 with 1986, we findan increase of 5 percent, or 34,500 non-prior service individuals.I think we can make some favorable conclusions and inferencesfrom these increases.
The final point I would like to make, Mr. Chairman, is that inaddition to the GI bill which we believe attracts members to theReserve components, we need targetted incentives as well.Our bonuses for enlistment and re-enlistment attract people tocritical skill areas and those skill areas where large shortagesexist. We need to continue to attract people to those areas.The GI bill brings people in. Our targeted incentives put them inparticular places where they are critically needed. So, with a bal-anced and broad program of recruiting and retention incentives, wewill be able to meet our recruiting objective goals which, as youknow, are increasing each year.
Thank -you.
Mr. DOWDY. Thank, you very much.
[The prepared statement of-Mr. Shaw appears on p. 92.]
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Cox, in your statement, you indicated your opin-ion that educational benefits are not as cost effective as enlistment

bonuses. I took that to be a general theme of your prepared com-ments here today.
Mr. Cox. Sir, I am sorry if I misled you. That was not meant tobe the general theme of my comments. The general theme is that

we believe the New GI Bill does provide recruiting incentive andwe support making it permanent on that basis. We do think it canbe made more cost effective so that point was made in my preparedstatement and that is the reason that we are proposing somechanges to it.
My statement was not intended to mean that we don't think theNew GI Bill is a cost-effective incentive. However, we think it canbe made more cost-effective.
Mr. DOWDY. Well, based on information gathered by a group ofus last week during site visits at Fort Knox and Lackland AirForce Base and other installations, we asked a large number ofyoung men and women what attracted them into the armed serv-ices. Practically without exception those young men and women in-dicated that' the educational incentives in the GI bill, and not thebonus program, attracted them into the service.
Also information supplied to us by the Army shows that higherquality recruits who are attracted by educational -programs such asby the GI bill are le s expensive to train than other recruits.

Si9
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We have also been told that discipline is substantially reduced'
with.higher quality recruits who are attracted to the service not by
bonuses we were told last week by the young men and women, but
rather by the, educational incentives of the GI bill.

Did the CBO study to which you referred in your testimony take
all of this into account when determining the relative cost effec-
tiveness of educational assistance benefits.

Mr. Cox. Yes, sir. We think it took all those things into account.
I don't think the incentive to enlist is based on just one factor. Sev-
eral factors play in it. We know that educational benefits, bonuses,
compensation, advertising, and recruiter resources are all part of a
complex mix that has contributed to our good success in the re-
cruiting area over the last 6 years.

The CBO did take those things into account and we do not deny
that the New GI Bill is a recruiting tool. We agree with that. We
don't object to that at all.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Smith.
Mr. SMITH OF NEW JERSEY. Thank you.
You mentioned, Mr. Shaw, that it is difficult to quantify the

effect of recruitment and retention. Some of the facts you present-
ed to this subcommittee a few moments ago were encouraging. You
referred to a study.

Can you tell us what that study is you were referring to?
Mr. SHAW. The Sixth Q'Ai/MC? This is the Quarterly Review of

Military Compensation we do every 4 years. The Sixth QRMC is
dedicated exclusively to looking at Reserve component compensa-
tion, and the area of compensation includes recruiting, retention,
incentives, and those kinds of things.

The Sixth QRMC is looking at all aspects of Reserve component
compensation, and we wanted to include the New GI Bill in that
review. We asked the review staff to take a look at the New GI Bill
quantitatively and qualitatively. When they issue their report later
this year, we .plan to have some quantification of the data that is
better than what I can give you today.

Mr.' SMITH OF NEW JERSEY. Thank you.
Mr. Cox, one of the conclusions in the legislative proposal that

you indicated will be sent up to the Hill will be iegislation transfer-
ring the funding from the VA to DOD, which I think will meet
with some controversy here in the Veterans' Affairs Committee,
but perhaps you can for the enlightenment of all of us, explain the
rationale behind that.

Mr. Cox. I will explain my understanding of the current situa-
tion and then the rationale for the Administration's proposal . As I
understand it, the funding now is split. Some of the funding is pro-
vided by the Department of Defense and some of it by the VA. Ba-
sically, the split comes between the basic benefit and the targeted
incentives.

The basic benefit is funded by the VA and the targeted incen-
tive, or kickers as we call them, are funded by DOD. Also funded
by DOD are the Reserve benefits because we had a difficult time
determining execatly how much of the Reserve benefit was recruit,
ing and incentive-oriented as opposed to being societal in nature.

Thus, DOD accepted the funding of all of the Reserve benefits.
That is the current method. Our legislative proposal is to move the

i. a 20
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funding of the basic benefit from in the VA to DOD. The rationaleis that if we are going to justify the New GI Bill on a recruiting
incentive basis, then DOD should be the one to hind and manageit. It, is the Administration's position that the Gt bill should be jus-tified on that basis, and it should not be justified on the basis ofsocietal benefit or of investment in the future.

Mr. SMITH OF NEw JERSEY. One final question, Mr. Chairman. Do
ou favor transferability and reftmdability within the GI bill?

Transferabilittyy of the, benefit to a spouse or to a child or dependent
and refundability if the benefit is not utilized?

Mr. Cox. I favor refundability, but not transferability, sir.
Mr. Sunk. Is that the view of the administration?
Mr. Cok. I can't speak for the administration on that. I wouldhave to check.
Mr. Sham OF NEw JERSEY. I would appreciate for the record, Mr.

Chairman, if that could be provided.
[The DOD subsequently submitted the following information:]
There is little doubt that transferability, the right to transfer educational benefits

earned under the New GI Bill from the member to the member's spouse or depend-ents, would be a popular additional feature to the program. However, overall Serv-ice member retention remains very good in both the enlisted and officer componentsat this time. Although there are eetention problems in selected skills or specialties,it is unlikely that transferability could serve as an effective substitute for the toolswe now use to retain qualified people.
A key career decision point is the first reenlistment for enlisted members, and theend of the minimum period of required service for certain officer communities, suchas aviators. At this point, the education of dependent children, which may be themost highly valued use of transferability, is generally at least 10 to 15 years away.Hence, the value of transferability as a major retention incentive might well beheavily discounted at thisley career decision point. Targeted incentives, such as Se-lective Reenlistment, Bonuses for Enlisted Skills, Aviation Career Incentive Pay andAviation Officer Continuation Pay for Pilots, are our most effective retention tool.Transferability should be viewed only as an additional and lesser aid to retention.
Transferability could have a greater effect on the retention of those members whohave children at, or near, college age. This population normally has at least 15years of service; ,ith high retention rates due, largely, to our moat important long-term retention incentive, the military retirement system.
As we monitor the New GI Bill, we will evaluate carefully its role in the totalbenefits package and continue to assess the need for a transferability provision. Our

current assessment is. that it is premature to draw unequivocal conclusionsing the need for transferability. As the New GI Bill program matures and we avemore data on participation and utilization, we will again reevaluate the issue oftransferability.
The New GI Bill, unlike the VEAP program, does not contain a provision for arefund of the Service member's contribution. Because Service members believe thisto be a matter of equity, particularly in those cases where eligibility is not obtainedthrough no fault of the individual, lack of a refund provision tends to give the pro-gram a negative image. At the very least, a refund fit the individual separated for a

non-service medical disability should be considered. We will continue to look at arefund provision and how it might be proposed.
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you, Mr. Smith.
Chairman Montgomery.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Cox, when we met with Secretary Taft, you and he werethere talking about permanent legislation on the GI bill. I thoughtit was generally agreed then with you and Secretary Taft that wewould fund the program just like it is and implement it just like itis being presented .today by the bill we have introduced. What hap-pened?
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Mr. Cox. Sir, I think you understand that I cannot speak for the
administration, and we agreed with you we would not object to
that and the Defenie Department does not object 0 that. It is the
administration's position that we cannot justify this program on
the basis of a societal benefit and the administration would like to
have it funded by us.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. But my point is you have no objection in the
Defense Departnient, as I understand it, when we met in your posi-
tion perSonally now, I assume the Secretary is genie way, that
you have no objection the way it is funded now whether the Veter-
ans' Administration picks up for the readjustment and the Defense
Department picks up for the National Guard and Reserve? That is
your personal feeling?

Mr. Cox. Sir,. you heard the testimony of Mr. Vogel. Mine is
somewhat the same. There has been substantial give and take be-
tween the Secretary and the Office of Management and Budget on
this issue, and the Department would not object to having it in the
Veterans' Administration. However, the administration's position
is that it should all be funded by us as a recruiting incentive and
there should be no societal benefit portion.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. I understand and I think that certainly clears
up the record.

Thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Solomon.
Mr. SOLOMON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
First of all, let me commend DOD for, first of di, your successf. I

promotion of the GI bill as a recruitment tool and as a retention
tool. It is obvious from the oversight hearings that we held for 2
days that the programs are successful although they could use
some improvement, as most everything can.

might as well put a plug in for the Marine Corps while I am at
it.

The Marine Corps happens to have the best program of the four
branches of service in explaining this program to the new recruits,
and maybe you might want to look into distributing the program
that the Marine Corps uses to the other branches of service be-
cause I think all of us were very impressed with that.

Mr. Cox. As you know, I am a Marine myself. I think we could
all take a lesson from the Army. They got 75 percent participation.

Mr. SOLOMON. That is right.
Secondly, let me just say we don't want to play down the bonus

incentives that are out there. But it was ob 'bolls from talking to
the recruits in all branches of service that the GI bill was a strong
reason of why they enlisted.

Again we have to go back to the recruitment, the retention and
the readjustment program that the GI bill is and you need those
bonuses as well, because you take those away and it makes the GI
bill that much less attractive, and we all know in today's Army or
Marine Corps, Army, Air Force, there is no way those people can
keep up with their peers in the private sector.

Those bonuses are just that extra incentive that helps make up
that difference.

E%2



simultaneously with the tour of duty, and the GI bill is primarily

directions to fund the GI bill through the Defense Department. I

military today, which are primarily designed for ongoing education

don't think it belongs there.
You know, you do have your tuition assistance programs in the

I do want to take exception with DOD and the administration's
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for education in addition to once they get out of the service, al-
though it can be used at the same time, and I think we have to
kilep in mindthe Defense Departmenthudget is always going to be
squeezed from time to time. In the Veterans' budget, although it issubject to squeezes as well, I think there this committee can betterlook out for the veteran and for these benefits and I think that wewant to keep it there.

have. to tell you to go back to Mr. Weinberger and to the ad-
ministration and to OMB and anybody else, and say that it is the
overwhelming feeling of this Congress we want to keep this pro-
gram in the VA and we would appreciate their support.

So take back that message.
I don't have any questions at this time.
Thank you.
Mr. Cox. Thank you, sir.
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you, Mr. Solomon.
Mr. Jontz.
Mr. Jorrrz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Cox, when we heard the recruits on our trip last week, it

was clear that many of them saw the GI bill as a good deal; getting$8 or $9 beck for every $1 they invest. There also seemed to be
some recognition on the part of these young men and women that'
$300 a month doesn't go as far toward meeting the expenses of col-
lege as it used to.

When they think about the circumstances they are going to be inwhen they leave the service and obligations they might have, f,i1:,ydo give that amount of benefits some consideration when theydecide whether it is really worth the investment they have tomake.
So let me ask"you this: When you speak of restructuring the

basic benefits to provide benefits that var.' in terms of enlistment,
are you talking about cutting benefits or increasing henefits? Could
you be more specific on your proposal?

Mr. Cox. Without getting into the details of the proposal, the
basic concept is to stretch out the amendment of the benefit overterms of enlistment so that if you enlisted for longer than just 2
years, you would get a larger basic benefit than if you come in forjust 2 years.

I think the way it has graduated under the proposal, the total
$10,800 benefit would be there for the 6-year enlistment, somewhat
less for 4 years and somewhatless for 2 years.

But then again, we are talking about a concept that justifies this
program on the basis of recruiting incentives and, therefore, we areincreasing the amount of the benefit for increased service.

Mr. Jortrz. Mr. Cox, but don'tyou think that if you cut the levelof benefits for the short-term recruit aifraction of what it is forthe recruit in for a longer period of tithe, you might get to the

3
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point where the deal would not be attractive and it wouldn't be a
recruiting incentive because

Mr. Cox. No. Our information and our analysis shows we would
get more recruits who stayed in longer and that should be good for
them and good for the country.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Wylie.
Mr. WYLIE. Thank you.
It seems my question of Mr. Vogel a little earlier was a good one.

What concerns some of us is the fact that this committee exercises
jurisdiction over the Veterans' Administration, and we don't, I
don't think, have as much on the platter as maybe the Armed
Services Committee has vis-a-vis the Department of Defense.

But do you have any indication as to how Secretary Weinberger
might feel about proposals to transfer this from the VA to DOD?

Mr. Cox. This is the Administratioa's position and the Secretary
supports it.

Mr. WYLIE. Okay. I think the proposal came from OMB original-
ly, if my memory serves me correctly. So the Secretary, I suppose,
would be in a position of supporting it, all along.

Mr. Cox. Absolutely. I didn't mean by my answer to Chairman
Montgomery that that was not the Secretary's position. I said we
would not object. I said we would not support it going to the VA.

Mr. WYLIE. Okay.
Now, the Reservists are already funded out of DOD, as you point-

ed out, so there is a little difference there.
Mr. Cox. Plus, DOD also funds all the kicker benefits. All the re-

cruiting incentive benefits are currently funded by DOD.
Mr. WYzar. Is there any reason why the two should be different?
Mr. SHAW. In order for a member of the Reserve components to

use the GI bill, he has to be actively participating in the Selective
Reserve. The moment the member separates from the Selected Re-
serve, he becomes a non-participant. He loses all eligibility for par-
ticipation under the GI bill, is unlike the members of the active
duty force.

Mr. WYLIE. So they are different in that respect, but the point I
am making is does there need to be a difference in administration
of the two benefits, benefits for the Reservist and the active duty
personnel?

Mr. Cox. Well, sir, we assume there will be some funding by
DOD even if you just make the current program permanent, and
there is some wisdom involved in setting it up that way in the first
place.

The recruiting incentive part of the program would be funded by
us.

Mr. WYLIE. The incentive part of the program would remain the
same. You are assuming that would be the case?

Mr. Cox. Yes.
Mr. WYLIE. Thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Bateman.
Mr. BATEMAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, as I am the ranking member of the Subcommittee

on Military Personnel and Compensation of the Armed Services
Committee, we will necessarily have to plow this further on in an-
other field on another day. I am going to withhold any questions
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today, but express appreciation for being asked to be here todayand my thanks to the witnesses.
Mr. DOWDY. I want to yield to the chairman of the full commit-tee, Mr. Montgomery.
Mr. Mow Gomm. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Secretary, there have been some rumors floating around thatDOD might propose,legislation about actually changing the formu-la on benefits that we now use.
Do you have before you what the benefits for 3 years of servicemight be? Do you have that for the record right now for the 3

years the individual puts up $1,200 and the basic benefit is current-ly $9,600, which comes out, $10,800 over a 3-year enlistmentdo
you have what you proposed?

Mr. Cox. I am sorry. I am fumbling for it. I do have a summaryof it here.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. I have got it.
Mr. Cox. I have a summary for the record. A 2-year enlist-ment
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Give me 3 years.
Mr. Cox. In all of these, the member would continue to put upthe $1,200, which iE the same as the current situation. The match-ing portion for a c-year enlistment under our proposal would be$1,200; for 3 years, $3,600; for 4 years, $6,000; for 5 years, $7,800;and and for 6 years, $9,600.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Under 3 years, that would be a reductionalmost in half.
Mr. Cox. About half for the 3 years; yes, sir.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. But the individual contribution would stillstay at
Mr. Cox. Would stay the same, yes.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. You know yourself that you can't make it likethat. That is too low. Wouldn't you agree to that?
Mr. Cox. I don't think I can agree to that, sir. You have pushedme as far as you can, sir.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. I forgot you are a Marine.
We have the military departments following you. We will putthem on the line on that.
Mr. DOWDY. Any other questions of of these witnesses?Mrs. Patterson.
Ms. PATrERsoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Just sort of following up on that, I am trying to catch on, this isall new to me, but as a parent getting ready to look at colleges, areyou saying that now if someone serves 3 years, they would get$10,000 to go on to school, but under the proposal from your officeit would be 6 years and still get $10,000?
Mr. Cox. Right.
Ms. PATTERSON. I don't see that is much of an incentive with thecost of colleges now. I am having difficulty finding a college onecould go to for less than $10,000. It would seem to me 3 years forthat amount of money is about the incentive we can go for. I amjust wondering if my math was exactly right.
Mr. Cox. I think your math is right.
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Mr. DOWDY. I thank both of your for your testimony. We are
going to leave the record open. Written questions are to be submit-
ted, and we would appreciate your responsz to those.

Mr. DOWDY. Our next panel of witnesses is a panel of military
personnel chiefs. We would welcome these wi.tnesses: Gen. Robert
M. Elton, Deputy Chief of Staff for Personnel, U.S. Army; Vice
Adm. Dudley L. Carlson, Deputy Chief of Naval Operations, U.S.
Navy, Lt. Gen. Thomas J. Hickey, Deputy Chief of Staff for Person-
nel, U.S. Air Force; Lt Gen. Ernest C. Cheatham, Jr., Deputy Chief
of Staff for Manpower, U.S. Marine Corps; Rear Adm. Henry H.
Bell, Chief of Personnel, U.S. Coast Guard; Brig. Gen. Richard
Dean, Acting Deputy Director of Army National Guard; and Brig.
Gen. John McMerty, Deputy Director of Air National Guard.

We welcome each of you.

STATEMENTS OF LT. GEN. ROBERT M. ELTON, DEPUTY CHIEF OF
STAFF FOR PERSONNEL, U.S. ARMY; VICE ADM. DUDLEY L.
CARLSON, DEPUTY CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS, U.S. NAVY;

LT. GEN. THOMAS J. HICKEY, DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFF FOR
PERSONNEL, U.S; AIR FORCE; LT. GEN. ERNEST C. CHEATHAM,

JR., DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFF FOR MANPOWER, U.S. MARINE
CORPS; REAR ADM. HENRY H. BELL, CHIEF OF PERSONNEL,
U.S. COAST GUARD; BRIG. GEN. RICHARD DEAN, DEPUTY DI-
RECTOR OF ARMY NATIONAL GUARD; AND BRIG. GEN. JOHN
McMERTY, DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF AIR NATIONAL GUARD

Mr. MorrrommaY. May I ask unanimous consent the figures I
have here be put in the record. Secretary Cox confirms that to
these amounts are close to those that will be recommended.

I would like to point out, maybe our military panel will comment
on it, that actually they are not recommending a reduction in the
National Guard and Reserve benefits. It would be much better for
a reservist to go one weekend a month and you would get about the
same educational benefits as he would under this proposed cutback
for the activities by 0M3. So that is not workable at all.

Mr. DOWDY. Without objection, those figures are made a part of
the record of the proceeding.

Mr. DOWDY. I want to welcome each of you here today. For the
benefit of the other Members, I want to explain I did not request
written statements from this panel because we want to know their
personal views regarding the New GI Bill, we felt we could do this
most effectively with a dialog with this distinguished panel. So in
the order in which I introduced you, beginning with General Elton,
if you would, in complying with that statement, tell us your opin-
ion of the proposals relative to the New GI Bill.

General ELTON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to be sure I
understand that question.

You want us to address specifically the GI bill that is currently
in effect?

Mr. DOWDY. Let me do it this way. We asked you not to prepare
written statements. If any of you want to voluntarily say anything
at this time, we will give you the opportunity at this time and then
we will give the opportunity to the members of the panel to ad-
dress questions to you.

a 6
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General Eurox. I am ready.
Admiral CARLSON. I am ready for any questions you may have.
My personal opinion always coincides with the uniform I wear. Ifind it a great risk as iinilitary officer to walk down the plank by

offering my personal opinion on the. GI bill as opposed to one total-
ly endorsed and.supported by the Navy.

Genefal Thom. Sirs I have no prepared remarks. It is my privi-lege to be here and appear on behalf of the Air Force in support of
H.R. 1085.

General-6,- ins. I have no prepared remarks, sir.
Admiral' Bits.L. I have none either, sir.
Mr. Downy. 411,right.
Let me ask you this. In your opinion and from your background

and experience, does an educational assistance incentive attract adifferent kind of recruit from that who may be attracted by bo-
nuses? Would any of you care to give us your opinion on that?

STATEMENT OF LT. GEN. ROBERT W; ELTON
General ELTON. I will vohinteer for that. Since we have perhaps

the toughest recruiting mission of the Services, we tried very hardto dig into the market and determine what are the incentives that
would cause a young man or woman to 'come into the Army, specif-
ically the Arniy. We found we draw the pool of young Americans-
from two major streams, one that is headed for the employment
part of the sector, and the other that is headed, for college, and
they come for different reasons.

Some of them do blend. But those that are coming tothat aremotivated' by the defiire for additional educationtell us handsdown they come for the GI bill and any additional educational
kickers that the Army might have. Those that are coming from the
employment sector and desire to learn a skill or to increase their
own ability la- that Particular regard tell us that they come for,some of them come for the GI bill and some come for the enlist-
ment bonus. So it is a program that is split in that regard and both
are absolutely necessary.

Mr. DOWDY. My question was:, Do you find those who are attract-ed by the educational assistance incentives are a different type ofrecruit from those who are attracted by thS bonus incentives? Have
you observed any difference between the two classes, two types?

General ELTON. I am not sure that that is the accurate portrayal
of those individuals. If an individual scores on the aptitude test in
the upper category, they are in the upper category. If they are ahigh school graduate, we know those two things in combination
make for you the very best kind of soldier.

Now, whether they are motivated for college or employment isnot necessarily as important as whether they have those first two
qualifications.

NoW, the great majority of the upper mental category, highschool graduates are motivated by education. So when we get amuch greater` percentage of individuals headed for college or whowant to go to college and finish their education, they fill those two
prerequisites. Therefore, I would say the greatest percentage of ourbest soldiers are headed-to college.
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Mr. DOWDY. The other members of the panel, if you would ad-
dress that.

STATEMENT OF VICE ADM. DUDLEY L. CARLSON

Admiral CARLSON. I would agree it is difficult to assess an indi-
vidual as this is a college-bound youth and this person is interested
in a bonus. These programs make up a part of the total opportuni-
ty package we present to the recruit. We find many recruits are
attracted to the GI bill because it is attractive to their parents. The
young person may not be interested in the GI bill at that moment.
He may be more interested in.the bonus. But, over time, he sees the
GI bill as an opportunity. It is part' of our total-recruiting incentive
package that we offer to the youngster.

There may be many who join who. aren't interested in the GI bill
at all, who turn outto be most interested in it after two or 3 years
in the military. Some are interested,in FAIR training but they are
not thinking about the GI bill at all. They are thinking about those
skills we -.7vould impart to them in training that is an integral part
of the Navy or any of the other SerVices.

I think it is, very difficUlt to separate which incentive does the
most good. Some join because they want to get away from home,
others want a job. The GI bill is a very, very important part of it.
How important? That is difficult to say. That depends on each indi-
vidual.

STATEMENT OF LT. GEN. THOMAS J. HICKEY

General HICKEY. Could I also join in that? We have the same dif-
ficulty measuring the numbers. But the interest is Very strong. In
the Air Force the GI bill tends to attract those persons interested
in education. About 60 percent of our new recruits we survey ongo-
ing, indicate education is one of the primary factors they have
joined. When we look at those who are participating in the GI bill
program, we find that the vast majority of those are in the higher
mental category. So we think in the general stream of things that
the GI bill brings a higher mental category and to that kind of an
attribute, a better kind of recruit.

On the other hand, the selective bonuses that we use for recruit-
ing bonuses are targeted to. specific kinds of hard-to-fill skills, so
they are used to a somewhat different purpose.

STATEMENT OF LT. GEN. ERNEST C. CHEATHAM, JR.

General CHEATHAM. I would have to agree with my contemporar-
ies. We have found in the Marine Corps that those who are inter-
ested in the GI bill are normally in the higher mental group cate-
gories.

Mr. DOWDY. Are normally what?
General CHEATHAM. Normally in the higher mental group cate-

gories, mental gi oup 1, 2.

STATEMENT OF REAR ADM. HENRY H. BELL

Admiral BELL I would have to concur with that from the Coast
Guard's point of view.

Mr. DOWDY. What about the Reserve components?
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STATEMENT OF.BRIG. GEN. RICHARD. DEAN

General DEAN. At the present, time 43 percent of the Reserve
component usage is. in the Army Guard. We have about 19,737
people who are currently enrolled in the prOgrani. We found it is
an especially valuable- recruiting tool, when added to the bonus
program it gives us a package which allows us to bring in the indi-
viduals we need to meet the Army's reqUirements for a total force.
We have,found that aS a-reiultif this our mental categories 1 to 3
and our high school degree graduates are up, all indicators are that
it has been goOdlor stu3 since its inception.

STATEMENT OF BRIG. GEN. JOHN McMERTY

General McMgwrY. We in the Air National Guard believe it is a
good .program. It is helping us attract better quality people into our
program and keep better quality people in our program. We appre-
ciate your efforts to keep it going.

Mr. DOWDY. We do have other written questions which I will
submit to you. We appreciate your response.

Mr. Smith.
Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH. Secretary Cox noted the Army has
.e highest participation rate. It is.my understanding some 75 per-

cent, Navy 43 percent, Air Force 41 percent, the Marine Corps at
61 percent. I wonder if you would be good enough to comment on
why there is this real discrepancy between the various Services in
terms of participation rates.

General HICREY. Since the-Air Force statistics are the lowest you
quoted, it is appropriate I address that first.

Let me start up by saying while our recruits are very much edu-
cation interested, we have had'a history of non-participation in the
Veterans' Education Assistance Program, for insLance, we only had
a 6 percent participation rate by recruits when it was in operation.
the New GI Bill shows its strength and effectiveness in that we
have a 7-fold increase in that. You are accurate in that we have
the lowest participation, rate, and perhaps some of that is our own
fault in that we are doing so much better than we did under the
other bill, and we are so pleased that we are meeting our qualita-
tive levels, we haven't concentrated on increasing participation to
the extent .we should. -

I would tell you that we have an ongoing program within our re-
crafting force to increase the emphasis on the utilization of the GI
bill, and we are going to streamline and improve the information
process and the kinds of information and media that we are using
at their initial recruitment point at Lackland Air Force Base -,vhen
they come on active duty.

We have a multi-phase system as you know starting with the ini-
tial recruiter and then at their processing station, and then two
different sessions on their second day when they come on active
duty to give them all the information we can. We think we can do
a better job,in advertising and pointing out its merits.

Thank you.
Admiral CARLSON. We in the Navy have seen a remarkable in-

crease in GI bill participation. We are at 58 percent for the past 2
months. Overall we were at 44 percent. We have seen our numbers
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improve and we think it is because we are getting the word out
and advertising it better. Now-for those of you who were in Orlan-
do, I am aware that the presentation down there didn't make all of
you raise ,your hands -to join the Navy or sign up for the GI bill,
but that was the keienter,I think. He felt like it was the Chris-
tians and The lions and that he was a Christian. The poor guy was
a little awed by the audierice he waspitching to.

We have, seen a good increase in,partieipation because we think
we- advertise it right. But you should also` remember that $100 a
month from a recruit whose, base pay is only $600 is a lot of money.
After you subtract income tax, it puts income down around $480.
Then you take another hundred out of that, you are at $380. If the
individual has some responsibilities, financial responsibilities, that
is a significant amount of hys pay. On that basis, it may not be at-
tractive to some.

Mr. MorrrGOMERY. May I make a- comment on that.
Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SWIM. Sure.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. We had a gentleman on our trip with us; he

was called in before World War II and received $24 a month and
gave half that to his mother. He got by pretty well. These kids
don't have many expenses. I know the Marines don't even know
where the gate is to. get out of Paris Island for 3 months.

Admiral CARLSON. Our guys are a little brighter than that.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. So, you know, maybe it is good. The luxuries,

the cars, the stereos; that really plays a big part. After they are in
for 3 or 4 months, they get promoted and get a significant pay in-
crease. Also, we have clarified' the income tax situation. A recruit
pays taxes only on the reduced amount of his basic pay, so he'll
save some money there.

I don't know, I sometimes worry about the $1,200. We didn't put
it in there, the Senate put it in there. We wanted a clean GI bill
when we,brought it up. But the Senate forced us to make changes.
I am afraid that some of these young kids, and I am seeing them 6
months after they had to make a decision on the GI bill, they
cannot get back m, they feel like they made a mistake and the
$100 a month was the reason they didn't get in.

Admiral CARLSON. I am not apologizing or being critical of it. I
think that may be a fact. It influences some for the wrong reasons.

General HICKEY. If I may add, I think particularly if the recruit
happens to be married or couple years older than the 17- to 19-
year -old that is normally thought of as a new recruit, it has an
even bigger impact as they have .a family responsibility from the
very beginning.

General FuroN. One thing I wanted to add, not in comparison at
all with the Other Services, each of us has our own problems with
regard to recruiting, but the Army has the largest of the chal-
lenges and we are constantly looking and digging into the market
to try to develop new ways to approach quality young men- and
women. And the surveys that we have taken over and over again
tell us hands down that young America, young bright America,
wants to go to school.

And so the Army's position is that education is a lifelong process,
and we want it to continue while they are in the Army. We want
them to; believe that that in fact is true. So we offer a number of
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educational incentives in the Army. We even have started a pro--gram which will-help those who have the GI bill in their pocket to
transition directly into college by using our counselors to get theminto the college. And the point is that we have tried to make thatknown, the image of the Army, to young America through our ad-vertising on television and elsewhere in the media, to give them anincentive for joining the Army. Right now the figures we have as ofthe .end of December right now, about 84 percent of those who'coine into the Army sign, on for the GI bill, but that is because wesit down and'talk to them about, one on one, it is'an investment in
your future, and we encourage you strongly to get on board.Sothat is why

Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH. That leads to a question. Is there acertain amount of interagency or inter-Service cooperation interms of tools to try to sell the program? Since the Army 'has doneso well, perhaps the others can benefit from that experience.
General HICKEY. Yes, sir. I think all of us cooperate. One of thethings we are looking at is a videoscript that will do a better job.

What we are looking at is a very professional and slick article the
Army already-uses.

Admiral CARLSON. We all have the same GI bill. It is one thingto convince a kid to join tOgo.to school, it is another thing to con-vince him he wants to go to sea. A lot of them don't know what
going to sea means. Samuel Jolmsbn said, "going to sea is likebeing in jail with an opportunity to drown." That is the backdropagainst which we are doing our recruiting. Sending these youngpeople off to sea for months at a time with family separation; I
don t Care how good the GI bill is, if the individual doesn't want todo that, we Swill have a most difficult problem.

General HICKEY. One last point. We could probably also without
working harder increase our participation rate to some degree if
we used kickers, but we have historically not done so because wewere meeting our recruitment goals.,

I think the appropriate method of solving that is the one I de-scribed earlier within the.Air Force at least.
General CHEATHAM. I would like to second the General's position.

Also, I would like to state that the Marine Corps is not at 61 per-cent, it is at 62.6 percent overall, and this last month it was up toabout 73 percent. I recall 73.2 percent as this last month's partici-pation rate.
It is unique. I think you will find that within the Marine Corps

we have a great number of 6-year enlistments.In fact, our average enlistment is in excess of 4 Sears. I don'tthink that the majority of people that come into the Marine Corps
come in for the education, for the GI bill. I think if you talked toMarines you will find .that out.

But it is obvious that.there is a high percentage of them taking
advantage of it because it is a wonderful program for young men.Mr. Shim OF NEW JERSEY. I would appreciate it if members ofthe panel would discuss what kind of effort is being made to informrecruits prior to actually, ,checking in, so to speak, as to the decisionthey will make in the first couple of weeks of their time in theservice.
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My understanding is, and I have heard back from some, and
have gotten letters and I think the committee has also gotten some
letters that the decision time comes upon them too quickly.

I; was wondering if perhaps a longer period of time was being
contemplated, yerhaps bringing the parents more into the equation
earlier on. la =at the kind of thingheing looked at?

General Mow. I would be glad to walk through the process be-
cause we have a multi-faceted process in the Air Force again. The
first time that a, potential recruit goes in to see a recruiter, he is
briefed on and given a brOchure on the GI bill and what its bene-
fits are.

At the time of his enlistment and going through the processing
station, he is again given a mandatory, batch of information, listen-
ing and reading combined, on that same thing, and at the same
time wehave him at the enlistment processingstation.

We alio send a brochure to his.parents. They may be more inter-
ested in future education than the individual recruit is. So each of
those three are dime .before they enter active duty. We do give
them time to mull the whole' process over.

On the second day that they are a new recruit, we again go
through the whole same brochure and the same information is pre-
sented to them at our basic military training school. Then we have
a deliberate cooling off period for them to take that material hoine,
call their parents, their minister, educators, to make up their mind
and then on the seventh di-1y of their training we call them back in
and at that point they have the option to opt out if they want to do
so.

General EuroN. I have given you all literature we hand to the
recruits. In addition to the things Tom has mentioned, the only
other ?thing we do is to take a little television set into the individ-
ual's home with his parents and we have a tape that lasts about 5
to 10 minutes, and it walks through exactly what the GI bill pro-
vides, and what you must do and how much you must take out of
your pocket and put into it and° what you get if you go to college
and what you get if you dOn't go to college.

The fact is you give it all up if you don't go to college. They un-
derstand that completely when they sign the contract. When they
get into the reception station, we talk to them one on one with an
educational counsellor who talks to them about the goodness of in-
vesting in your future.

Admiral CARLSON. We have a similar program that exposes them
all the way along from first contact until when they are well into
boot camp, or recruit training.

Mr. Smrrx OF NEw JERszY. Would any of yoti like to comment on
refundability or transferability and whether that would be useful?

General CHEA'FHAM. I think they are both good and shc'.uld be
employed. If I could go back to your previous question just for one
moment. I think this brochure mailed to the parent is a key to the
participation of the young marine at boot camp. When the parent
sees this, they discuss the decision with their son or daughter.

Admiral CARLSON. I think transferability is important, because
the GI bill, as it is now, is a recruiting incentive. It is not a reten-
tion incentive. It is a disincentive. If you have transferability it is
very attractive to -the individual who, during the course of his en-
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listment or as he comes in, has dependents to whom he can trans-
fer his CI bill. R could be a tremendous retention incentive.

So there is great potential in my view.
General Eurox. I would like to jump onto that because for the

first time in many months the Arniy is finding because of a
number of other personnel changes, policies and so forth, that we
are havirm,a little difficulty with our re-enlistment objectives. And
many of the re-enlistment NCOs have come to us and said if we
were able to transfer' the Gl bill, the soldier would re-enlist, not so
that he could keep it, but so that he could let his wife go on to
school. That is from their mouths.

General HICKEY. I would say the Air Force certainly supports the
refund portion of it towards survivors of someone who perhaps got
killed on active duty or some suitable period, perhaps 5 years after
separation from' the service.

If they have not taken advantage of those things, a refund ap-
pears to us to be fair and equitable.

Mr. Smrrii of NEw JERSEY. Thank you, gentlemen. Your com-
ments have. been most helpful. I would say one fmal thing.

There is no way I could not be a strong supporter of the New GI
Bill. My brother, Lt. Col. Mike Smith, has exercised his preroga-
tives as a big brother and as a constituent, and I wouldn't get his
vote if ',didn't support it.

I thank you for your answers and yield back the balance of my
time.

Mr. Downy. Chairman Montgomery.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Without objection, I notice General Elton has mentioned about

some of the literature, if that could beif these two pamphlets
could be put in the record and if any of the service personnel chiefs
have anything for the record that would be put into the record per-
taining to the GI bill.

Mr. DOWDY. Without objection.
[The pamphlets appears on pp. 99-165.]
Mr. MONTGOMERY,. Mr. Chairman, .about the transferability, we

had that in the original bill, which means, in effect, you earned
these benefits and you can transfer them to your wife or one of
your children or two or three of your children. It was taken out of
the bill. It added to the cost.

We were surprised at the number of recruits who brought up
transferability. If we can make this permanent legislation that
would be one of the areas we would look into.

Actually the idea started with the aviators and the Air Force
pilots, that they said if you give us some transferability, we might
stay in the service. We could have saved millions of dollars if we
could have kept these people in the service because they said they
want to be sure to educate their children.

General Hickey, or Admiral Carlson, I might disagree with you a
little on your statement that this pushesthe GI bill pushes them
out of the service. We certainly don't want to do that.

When we talk to these recruits. we encourage them to stay in and
they can use their GI benefits in the service. But some of them
have got to get out.

72-772 0 - 87 - 2
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What is the number under 21, 22 years of age, in the Marine
Corpshow many are unden22 years of age, General?

General CHEATHAM. Twenty-four is the average age of the enlist-
ed in the Marine Corps.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. What percentage of that
General CHEATHAM. A hundred percent. That is counting people

like Me. So the average Elge,in the Marine Corps
Mr. MONTGOMERY. That is, fine. I will, buy that. I mean people

older than you, how many percent? Eity? Twenty percent?
What I am trying to get at, 85 percent of the Marine Corps is

under 22 years of age; is that correct?
General CHEATHAM. Yes, sir, to be precise 84.1 percent of our

first -term enlisted Marines are 22 or younger.
Mr.. DOWDY. What about the Army?
General ELToN. I am not sure what the exact figures are. I am

sure.they are similar tothat.
Mr. MONTGOMEXY. My point is you have to keep a young military

to take the high ground and to do the things, so some of them are
going to 'have to get out is my point, Admiral Carlson. It is; ood if
you ha ''e these benefits waiting on them.

My other question, and then I will yield back the balance of my
time, I notice the Army Times quoted the high test scores on re-
cruits in 1987 for the first 3 months of the fiscal year. Cap you ex-
plain what caused that or what you think caused that?

I guess this is the'firsftime in the history of the Army they have
had higher test scores than the other services.

General ELTON. Mr. Montgomery, I am not sure exactly why we
stand any higher than any of the other services. It may be the way
we have assessed the population we have in the delayed entry pro-
gram and brought them in.

Those are the figures for those who have actually entered the
service. At the end of the month of December, the first quarter,,we
stood about 75 percent in the 1 to 3(A) category. And we are abso-
lutely delighted with that.

Howeyer, we are also realists and understand that is going to
drop down as we go out and continue to recruit for the difficult to
fill skills and are not quiteas successful in doing that.

'Still, all in all, the -major incentive for bringing in high quality
young men and women is the GI bill and the additional educational
kickers. So that is what those people are after.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you.
General CHEATHAM. It also might have been because that was

written in the Army Times.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Solomon.
Mr. SOLOMON. If General Cheatham and PX Kelly were to leave

the Marine Corps, it would drop the average age down to about 19.
Just an observation. Nat personal, General.

Let me also put in a word for the Air Force here. We noticed a
little discrepancy as we were going around. One of the things that
we learned from the various recruit groups was the fact that in the
Air Force they seemed to think they had a better opportunity for
on-the-job training than I ey did in the other branches of the serv-
ice. That might have something to do with the fact you don't have
as many signing up historically as we have in the other branches.

x;434
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That is no reflection on the other branches, but that seems to be
the feeling out there. In other words, in the Air Forces there is a
better opportunity to learn a trade and to have a career.

I was again really taken by the kind of recruits we saw in all
four branches. I think it was at the Naval Air Station in Orlando
where in one group that was going through, we had an opportunity
to speak withpersonally, there were three from New York City in
the group, two from the suburbs, outside the immediate suburbs of
New York City and two from Upstate New York. That was really a
cross section of America that was going through in that one pla-
toon of men.

That is something that I hadn't seen in the last 8 or 9 years, and
I am sure that the GI bill has a great deal to do with that along
with upgrading of salary and benefits, in general.

I tItink we all have to take off our hats to all of you gentlemen.
You must be doing something right out there. It is heartening to
see that in these days of an All-Volunteer military.

Admiral CARISON. It is also helpful to come before committees
that want to do more for sailors. That is properly reported in all
our papers and it has a positive effect. You are a major contributor
to our sailors' welfare.

Mr. SoLomorr. It is nice of you to say that.
Also, General Cheatham, going along with what you said about

members of the Marine Corps enlisting for whatever reasons, in
one of those platoons we also had them raise their hands as to how
many enlisted specifically because of the GI bill and only two out
of about 30 raised.their hands.

I think that has a lot to do with it. I guess the concern that I saw
out there was over the young recruit coming in and having the
$106 a month for 12 months be a real factor. They, of course, are
just out of high school and a $100 a month to them is a lot of
money.

There were a lot of them out there married, which surprised me.
There were a lot of them out there married who had children and
that surprised me and certainly a $100 a month in that category
could make quite a difference.

That, along with the period of having to make a decision within
6 to 8 days of setting foot on that base seemed to be a real draw-
back. I guess the one thing we would like to see you do over the
next year would be to really look at that and question those re-
omits and give us some oversight as to what we might do in order
to solve those two problems.

Other than that, Mr. Chairman, I may have some other ques-
tions I would like to submit in writing, but, again, our hats are off
to you for doing a great job. We appreciate it.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Jontz.
Mr. Jorrrz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
If I might make an observation to the panel. Before asking a

question, as Mr. Solomon and others hallo said, the recruits were
very consistent in saying the brief duration of time in which they
had to make a decision was a factor, and I have no doubts that a
real effort has been made by the recruiters to get this program
across. However, we asked the recruits by a show of hands how
many had not heard of the GI bill before or didn't know about the
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benefits. A large number of hands went up in every case, as I
recall.

I have no doubts many efforts have been made. But for whatever
reasons, there are a large number of groups coming in that didn't
know about the benefits, and they expressed that to us.

Admiral Carlson you commented about the $100, and Congress-
man Solomon did, too. One proposal that a number of these young
men and women made to us was the possibility of making their
contribution in the sum of $50 a month over a period twice as long
instead of the sum of $100. I would like to ask you, Admiral Carl-
son, whether you think that makes some sense.

Admiral CARIJION. I think it makes a lot of sense. I think you
would find more people would egn up. It is a lesser bite of their
take-home

military
pay early on.

Some join the because they don't have a job, so they are
keenly sensitive to pay. They view that we are going to take this
money from them at a time when they need all the money they
can get ht now. They regret having later made the decision.

Fifty dollars is an easier program to sign up for than twice that
amount of money.

General &Tom We agree with that 100 percent.
General HICKEY. And the Air Force agrees 100 percent.
General CHEATHAM. If there one thing that could be changed

that would be it.
Admiral BELL. I also support that. The young men have been told

everything. They are more concerned about where am I going to
sleep, what I am going to do, is the drill instructor going to harass
me. When you walk into boot camp and are then asked, what do
you want to do about your college future, the young person is look-
ing at the most important thing facing him, which is someone yell-
ing at him.

I know we would get greater participation if we would extend the
length of the payment time. I would submit also that a longer
period for them to sign up or to make the decision would be help-
ful, so that they would have a little more rational frame of mind
than in those first couple of days of boot camp, would also increase
participation.

Thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Wylie.
Mr. Wvuz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I think maybe General Cheatham, from my own observation, if

we put it in perspective as Mr. Solomon did a little earlier, there
are other incentives perhaps here besides the incentive of the GI
bill.

I think a lot of young people are enamored or were enamored
with the Air Force and joined without the other incentives so you
didn't have as difficult a time as getting recruits a the Army did.

Being an Army man, I can probably relate to that and the same
may be,said of the Marines. They didn't at one time have as much
difficulty recruiting young people. But as to the idea of retention
and may I say that I have seen the full gamut of the GI billwhen
I came out of the service, the GI bill had just been enacted.

I enlisted earlier for a different reason. The patriotic aspect and
the GI bill was just like a gift. But that was supposed to be an in-



31 .

centive for me to re-adjust myself to civilian life, which is a far dif-
ferent concept than you are talking about here today.

Now, I,note that DOD is coming up with proposals to stretch out
the time frame within which the benefits under the GI bill would
be available. Each of you heard about that?

Right now a veteran can get the maximum benefit if he serves in
the Armed Forces for 3 years, I believe. What would you think
about that stretch out, General Elton?

General ELTON. We found out about that this week. I am told it
is going to be staffed with the services so we can provide a formal
comment. Jtist let me say, though, I sent a daughter to college and
for $2,400 you can just about get in the front door for a year or a
couple of semesters, and that is what you get for the 2-year pro-
gram.

And a great number of individuals would not enter the service,
and not enter the service in the Army, and I think not enter in
increasing numbers in the Navy for the 2-year program. For 3
years they get $10,800 as a basic benefit, and this would be reduced
$4,800, and that is a considerable reduction.

I have no data I can provide to corroborate the fact we have
driventhe heavy dollars available have driven people to shorter
enlistment terms. In fact, what we have is some data that shows by
de-linking the Army college fund and the bonus, we have driven
people to shorter terms. We are going through a number of terms
of services evaluation in which we are finding there are many in-
centives which, in fact, will help to move them to longer terms, but
that the GI bill basically is, as our Chief of Staff, General Wick-
ham, has stated in his testimony in front of the Senate, the very
most critical recruiting incentive that the Army has, and we don't
want to see it changed at all.

Mr. WYLEE. You want to leave it the same way it is?
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Would the gentleman yield in that?
The National Guard can comment on this. Am I correct in saying

that 6-year enlistments have increased significantly because of the
New GI Bill requirement of a 6-year enlistment? Also, your re-en-
listments for maybe 2 or 8 years are increasing to 6 years.

In fact, just the 6-year re-enlistments will pay for the GI bill
under the Reserve program because you are not having to retrain
or train new personnel to fill those different jobs. Training costs
will go way down.

General DEAN. Yes, sir, the retention rate is currently at 80,7
percent, which is the best it has been in any number of years re-
certly. We also have a higher number of people who are staying
for one 6 years, as you indicated, which at 20,000 average to train
an individual to come in to one of these branches of the Army is
definitely a saving.

Not question about it.
General CHEAT'HAM. If I may tie onto that, the Marine Corps Re-

serve has increased 6-year enlistments. Six-year enlistments have
gone from 61 to 79 percent since the Reserve GI bul has been in
effect.

Mr. WYLIE. I see my time is up. You may want to comment on
this for the record as to DOD coming up with a proposal to stretch
out the GI bill benefit.
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Mr. DOWDY. General McMerty, did you want to respond?
General Mc Miran. In the Guard at large, we have got about 60

percent of the participation in the program from the Reserve com-
ponents. If you look at our statistics, y au will fmd that we have the
lowest turnover as well.

Of people that I talked to in the .,out three-quarters of
them feel like the GI bill is the most imi.urtant initial entry or en-
listment incentive that we have and about half of them feel like it
is the most significant re-enlistment or retention tool that we have.

While that is not scientific, it is very useful in terms of evaluat-
ing the value of this program to the National Guard.

Mr. DOWDY. Mrs. Patterson.
Mrs. PATTERSON. No questions.
Mr. DOWDY. All right. We want to thank each of you very much

for your appearance here today and your help.
Mr. DOWDY. Next we have a panel of witnesses from the educa-

tion area. The panel includes Dean J. Clay Smith, Jr., Howard Uni-
versity Law School; Mr. Charles Saunders, vice president for gov-
ernment relations, American Council on Education; Mr. Frank
Mensel, vice president for federal relations, American Association
of Community and Junior Colleges; and Ms. Bertie Rowland, presi-
dent, National Association of Veterans Program Administ-ators.

Before we hear from this panel, I would like to introduce and
note the presence of Gen. Eston Merchant, the Adjutant General of
South Carolina. ,He is here representing the National Guard Asso-
ciation. I am told he must catch a plane at 3 this afternoon and
may not be able to testify because of that. We know of his strong
support for the New GI Bill.

We appreciate his support and thank him for being with us
today.

Mrs. PATTERSON. If it would be appropriate, I want to thank him
for being here. He is one of my good friends at home, and I appreci-
ate him making the trip up here. I understand he is going to be
roasted at home this evening. He had better go home and check
that roast out

Mr. DOWDY. We would be happy to allow you a few minutes.

STATEMENT OF MM. GEN. T. ESTON MARCHANT, ADJUTANT GEN-
ERAL, STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, NATIONAL GUARD ASSO-
CIATION OF THE UNITED STATES

General MARCHANT. I want to say I am here assisting in repre-
senting the National Guard Association of Lhe United States. Gen-
eral Stroud, our president, is also here. He asked me to be present
and make a few comments.

Let me first say a genuine word of thanks for all that the Con-
gress of the United States has done in the area of support for the
Guard and Reserve, which is substantial, down through the years;
and I 'might, if I may, just add quickly that out there in the States,
and I am talking about the National Guard, where the actual re-
cruiting and the retention work is done, the GI bill is the single
most effective tool we have for recruiting, for retention, and for
training, which is the bottom line.

%.1
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It tremendously impacts, I would like to point out, not only on
the student enlisteeand the high school student is the primary
target we have in the Guardit also impacts on the on-board mem-
bers who want to continue with their education. It also impacts on
the parents of our :prodpect, our enlistee, and on or that on-board
member. The parents have a far better attitude about the National
Guard and our recruiting because of the opportunities we can
afford their children, as well as, of course, the financial aid we are
able to provide.

And the educators, Mr. Chairman, and members of the commit-
tee, in the high schools much more readily accept the Guard into
their schools (and that is a problem in some instances) because
they realize we are going to be able to provide those students of
theirs with a further educational opportunity from a financial
standpoint beyond the high school era. I would like to point out
specifically to you, and I think it is indicative, that in South Caroli-
na our accession figures, our enlistment figures, continue to rise, to
climb, and our retention rate has significantly improved over the
past 1% years due in large measure to the New GI Bill,

I am told, and I had it provided for this opportunity, that since
July 1, 1985, tt,- date, we have had 2,628 young Guardsmen and
women take advantage of the New GI Bill.

In conclusion, I would like to say modernization and sophistica-
tion are the names of.the games these days, in all of the military,
certainly inclusive of the Guard; and we need not only to have
people, but smart people, smart strength, and therein lies the main
advantage and asset of the GI bill.

I appreciate again, Mr. Chairman, the opportunity for being with
you. I apologize for interrupting. I thank my representative, Mrs.
Patterson, for helping out.

[The prepared statement of the National Guard Association ap-
pears on p. 184.]

Mr. DOWDY. Do any members of the panel have any comments or
questions?

Mr. MONTGOMERY. We saw the general at Fort Jackson, S.C. He
was very helpful. He came out on an inspection trip Wednesday.
Thank you very much for your courtesies when we were in South
Carolina.

Mr. DOWDY. We want to welcome the next panel, and I have al-
ready introduced each of you. Dean Smith was on active duty with
the Army where he served as captain in the Judge Advocate Gen-
eral Corps. We introduced some of you. You may feel free to talk
from your written statements, or perhaps most helpful to the com-
mittee would be your informal remarks and comments about the
GI bill and how it has affected the institutions that you represent.
Dean Smith.
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STATEMENTS OF J. CLAY SMITH, JR., DEAN OF THE HOWARD UNI-
VERSITY LAW SCHOOL; CHARLES SAUNDERS, VICE PRESIDENT
FOR GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS, AMERICAN COUNCIL ON
EDUCATION; FRANK MENSEL, VICE PRESIDENT FOR FEDERAL
RELATIONS, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF 'COMMUNITY AND
JUNIOR COLLEGES; AND BERTIE ROWLAND, PRESIDENT, NA-
TIONAL ASSOCIATION OF VETERANS PROGRAM ADMINISTRA-
TORS

STATEMENT OF DR. J. CLAY SMITH, JR.
Dr. J. CLAY Sherif., JR. I returned early from the deans' meeting

of 'the American Bar Association held in New Orleans in order to
respond to the committee's invitation to express my views on the
GI bill because of the importance that I attach to it.

As a law educator, I always try to fmd principles which under-
gird legislation. Reviewing some of the testimony, the following
words seem to support the principles undergirding the GI bill. The
Speaker of the House Jar-es Wright said the "best financial invest-
ment this country ever made was the GI bill of Rights at the end of
World War II. It sent an entire generation of Americans to college,
and our country has been reaping the benefits ever since." I agreewith that principle.

I also agree with the principles stated by Congressman G.V.
Montgomery on February 11 regarding H.R. 1085, in which he said
that the newest GI bill is the latest to help carry out our national
obligation to assist servicemen in their efforts to achieve maximum
potential as individuals and as citizens."

Since the enactment of the fits:. GI bill in 1944, over 18 million
veterans and service personnel have received educational assist-
ance under the ZI bills. These include 7.8 million under the WorldWar If GI bill and almost 2.4 million under the Korean GI bill and
over 8 million under the Vietnam-era poet -Korean GI bill.

I join those supporting to permanently fix the GI bill in the
American dream. Though I am currently. the Dean of Howard Uni-
versity School of Law, I was first a veteran. I served as a captain in
the U.S. Army, the Judge Advocate General's Corps from 1967 to1971. This makes me a Vietnam war era veteran. I qualified for the
GI benefits during the last 2 years of my 4-year active duty com-
mitment. I was a Regular Army officer. I used the GI bill to pay for
a portion of my master of laws degree, which I received from the
George Washington University School of Law in 1971.

After resigning from the JAG Corps to return to private life, the
availability of the GI tbill made it possible for me to complete my
course requirements toward the highest academic degree awardedin law, the doctor of juridical science, which I received from the
George Washington National Law School in 1977. These education-
al experiences were ample reason for me to write an unsolicited
letter to Congressman G.V. Montgomery in 1986, after reading a
news account in the Washington Post about the GI bill and his ef-forts, many of your efforts to make that bill permanent. I inform
him that I supported his and other Congressmen's efforts to fix the
GI bill as a permanent piece of legislative policy.

Now, in listening to the other witnesses that have testified in
other panels on the issue of refundability and transferability, it

ki 0
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seems to me now as an educator and as dean of a law school and
being associated in a university of some 12,000 individuals, I think
that the proposals or the thoughts that are going .into the issue of
refundability, and particularly transferability, make 'a lot of sense.
I look at the GI bill not as a regional issue but as a national issue,
not as an issue involving the rich -versus the poor, but as a funda-
mental American policy issue. It covers everyone. It doesn't dis-
criminate against anyone.

So the issue of transferability would allow a greater reach and a
greater incentive and morale for some military families and veter-
ans who might not be able to afford to educate their families. I
think that the American people across the board ought to support
the legislation.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Dean Smith appears on p. 166.]
Mr. DOWDY. All right. In the order I introduced you, those of the

other witnesses, as we have said, some of you have prepared state-
ments, andthese will be incorporated into the record.

STATEMENT OF CHARLES SAUNDERS

Mr. SAUNDERS. My name is Charles Saunders, ard I am grateful
for this opportunity to represent the American Council on Educa-
tion, which is an umbrella group representing all sectors of higher
education. I will be very brief.

I simply would like to reinforce what my testimony' says, that
this iapassage Of this legislation is high priority for the higher
education community as a whole. We are very grateful to you and
Chairman Montgomery and your colleagues for your championship
of this legisyttion, and I simply note in my statement that we have
already circulated to Congress a publication identifying our prior-
ities for the 100th Congress, and renewal of the New GI Bill is one
of those high priorities.

I think I will just leave it at that.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Saunders appears on p. 168.]

STATEMENT OF FRANK MENSEL

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Mensel.
Mr. MENSEL. Mr. Chairman, I am Frank Mensel, and I head the

staff of the Joint Commission cin Federal Relations of the American
Association of Community and Junior Colleges, and the Association
of Community College Trustees.

Mr. Chairman, all Americana we feel owe a great debt to Chair-
man Montgomery for his vision and perseVerance in creating the
New GI Bill, which we think is clearly demonstrating that it en-
hances bcth the American Dream and American competitiveness.
We thank every member of this committee for cosponsoring H.R.
1085.

We commend in particular the Army and the National Guard
Bureau, for the imagination and vigor with which they are putting
the program to, work.

Mr. Chairman, the community colleges are enthusiastic about
the opportunities that this bill, this program creates for American
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youth, especially for needier students. It is a tremendous bulwark
of opportunity.

-Community colleges have been very active in support of the New
GL,Bill since the original -introduction of H.R. 1400 several Con-

agO; andeur members have no cause to regret that support.
risss:fleartto 'us that the New GI Bill is exceeding its expectations
aen.,-3.1year pilot and is now making vital contributions to the na-
tional interest on atleast three fronts: First, greater national Reu-
rity;.sec.ond, increased post4econdary education access, and, third,
a more competitive American skill base.

The contributions. o national security are underscored
by the marked improvements in the general quality of personnel
entering the armed '4e_vices, and we think your military witnesses
today have already been documenting that improvement rather
graphically.

Mr. Chairman, as far as we are concerned, a vital;, perhaps the
most vital in the New GI Bill, is the college incentives
it offers' for'Reserve and National Guard members who take 6-year
enlistments. Those of us who have supported this innovation from
the beginning have often referred to it as an "up front" GI bill. By
allowing the Guard and Reserve enlistees to take college courses
while serving their military obligation, the prograni gives the de-
fense systeni the direct benefit of the enhanced skills- -this in con-
trait with the -traditional GI bill, in which the skill enhancement
comes after the service. The more sophisticated our weapons sys-
tems hecothie, the- more dependent our. security is on the skills of
the-personnel-using them. ;

This-mixing,of military service and- college training strengthens
both-national..security and the economy, in both the short and the
long run. The college benefits that Guard and'Reserve members re-
ceive during their enlistments are bound to strengthen their civil-
ian careers. Many skills so gained will find their way sooner or
later into civilian defense work, as well as benefit the military di-
redly through extended enlistments. In many cases, they will do
both.

A perhaps more subtle benefit of the New GI Bill is its potential
for alleviating the competition among the military, employers and
higher education for the reduced flow of high school graduates.
This faces all three sectors in the next decade. In the jargon of af-
firmative action, greaCinimbers of the Guard and Reserve enlistees
who use their New GI' am benefits will become "two-fers" and
"three-fers." By that, we mean they will go to college as full-time
students, serve as part-time soldiers and finally apply new skills in
Pirt-tinie work, often defenieivork.

It is. worth noting; Mr. Chairman, a recent analysis by Carol
Frances, a consulting economist who is the former chief economist
of the American Council on Education, shows that the biggest
single step that a working American` takes up the pay ladder is the
completion of the 2-year college degree. It shows that a worker
witha 2-year college degree earns an average of 80 percent of what
a bachelors degree holder earns.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we should not underestimate the impor-
tance of the NeW 'GI Bill to the Atherican dream of universal post-
secondary educational opportunity. With a marked decline in the

4Z'
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purchating power of student, financial aid as measured against full
costs of college attendance, increasing numbers of high school grad-
uates are likely to turn to the New GI Bill as their surest path to a
College education.

The only improvement we might suggest, Mr. Chairman, is that
the $100 a month contribution from the servicemen be reduced or
eliminated.

In summary,, the community- colleges are enthusiastic about the
opportunities for greater productivity that the New GI Bill offers
both to indiYiduaL Americans and to the national economy. In its
quickening quest for an economic competitiveness policy that will
give this country the -technical education and skill base it must
have to meet the global challenge, Congress already has a corner-
stone in place in the New GI-Bill.

We thank you again-for this opportunity.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Mensel appears on p. 171.]
Mr. DOWDY. Thank you, Mr. Mensel.
Ms. Rowland.

STATEMENT OF BERTIE ROWLAND

Ms. ROWLAND. Thank you.
I am Bertie Rowland I represent the National Association of

Veterans Program Administrators. My organization is actually the
people that are on the college campus, the people that are actually
administering the GI bill to the veterans as they come to our
schools, helping them get enrolled and helping them how to budget
their money so they can get through the term.

We are pleased and encouraged by the high participation rate in
the New GI Bill as compared to the Chapter 32 Veterans Education
Assistance Program. We know the improved participation rates
will have a dramatic effect on the adjustment of these veterans as
they. return to civilian life and careers.

The availability of the financial assistance in the face of tighter
constraints in financial aid will be the key to successful return to
their educational goals. Many veterans and veterans' programs
were frustrated by the poor participation in Chapter 32, the Veter-
ans Education Assistance Program. It was not uncommon to have a
veteran seeking assistance, only to find that they had not partici-
pated in the program.

The pool of young people is limited and the demand for bright
young, educationally-oriented people is shared by the military, in-
dustry and education. the New GI Bill is attractive to young people
because it integrates these three demands. They can serve their
country, receive their_education and prepare for private sector, all
with a minimum of readjustment difficulty. The reservist GI bill
allows simultaneous pursuit in these areas.

We testified before this committee on the difficulties associated
with implementation of the New GI Bill, particularly the reservist
chapter 106. We are pleased to report that many of the problems
have been resolved, and some are being presently addressed. The
fact that this program is overwhelmingly accepted by the military,
the educational institutions and by individual reservists and Serv-
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ice members Prompted a tremendous spirit of cooperation and
communication between these people.

We look 'forward to improvement in the determination of basic
flits,:
conclusion, NAVPA press is enthusiastic about the benefit of

the New GI Bill,, not only in terms of support of veterans' educa-
tion but also in terms of updating the skills ofour people to partici-
pate in Ancrea0.ngry- sophisticated military and an increasingly so-
phisticated.,society.

There ;tire two 'things that. I would like to mention that we, too,
would agree that the $100:a month reduction in pay should be ex-
tended over a 24-month period, at least reduced $50 a month.

We feel we:have people on active duty seeking our-assistanceand
very Often we find that they wish they could opt into the system
now even though they are on active duty. They will contact us be-
cause they are looking forward to entering the university. So an ex-

tenTtneadrriod to opt in would be an advantage to those people.
Thank -you Very much, sir.

prepared statement of Ms. Rowland appears on p. 174.]
DOWDY. I thank each of you for your testimony. When last

week we went to some of the military installations we had the op-
portunity to meet with reservists, as I rethember, guardsmen, who
were in-school on .the GI bill. Asd remember it, m response to a
question from 'Chairman Montgomery, each of them indicaied that
the program was working well in terms' of the Veterans' Adminis-
tration getting them their checks. They were satisfied with the way
the program was-being carried out. Let the ask, is that thegeneral
feeling? It seemed to be from-the indiCations we, received Iasi, week
on our field hearings.

Ms. ROwuom. Since I seem to be on the firing line on that, let
me respond to that. Things have improved significantly but there
are still 'significant problems:: on- the processmg of the notice of
basic eligibility. The National Guard has centralized their process-
ing somewhat as I understand it, so that the unit levels are no
longer signing:the NOBIs which is the form that authorizes eligibil-
ity. -But apparently there is still a problem. We have people that,
right now I have people in my files that have cut off benefits be-
cause they had not met, the requirements. Perhaps their high
school diploma was not on file or perhaps they actually did not
sign up for 6-year enlistment. Those would be the exceptions.

I would y the ,majority are going well but the problems always
seem to come back to processing at the unit level.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Meuse' or Mr. Saunders? Do you want to talk
about that?

Mr. MENsci.. Our community college found in the early months
perhaps the first year of the program, the VA and the military
units were ver slow to get the forms in place and get the informa-
tion circulated so that more members would take advantage of the
program, 'and More colleges would build the liaison with the Guar!
and' Reserve' units, especially to make the benefits available.

Our two community college associations, nationally, are trying to
go out SysteMatically to-key States -and hold 1:-day, drive-in confer-
ences for community college administrators so they in turn get out
systematically to build the liaison with their Guard and Reserve

u-1-4 4
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units, because we believe that this program will mean a great dealto the skill base that this country has to have to meet global com-petition and if there are any members of this committee that
would like these associations to help you realize, conduct 1-day con-ferenCes for the community college in your districts or in yourStates, we would be glad to work with you.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Saunders?
Mr. SAUNDE/iS.NO further comment, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DOWDY:, One final question. Dean Smith might be able to re-spond.Twoule. ask all of you if you would like.
It is pretty obvious to me what the answer would be but what

impact on the effectiveness of the GI bill would we have if we wereto have a restructuring of the benefits so that they were reducedby, say, 50 percent for a person who went into the military for a 3-year hitch?
Dr. J. CLAY SMITH., JR. One of the things fortunately that I havebeen able to do in my busy life and career is maintain some friend-ship with some young people, who are in the service, so eventhough I don't know all the intricacies of the GI bill as the veter-ansexcept I always do want t,c make sure that that benefit gotithere on tune, that is why I smile beCause it was always sometimesright on the money when the day 'of registration occurred. That iseven back in the early 1910's.
But I think the reduCtion is a proper direction, policy direction,reduction from $100 to $50isn't that your question?
Mr. DOWDY. I did not mean that. I meant the reduction of thebenefits, not the reduction of the amount contributed by the youngman or woman, but rather the reduction in the amount that that

person-would-receiva under the:GI bill.
Dr. J. CLAY Smini., JR. I don't think I understand your question,but if it is to reduce the benefits, I would be oppoqed to it.
Mr. DOWDY. All right.
Dr. J. CLAY Sktim., JR. I just don't think that that is the rightdirection for moral reasons first of all, and for educational assist-ance and for forward movement under this program.
Mr. DOWDY. Maybe I didn't phrase the question properly. I amabout out of time but what impact would it have ifwe cut the ben-efits in half?
Mr. SAUNDERS. It could only be negative, Mr. Chairman, becauseof the very serious scarcity that exists today of adequate financialaid to help people meet college expenses.
Dr. J. CLAY SMITH., JR. I just returned from a meeting as I saidbefore where the cost of education was evaluated in higher educa-tion, and I think that even though the GI bill principle is for re-cruitment and retention in the military,. I think that there aresome ,good national, affirmative residual policies, and that is to en-courage Americans to go on to college, and professional schoolssuch as medical and law school. These veterans are not marginal,mentally marginal,in terms of their acadeniic possibilities. I thinkthat tcy reduce the benefits would be contrary to the overall direc-tion of having an educated society of people in or out of the mili-tary.
Mr. DOWDY: My time is almost up. Ms. Rowland, do you care tocomment thOugh?
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Ms. howpArin. Yes, Thank you.
If $300 a month which is the current rate for a 3-year enlist-

ment, it that will make the difference on whether or not someone
goes to school, you' can bet your bippy that $150 a month will look
a, lot less attractive, particularly when if they are going into the
military they are lookmg at the financial aid structure. If they can
do as well in financial aid without giving 3 years of their life to the
military, why should they go in the military? They v, *II lose the in-
centive as far as I' can see.

Mr. DOWDY. .Mr. Smith.
Mr. Cinusioniza H."Smmi. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you for your'our testiinony. I have .a couple of questions.
Do you have any indidation as to how many service men or

women who Perhaps previously had not considered college for them
as an,option who because of the incentive of the GI bill, and be-
cause of some of the push they received during recruitment or
during their first period Of, time in the military, then decided and
opted for it. In other words, are we essentially getting a new clien-
tele that we could have, expected otherwise?

Mr. Maivszt. My only comment, Congressman, is that I think the
ArMy'S -own data dearly documents an affirmative response to
your question. The improvement as General Elton put it, is dra-
matic in the quality of the personnel that they are attracting. I
haVe heard Army officials say on Many occasions that the New GI
Bill, because of the higher quality, the new clientele as you pat it
that is being attracted to serve, because of that quality, you have
eliminated an attrition of less skilled people from the Army, which
amounts to about a division, a whole division of the Army, from
year to year..

That ia,a iremendous,,loss to the Army. I Oink those costs alone
might approach the cost of funding theNew GI-Bill.

Dr. J. CLAY Shim., JR. I dor't know about the Army statistics,
but can tell you that with a son that is 22 years of age who is in
college, which is the average of a person in the Marine Corps, I
get my statistics from-observing, some of the young men who did
not have an opportunity to go on to college and who did go into the
military. They knew I- had been in the Seriice and the GI bill is
one of the incentives that Lrecommend to them when they ask me
why they sould,join the military.

Mr. Cmurromixe H. SMITH. Mr. Mensel, you indicated that you
felt there should be a reduction of the $100 per month contribution.
Are you thinking in terms of reducing it to something like 50-50 or
a longer period of time? What is your situation?

Mr. MENSEL. I think either of those options would be preferred,
Congressman. I think es Chairman Montgomery has indicated, that
is an impediment to some of the needier students. They juet haVe
family obligations to meet and they cannot spare that hundred dol-
lars, whether it is for 6 months or a year. We don't want to, dis-
courage talented people from serving the country and contributing
to our national security.

Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. Spam, Could you tell the committee what
the average tuition is, and perhaps ram:mild board,using that for a
community college, what the average tuition is per college?
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Mr. MENSEL. Chairman, you, may have later data than I, but my
impression is that total attendance costa for a community college
student right now are running in the range of $4,300 to $4,500 a
year. Now you are talking tuition which averages probably $700 or
$800 now across the country for a full academic year, two semes-
ters, three qUarters. You add on top of tha6 meal costa, clothing
costa, commutin costs, and our students are primarily commuting
students. A lot of people don't understand that the average costa to
a commuting student are about the same as those to a boarding
student., We have managed finally in the Pell Grant program to
eliminate' the differential between commuting and boarding stu-
dents. But the coitaiti.ein that range.

One of the exciting things about the New GI Bill is that it offers
a needy student snot only the $140 a month, assuming he or she is
doing an enlistment in the ReserVe or Guard, on top of that the

kinddrill f
pay, and on top of that possibly a Pell Grant, it makes the
o package where for the first time, a truly needy student

doesn't have to put bread ahead 'of education, taking care of roof
and sustenancefor the family or relatives ahead of doing a good
job in school.

Now, with this combination those truly needy students have
something where, they can put education first.

Mr. CHRISTOPHER H. Smrrn. Thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Montgomery.
Mr. MCNTGOBLERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Rowland, it is good to have you here again testifying before

our committee. Thank you for the help you have given us.
Mr. Saunders, nice to see you again. I want to also thank Dean

Smith. This is the first time I have had the opportunity to meet
you. We have quoted your letter and shown it all around the coun-
try. Your letter was certainly helpful to us.

I'm pleased to see Frank Mensel who has been working with us
very closely on the GI bill. I guess you could call him "Mr. GI Bill
for Education:," Frank, you hate been there, and you have been
outstanding in, what you have done for us.

It's great when when you can have the Speaker come by. As
somebody pointe out, this Is one of the-few times a Speaker of the
House has appeared before a subcommittee and testified on legisla-
tion. So that is a plus for us. I don't think we are going to have
much problem in the House of Representatives. But there could be
storm warnings in theSenate. We really need your help over there.

It takes a while to get the word out to the educational facilities.
If schools think the GI bill is as important as we think it is, they
will have to be told we need their help in getting H.R. 1085 en-
acted.

Frank?
Mr. MENSEL. Mr. Chairman, we have 500 college trustees and

presidents in town here in Washington in this coming week for a
national seminar. They will all be working with the Congress, and
especially the Senate, on the issue. They will be making the con-
tacts and we won't let you down, sir.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you. I think in the House it would be
nice to thank members for supporting the GI bill. We have had it
up twice and there has never been a Member voting against it in
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the full House. We, didn't have a toll call but no one got up and
opposed it. They said they were all for 'it

-So therefore, I think everybody is for It
Mr. MENSEL. Every House Member who sponsored that has al-

ready received a letter of thanks from our Joint Commission on
Federal Regulations.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. We pointed out what the OMB has told DOD
to do about 'cutting back on the educational benefits. It is really
rather sad that they would come up with a .proposal like this. We
figured out that-a young person going.on active duty and pitting
up to $1;200 would have a total of $4,800. Then, ,you divide. by 36
and it comes to $133.per month for 36 months.

They have made a recommendation to OMB.to keep the Reserve
and 'Guard. just like it is without putting up any money. The
guardsmen . or reservist' gets $140 a month. So .that doesn't make
sense. Surely they will go. back and take another look at that and
withdraw that request. To send ,it-up would really be unkind in my
opinion.

Thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Solomon.
Mr. SOLOMON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, we have a lot of witnesses to testify and it is get,-

ting late, so let me just concur in everything that our Chairman
Montgomery just said. We really appreciate your taking time to
come before us today, Thanks again.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Jontz. .

Mr. JONTZ. Mr. Chairman, if I Might ask very quickly, would it
be correct to state that all of you would support changing the
method of payment for the young man or woman from $100 to $50
-a month over a longer period of time if that is what the recruit
chose? Would that be correct?

Mi. ROWLAND. Yes.
Dr. J. CLAY SMITH., JR. Yes: `I woulci think that. It should be left

to the recruit. Some may want to contribute $100 a mOnt2.; the
amount -confricuted should be at the choice of the individual.

Mr. MENSEL. I like the Dean's suggestion. If it ;an be executed at
the option of the service person himself or hsrbelf, that would be
wonderful. Whatever contract they want to make during the course
of their enlistment. If they want to put $1,200 on the line when
they enlist, put that in the 'Federal Treasury, so much the better.

Mr. SAUNDERS. Congressman,- hat sounds like a very reasonable
suggestion to me. I jUst haye to s to that as far as the association I
represent, we simply k no posi ion on amendments to it. Our po-
sition is simply to sup rt e tensi n.

Mr. JONTZ. And co I rask would it 1 the Position of each
of you that the ell meek of transfer ility wo d be desirable, or do
you have a positio ? Could you address the t sferability of bene-
fits to a spouse or hildren? ,

Mr. MENSEL. I t that kind of flexibility, would work in the
national interest. I uld strengthen the commitment of the serv-
ice personnel to ex -nd their service to work harder for this pro-
gram.

C 8
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°Dr. J. CLAY SMITH., JR. I would say that if the bill ran into diffi-culty on the issues of transferability or refund, I would let it go forthe broader principal.
I think that any investment in the serviceman really saves theAmerican people money and if they stay in the service after train-ing just for transferability of the benefit, I think that the Office of

Management and Budget ought to look at that and do what they
usually do and do a cost survey.

Mr. Mown. Let me emphasize the first priority of the communi-
ty colleges is to get the program enacted as permanent law. What-
ever risks are involved we would have to weigh those as to whetherthey reduce that probability or enhance it.

Mr. Jorrtz. Thank you.
If might ask one question of you, Ms. Rowland. You mentioned

that from time to .time you have active servicemen and womencome talk to you who did not sign up for the GI bill. When we were
dikussing earlier.the timing of when the recruit has to make .a de-

we were thinking at what time in their basic training mademost sense to ask them.
WOuld that idea appeal to you, :given that there are a largenuMber of young men and women in the Armed Forces now who

decided against participating when they enlisted for whatever rea-sons and now see the importance of it?
Does the idea appeal to you of some effort to allow the option

again for these yo men and women who chose not to participate
then, but now would like to?

Is that something you think would be helpful and provide someeducational benefits to these members of the armed services who
will becoming through later?

Ms. ROWLAND. Absolutely, because it opens that opportunity forthem again to become, better readjusted; better educated citizensupon their discharge.
If I might add, one of the individuals that I talked to he was anAmerican, and he saidhe strengthened what the people from the

military said earlier. All he was concerned about when he was inboot camp was not getting yelled at. He didn't have the time tothink about whether or not ,he really wanted to participate in aneducational program.
He was 10 months into the. service when they contacted me tofind out if there was anything that he could do. He also didn't un-derstand his options at the time. Apparently he was on a delayedenlistment and came in after July 1, 1985, which would put him

into the New GI Bill, but when he enlisted there was much confu-
sion, and they thought he would only be eligible for that one sec-tion.

It was an interesting situation.
Mr. JONI2. Thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. Me. Patterson.
Ms. PATTERSON. No questions, thank you.
Mr. DOWDY. We want to thank each of the witnesses for beingwith us and for helping us this afternoon. Thank you very much.Our next panel is a group of military associations. If you don'tobject, we will submit the statements of each of the remaining wit-

nesses for the record and go straight to the questions.

- 14 9
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We want to have an opportunity to talk with many of you who
were with the group when we went to Kentucky, Texas, Florida,
and South Carolina last week.

Mr. DOWDY. The witnesses include Chief Alan D. Obermiller, ex-
ecutive director of the Enlisted Association of the National Guard;
Col. Ben S. Catlin, assistant executive director of the Air Force As-
sociation; Mr. Robert' W. Nolan, national executive secretary, Fleet
Reserve Association; Ansel M. Stroud, Mai. Gen., president of the
National Guard Association of the United States; and Col. Edward
P. Smith, director of membership services with the Association of
the U.S. Army.

STATEMENTS OF ALAN D. OBERMILLER, CMS (RET.), EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, ENLISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE NATIONAL GUARD
OF THE UNITED STATES; CCL. BEN S. CATLIN, ASSISTANT EX-
ECUTIVE DIRECTOR, AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION; ROBERT W.
NOLAN, NATIONAL EXECUTIVE SECRETARY, FLEET RESERVE
ASSOCIATION;. MAJ. GEN: ANSEL M. STROUD, PRESIDENT, NA-
TIONAL GUARD ASSuCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES; AND
COL. EDWARD P. SM..TH, U.S. ARMY (RET.), DIRECTOR OF MEM-
BERSHIP SERVICES, ASSOCIATION OF THE U.S. ARMY

Mr. DOWDY. First, gentlemen, L it meets with your approval,
some of you have prepared statements. We would like for those to
be made a part of the record, and in the order that I introduced
you, you would present your statements.

Mr. DOWDY. Would any of you like to make any comments about
any of the testimony that you have heard from prior witnesses or
any matter that is not included in your prepared statement?

STATEMENT OF ROBERT W. NOLAN

Mr. NoLpN. Mr. Chairman, speaking for the Fleet Reserve Asso-
ciation, I was somewhat surprised today to learn of the Depart-
ment of Defense's proposal or the Administration's, whichever it
would be, to reduce the GI bill benefits.

Without a doubtspeaking as a shipmate that has 159,000 mem-
bers that are career personnel of the Navy and Marine Corps and
Coast Guard and enlistedsuch a reduction in benefits, we believe,
would gut the GI bill.

We stand by our position of full support of the bill now. We
agree with Chairman Montgomery's priorities that he stated very
frankly to the recruits in our visit last week, that we feki it is im-
perativeI say particularly sc sh.ce the Administration has hopes
of changing the planthat the plan be made permanent, and then
take a good hard look at the various amendments that we have
heard about, all of which the Fleet Reserve Association agrees
with.

But nevertheless, we would bow to the urgency of getting a per-
manent law on the books rather than try to improve the bill at this
time.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Nolan appears on p. 179.]
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STATEMENT OF COL. BEN S. CATLIN
Colonel CRIUN. Ben Catlin with the Air Force Association, and

we would enthusiastically support the :ition of Mr. Nolan's, to
get the bill through and not support the I D changes at all.

[The prepared statement of the Air Force Association appears onp. 187.]

STATEMENT OF MM. GEN. ANSEL M. STROUD
General STROUD. On behalf of the National Guard I would like to

express our appreciation for being allowed to testify here today. We
strongly support H.R. 1085, and statistically we can prove that for
the National Guard, both the Arniy National Guard and the AirNational Guard, that the program is working. We are recruiting
the highest intelligence-level soldier and airmen we have ever re-cruited; our retention rate is higher and our turnover rate is lower.
That, in essence, proves the program is working.

[The prepared statement of the National Guard Association ap-pears on p. 184.]

STATEMENT OF SGT. ALAN D. OBERMILLER
Sergeant OBRIMULLER. Mr. Chairman, the Enlisted Association of

the National Guard of the United-States absolutely goes on record
to support the New GI Bill and it's being made into permanent leg-
islation. We would resolutely oppose any consideration to make the
benefits less than they are because we believe that any attempt todo that would take the attraction of the program away, not only
hurting training and retention of the Reserve forces but also the
Nation as a whole by turning away people who are currently moti-
vated to get a higher education. If you turn them off at this critical
point in their life, then they will turn their back and go someplace
else and the Nation as a whole will suffer.

[The prepared statement of Sergeant Obermiller appears on p.194.)

STATEMENT OF COL. EDWARD P. SMITH
Colonel SMITH. Mr. Chairman, I represent the Membership Serv-ices of the Association of the U.S. Army and we wholeheartedly

supportthe efforts in the immediate passage of H.R. 1085 to makethe GI bill permanent now. We would, support consideration of
changes later but we feel it is important to make th,., legislation
permanent now.

I would also like to acid, and this is the only thing I need to add
at this point, you have heard General Elton speak of the impact ofthe, bill on quality of enlistments in the Army and you heard the
academicians speak on the manner in which colleges and academic
institutions are handling the results of the products of the GI bill.I would like to put in a plug and say that the two institutions
have worked together and' recently the Army signed an agreement
with the Association of Collegiate Registrars' and Admissions Offi-
cers. This provides counseling for those who are about to departfrom the service, who have the benefits of the GI bill coming* tothem. It lines them up and guarantees that this counseling is done
before they depart the ranks so that they are admitted and ready
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to go onto college campuses and to begin the transition to civilian
life that the bill provides for them.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Colonel Smith appears on p. 191.]
Mr. DOWDY. All right, let me lead off with one question. Last

week several of you were with us as we went to some installations
and as I have said earlier, we asked a number of people who were
participating in the program, specifically I remember in Texas
some Air National Guardsmen as I recall, how the program
worked.

As I understand it, the VA mails them their checks. Are there
problems with the set up and are the checks getting there on time?

Do any of you have any information that would lead us to i')e-
lieve that changes should be made in the structure of how the:
checks are delivered?

General STROUD. Mr. Chairman, I am also the Adjutant General
of the State of Louisiana. I know of no instances in our State in
recent months where there have been any problems with recipients
of this benefit. Initially, in 1985, the guidelines were slow in
coming down. There was little publicity. There was confusion, but
once the program of underway it is working and working well.

I would simply like to add that in our State 82 percent of the
people that have enlisted in the Army National Guard since Octo-
ber 1, 1986, said that they enlisted because of the benefits of the GI
bill and in a recent survey of our Air National Guard, 67 percent of
those interviewed said that they would not have enlisted had it not
been for the GI bill. So it is important.

Sergeant 01310.MILLER. I would think that basically if there are
problems, and I am not aware that there are significant problems,
that they are probably startup problems. In other words, by startup
problems I mean getting basic documents, copies of documents to-
gether to initially go into a college or a community college. Once
that is established, I don't believe there are any problems out there
that I have heard of.

Colonel Sum I would agree with my colleagues' statements. I
believe the problems probably do exist but they are start up prob-
lem. as with any new program, almost all of us experience a cer-
tain difficulty. But they can be overcome and, I think the right
people are working on them.

Mr. DOWDY. All right. Chairman Montgomery.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you very much.
I appreciate our witnesses staying around. Actually the hearing

is Moving very quickly, thanks to you, Mr. Chairman, and the
ranking minority member. We do have two other panels but I do
appreciate the witnesses here today. Your statements will be in the
record and they will help us. I want to thank Colonel Smith, Bob
Nolan, and Chief Obermiller for coming on our 2 day inspection
trip for the GI bill. That was most helpful.

Thanks also to General Stroud, who is an old friend. General
Wellman was very enthusiastic when we got to Kentucky. He
brought all the Kentucky press that were there. He was very, very
helpful. The National Guard and Reserve groups have been totally
supportive.

rj
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The Administration is really not bothering the Reserves or theNational Guard. They are leaving that program alone. But wewant and need the active forces under the GI bill, also. So, I knowyou are not backing off from helping us because you have not beenhit by the OMB.
We need your help to carry the whole program and we have tohave the Active and Reserve and National Guard all tzts-,..ther, andwe will have a strong military force.
I am sure that is everybody down the line, that you are watchingthat.
General Sisotro. Right.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Solomon.
Mr. SOLOMON. Mr. Chairman, let me just say as the Ranking Re-publican on the full Veteran's Affairs Committee I want to alsothank all of you that were with us including those out in the audi-

ence. It certainly was a tremendously productive trip and I think itis going to provide what we need to push this through the entire
Congress and as yoU said, we are here today not so much to look atthe problems or how we can improve the peacetime GI bill todaybut to take it one step at a time. Let's permanentize it, make sureit will be there for the f ..ure and then we can look into possible
changes.

I think there are obvious changes that need to be made such asthe $100 per month over a short period of 12 months, and perhapsother changes, but again, your testimony and as Sonny Montgom-
ery has said, your support in getting this through the Congress isgoing to be vital. We really do appreciate your taking time to comehere today.

I will reserve some possible questions for the record. I am sureyou all won't mind if we submit questions to you in writing. Wemight want to have them inserted in the record and they will help
us for future changes .we.might want to make.

Thank you, Mr. Chairmari.
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Jontz.
Mr. Jorrrz. I have no queitions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. DOWDY. Mrs. Patterson.
Mrs. PATTERSON. No questions.
Mr. DOWDY. Again, we want to thank each of you for being withus last week, those of you who went with us, and for your presencehere today. Thank you very much.
Our next panel includes Gen. Williath R. Berkman, military ex-ecutive, Reserve Forces Policy Board, Richard W. Johnson, directorof legislative affairs, the Non Commissioned Officers Association ofthe United States of America, Capt. Charles Buesener, director oflegislation, Naval Reserve Association, Col. Charles C. Partridge,USA (ret.), legislative counsel, the National Association for Uni-formed Services, Mr. Rudy I. Clark, director of military and gov-ernment relations, Air Force Sergeants Association, RonaldHayden, vice president for administration, Navy League of theUnited States, and Maj. Gen. Evan L. Hultman, AUS (ret.), execu-tive director, Reserve Officers Association of the United States.

53'



48

STATEMENTS OF GEN. WILLIAM R. BERKMAN, MILITARY EXECU-
TIVE, RESERVE FORCES POLICY BOARD; RICHARD W. JOHN-
SON, DIRECTOR OF LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS, THE NON COMMIS-
SIONED OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA; CAPT. CHARLES BUESENER, DIRECTOR OF LEGISLA-
TION, NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION; COL. CHARLES C. PAR-
TRIDGE, USA (RET.), LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL, THE NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION FOR UNIFORMED SERVICES; RUDY I. CLARK, DI-
RECTOR OF MILITARY AND GOVERNMENT RELATIONS, AIR
FORCE SERGEANTS ASSOCIATION; RONALD HAYDEN, VICE
PRESIDENT FOR ADMINISTRATION, NAVY LEAGUE OF THE
UNITED STATES; AND MAJ. GEN. EVAN L. HULTMAN, AUS (RET.),
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, RESERVE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF
THE UNITED. STATES
Mr. DOWDY. Let me again thank those of you who were with us

last week for your assistance then and all of you for being present
here today.

Let me again ask, with your permission, that we place your writ-
ten statements in the record and that we throw it open for ques-
tions.

It should be apparent for all of you that everyone on the commit-
tee, on both sides of the aisle and in it is a truly bipartisan sense,
feels the New GI Bill should be made permanent and its structure
should remain essentially intact; the VA should continue to fund
the readjustment portion of the program, that basic benefit, and
that the benefit should to be reduced.

Is there anyone in the panel who disagrees with any of those
statements?

Raughter.]
Mr. JoHrisox. No,
Mr. HAYDEN. No, sir.

STATEMENT OF MAJ. GEN. EVAN L. HULTMAN
General HuurmAN. Mr. Dowdy, I would only say, that I regret

that I didn't have the opportunity last. week to join your group. In
my defense, my only excuse was that at that particular time I was
in Europe representing 800,000 NATO Reserve officers who are
faced with similar types of problems that you are dealing with
here.

I would make two observations, if I could beyond what I have re-
flected in our brief remarks. I think it is incredible that this audi-
ence, from all of the sectors that have been my:resented here, start-
ing with the military itself, all the Active Forces first, the Reserves
and so forth, that on the basic issue they are all in agreement.

To to my knowledge, you have not heard on single objection of
any kind on the bill itself. I would, Congressman Montgomery,
agree wholeheartedly with what you said, that we are in this ball-
game all together, I would add that this is the only program really
that has given those incentives to the Reserves, the National
Guard and the non-National Guard Reserves. So it is critical from
that side of the house.

I am not acting as a member of the Finance Committee or any-
thing else, but in a period of budget constraints and the problems

Vtj
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that you individually and collectively will face, the Reserve is goingto be given greater and greater responsibilities in terms of the totalforde, and- rightly-so. Welea we are going to have to make abso-
lutely certain that we don't cut, in any way, those incentives or doanything that would make it more difficult for the Reservist citizensoldier, with .his family responsibilities, his job responsibilities, his
community responsibilities,' as well as his national responsibilities
for defense.

I would add a caveat. I think, without question, we must be verycarefUl and changingI don't like to use the word "tinkering?'
withthe bill-yoir have passed. I am refeffering to the two or threeor changes You have talked. about here. It is a faCt that all the'record is good. 'Everything you have heard from every direction is
geed. SO I think-you must be very careful and very cautious in thisperiod of budgetconstraints, et cetera, that you do not do anythingthat will mean a greater charge on the dollars by increasing thebeix:.fits.

If it is working great now, then yOu must be very careful in-terms of increasing whatever those benefits are or should be. Evenif all of us would agree that change would be good and might help,I think we have to be very, very careful in analyzing and consider-
ing any change in any way. It is good: now; it is working: now, sobefore we start changing .anything we must be very, very careful.I will just use one single illustration. I think everybody,basically
agreed that the decision period is a problem. I understanding thatall the young GIs, reservists and actives, thought the period oughtto be extended. There are inherent problems with that when youanalyze it. On the surface it would appear to be a great thing. Firstof .all, you get the .adMinistrative problemaWe .heard the younglady talk about theni.

When you change. from the Veteran's Administration lo some-where else, we have to start up all over again. We are all for theNew GI. Bill; it is good, it has worked. In a time of budget con-straint let's be very ,careful about doing things differen4.. unless weknow absolutely, one, that the changes are going to better the pro-gram without any question, and two,_that we are not going to raninto a buzz saw in that "other House", as Chairman Montgomeryreferred to it. We need the program as it is now. If it can be im-
proved upon, that is great but let's don't run-Any risk in the proc-ess.

[The prepared statement of General Hultman appears on p. 200.]Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Montgomery.
Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to thank our panel. Maybe some of them would liketo comment. Mr. Johnson, this is the first time I have ever heardyou be quiet.
Mr. JOHNSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate tla.D.I made a special effort not to say anything. But now that youhave opened the door, sir
Mr. MONTGOMERY. You might pull that microphone up.
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STATEMENT OF RICHARD W. JOHNSON

Mr. Jomrsox. If I may comment it would only be to echo what so
many. others have;said,.and that is that we need to make the pro-
gram permanent: I do that on the top T want to thank you
for inviting NCO& to come-along on the trip.

I think we identified a, couple of .administrative problems that
the committee .couldTenceurarze the Department of ,Defense to cor-
rect. One we noticed the more simple the presentation given
the recruits, the &Ater the enrollment in the program.

The more information we clouded the minds of the young people
With, the less likely they are to understand whatthey are enrolling
in. In one case; there was a kid that stood up and asked if he had
to pay for his own in-service occupational training.

He was .so-confused by the education presentation that he got
that bee's down in Florida.

I think that is unfortunate. I think we should advise DOD to give
a more simple presentation.

I think that _would help enrollment. At the same time I think we
should advise DOD to amend their regulations requiring decisions
within the first 14 daYsto a required decision before the end of
-basic-training. ObVioaslyr before but not within those first 14 days.

Aside from -that, Mr. Chairman, I once again extend my appre-
ciation to, you for inviting NCOA along.

[The prepared statement of the Non. Commissioned Officers Asso-
ciation of the United States of America appears on p. 207.]

STATEMENT OF GEN. WILLIAM R. BERKMAN

General 'BERKMAN, Mr. Chairman, I would like to 'explain the
"fact I am the only witness in uniform at this table. I am the Mili-
tary Executive of the'Reserve Forces Policy Board within the Office
the Secretary of Defense.

That is aboardboard that is chaired by the Honorable Will Hill Tan -
kersley, and its membership is composed, of general and flag officers
of each of the services, Active and Reserve components, including
the National Guard, and the Assistant Secretaries for. Reserve Af-
fairs of each service.

The current report of the Board has just been sent by the Secre-
tary of Defense to the President. It is currently _being printed and
it will be distributed to each member of this committee, and the
entire House. In their report the board points out. that "one of the
most critical factors in achieving force readiness is the ability to
meet the Selected Reserve manpower requirementsboth in num-
bers and in quality in no small part." Undeniably recruiting and
retention successes are-dile to incentives such as the New GI Bill.

That is the reason that the ReServe Forces Policy Board has sup-
ported the New GI Bill and for over 2 years has recommended that
it be continued and made perManent legislation.

As a matter-of fact, I think it is significant that, not only repre-
sentatives that you have 'heard today, Generals Dean, Cheatham,
and chief Oberiniller, and Generals Mirchant, McMerty, Stroud,
but representatives that we heard on the field trip from the Re-
serve components at Lackland Air Force Base, Orlando Naval Sta-
tion, Fort Knox, and Parris Island, without exception they all em-
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phasized:_the importance of the New GI Bill in supporting the im-
provements that the Reserve componentsare experiencing not only-in recruiting but also retention.

>I4ippreciate the opportunitY-tO,provide the position taken by the
Reeihre Forces Policy Board and to commend 'You and Chairman
Montgomery luid :members of the-olbcOmthittee and the entire
committee for what You Ifisie done for the Reserve components in
the New.GI Bill for theSelectedSeserve.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared 'statement of General- Berkman appears on p. 205.]
'Mr. MONTGOMERY. Mr. Chairman, my time has expired, could Ihaie.3 more minutes?
These gentlethen did go on the trip with-us and
.Mr. DOWDY. Without objection.
-Mr. MONTGOMERY [continuing]. And it would-'be helpful to share

their experiences. Charlie Buesener?.

-STATEMENT OF CAFZ CHARLES BUESENER
Captain BUESENER. As the only sailor in the group, and not toofar removed as commanding officer of the largest Air and Marine

Corp Air Reserve Station on the East Coast, I would like to make
these short observations.

The -Reserve is the most; ioluntary of all voluntary forces. If the
reservist doesn't like you yegardless of whether you have approYed
theth for reenlistment, he tells you by never again showing up.Unlike the active duty p bPle we have no-hold -over these people.
Item 2,, the Naval Air Reserve and Marine Corps &Serve- training
cycle-is essentially a 3 -year -cycle for the selected reservist. This isdue to the complexity of the weapons systems, also the length ofsome of the schooling.

It is most discouraging to invest in an individual Ph or 2 yearsof training and then have him opt net to stay. Force manpower sta-
bility is the most im'po'rtant-element in Reserve force readiness.

The Reserve portion of the GI bill is easily going to be paid forby the 6- ear enlistment obligation. When we talk about air crew,the payoff is even more quickly achieved.
A' typical enlisted aircrew -requires about 50 to 100 hours of airtime at $1,000 an hour to get-qualified in a key crew slot. This manonboard for 6 years is truly a rapid pay back for the investment.
Also, I would like to say that at NAS Willow Grove, I also had

1,100 active duty full-time sailors and marines onboard the base. Iwould recommend in your deliberations that you consider verycarefully not changing the GI bill from coming under the VA Ad-
ministration. If you will, all- too often the sad history of military
reenlistment bonuses has taken in the sailors' mind the aspects ofa flesh market bonus.

As soon as the pyramid is filled up the bonus disappears. It is anappropriate type of thing.
I think we have to strongly stress to- these people that onceearned this is a vested entitlement and it is not subject to the va-garities of inventory -fill, of reaching our goal and short-term reen-listment quotas. It is there and there will remain forever untilused.
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Therefore, I mould urge it not to be linked so strongly with other
recruitment incentives although° I will admit that it functions in
much the same way.

&final comment because I am talking longer here, the Naval Re-
serve and the NavalAir Reeerve, are going togrow 20,000 addition-
al people in the next 2to 3 years, 20,000 selected reservists. This is
exclusively .high-tech growth primarily due to the large increase in
health care professionals and a migration of more and more sophis-
ticated 'equipment into the Reserve forces.

The GI bill is absolutely tailored to provide the -hi -tech bodies not
only qualitatively but quantitatively. We have to get people in and
retain theni, People that we can teach once and build the next
month on what they learn this month, and not repeat the same
train. As we.had.to do in the past.

Thank you very much.
prepared statement of Captain Buesener appears on p. 211.]

Mr. MONTGOMERY. Thank you.
Rudy?
Mr CLARK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Om/ comment, of course- -
Mr. MONTGOMERY: Would you tell us who you represent?

STATEMENT OF RUDY I. CLARK

Mr. CLARK. The Air Force Sergeants Association, sir. It is a
shame we couldn't have gotten 315 more bills in the hopper. We
got so use to stomping H.R.-1400 it is hard to remember to say H.R.
1085, but we will work it.

The Air Force hates to-be last in any program and as you heard
General Hickey say, there are incentives being built and we hope
that the next time we have an opportunity to speak to you that we
will be able to say that we are with the other services with regards
to participation rates.

Thank you very much for having us on the trip.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Clark appears on p. 217.]

STATEMENT OF RONALD HAYDEN

Mr. HAYDEN. On behalf of the 57,000 Navy Leaguers in the
Nation, we have this bill as a substance of our national resolution.
We wholeheartedly support it.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. From the Navy League, Thank you very
much.

General Vern Webber, was on the trip.
Vern, do you want to come to the mike rind make a statement?
[The prepared statement of Mr. Hayden F ppears at p. 236.]

STATEMENT OF GEN. VERN WEBBER, NATIONAL GUARD
ASSOCIATION

Mr. WEBBER. Mr. Chairman, first let me on behalf of my travel-
ing companions and associates express to you, to Chairman Dowdy,
to Mr. Solomon, .to Richard, Mack Karen and Jill, we just had a
great time. That is a rare opportunity that anyone in the military
has an opportunity to travel with such a distinguished groups of
members of this prestigious committee.
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We appreciate it very, very much, and -Want to thank you onbehalf of all of my group.
.First, in response to' your earlier concern, Chairman Montgom-

ery;, for the:NationaL Guard Association we in the Army and AirNational Guard depend' heavily on the indhidual who leave the
active. services for whatever reason. We rely on them to come into
the Army and Air National Guard.

SO from a very parochial view we have an interest in the activeservices and the New GI Bill, as it pertains to them. So, you cancount on our =association tocome out full - power -in support of the
continuation Or the permanency of the GI bill, and we will support
the active Part of that.

would like lo take just a moment to inject one additional item
into this somewhat complex equation that we discussed here today.That has -to- do with the readiness of the Army and Air NationalGuard units'.

There are two .elements to readiness, one is the manpower, wehave talked to that at great length here today. As a reminder letme tell you that in the past 10 years, the Array National Guard
has grown approximately 100,000 in end strength. The Air Nation-

Guard, aprroximatelY-20,000. Thus, the influence of the New GIBill on the manning.
The other element is that of our readiness of our units to meetthe new demands for deployment readiness, mobilization readiness,if you will.
What I am saying is that we have to have the high caliber youngmen and women come into our unit to deal with it, as was statedhere, the high-tech environment in which we are in.
These are demanding MOSS and AFDCs that we have in theArmy Air National Guard. We need to have quality people. We aregetting the quality people thank to the GI bill.
As Mr. Mensel had said earlier; that this is a,great plus for theGuard and the Reserve as our, members on a somewhat day to daybasis are able to pursue their civilian education under the New GIBill at the same time they are performing that most demanding as-signment in the Air Army and Air National Guard.
Thank you again for the opportunity to make the trip and to behere today with you.
[The prepared statement of the National Guard Association ap-pears on p. 184.1
Mr. DOWDY. Colonel Partridge; we had the pleasure of General

Pennington being with us on the trip. Do you have any commentsyou would like to make in his absence?

STATEMENT OF COL. CHARLES C. PARTIDGE
Colonel PARTRIDGE. Yeg. He wants me to thank you for invitinghim on that trip. He has worked many, many years on this pro-

gram with this committee back in the early days before the NewGI Bill was passed.
He said that the trip confirmed his belief that it is the most im-portant recruiting and readjustment program that the Nation has.
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He strongly supports it, strongly urges the VA to continue han-
dling the' basic benefit with DOD providing the kickers as neces-
sary and would oppose any reduction in the benefit.

We agree with- General Hultman let's go ahead and get this bill
through for the young men and women coming in to the services
now. Adjuitments in,tlie program can be made later.

Thank you very much.
[The Trepared statement of Colonel Partridge appears on p. 214.1
Mr. DOWDY. Mi.Solomon.
Mr, SOLOMON. First of all, let me thank all of you on the panel

for coming before and also those of you who participated un the
trip.

',guess the message I am getting here is that we don't want to
cut anything or do anything that would make it more difficult for
men and women to serve in the Armed Forces of this country.

There is a resurgence of patriotism in this country like we
haven't seen in a long, long time. You can see it in high schools, on
the streets, in college -campuses. ROTC is no longer- a dirty word; it
is a good word, and that is the Way it should be.

If we are going to support this All-Volunteer Army, the regular
armies and military, and we must, it is iniperative to have a strong
Reserve to back it up. That is what has been happening in recent
yeats with these benefits.

I think, Captain Buesener, you pointed out the big difference be-
tween the other incentives and the GI bill, of a one-time bonus for
re-upping compared to the GI bill which is under the Veterans' Ad-
ministration, and that is where it should be, because it is an entire-
ly different issue.

I am pleased that we have unanimity from all of your organiza-
tions that think we ought to leave that with the Veterans' Admin-
istration. Certainly Mr. Montgomery, Wayne Dowdy and the other
members think so, and that is going to be tremendously helpful for
us. That is one of the prishes we really need in order to succeed.

I guess with that, I want to thank you for coming before the com-
mittee.

Mr. DOWDY. Ms. Patterson.
Ms, PATTERSON. Mr. Chairman, ti, a only remark I would have at

this time, as I have gone through tziis afternoon I have regretted
more and more I was not on the trip, not only for what we learned
but for the entertainment we received from those who were there
and shared with us their conversation:

I think this has pointed out .the importance of education, and
that is why I am enjoying serving on this committee, is that educa-
tion is important, well, to the life and well-being of our country,
and we certainly need to give, incentives to our men and women
who want to serve tocontinue their education.

Mr. MONTGOMERY. We are sorry she couldn't make the trip, but
we are glad her husband is .here today. We are glad to have Mr.
Patterson here from South Carolina. Liz said you are checking on
her.

Mr. DOWDY. We want to thank each of the witnesses on the
panel. Thank you very much.

At this time we will call the last panel for the day.
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STATEMENTS OF JOSEPH E. MILLER, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, NA-
TIONAL LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION AND MICHAEL SCHLEE, DI-
RECTOR, NATIONAL° SECURITY AND FOREIGN RELATIONS COM-
MISSION, THE AMERICAN LEGION; RICHARD SCHULTZ, ASSOCI-
ATE ,NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR, DISABLED AMERICAN
VETERANS; BOB MORAN, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR,
PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA; AND DENNIS M. CUL-
LINAN, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, NATIONAL LEGISLATIVE SERV-
ICES,;VETERANS' OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STATES
Mr. DOWDY. We want to thank all of you for your presence here

today. Before I call on you, I want to thank the chairman of the
full committee, the ranking member, Mr. Solomon, Mrs. Patterson,
and the members of the other committees who have been present
today.

I think that you can see, since you have been here as long as wehave, that there is a lot of interest in this legislation.
So hiving said that Mr. Cullinan, we will start with you. What

would you add to what has already been said?
Let me ask you this again. We found out that the program, as it

is presently set up, seems to be working pretty well. There wereSome exceptions to that, but as a general rule we have been told
that the program seems to work the way administratively it is setup now.

Do ybu have an opinion to the contrary?

STATEMENT OF DENNIS M. CULLINAN
Mr. CULLINAN. Certainly not to the contrary. The one observa-tion I would make, we are interested in having the program made

permanent. Thus, we would hold back with any suggestions for re-
finements until some later date.

One concern I would voice at this point in time is that we thinkthe Veterans' Administration should retain the funding for the
program. Certainly the initial benefit, and that that shouldn't bechanged. We see that only as being detrimental to the program andto veterans.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Cullinan appears on p. 219.]
Mr. DOWDY. Let me ask the other members. Do any of you have

any reason to say that there should be changes in the program ad-
ministratively? Do you, from your membership, hear that the pro-
gram is not working? Do you know anything different from what I
was told last week that checks get there on time and administra-tively the program runs pretty well?

STATEMENT OF BOB MORAN
Mr. MORAN. First, I would like to say Gordon Mansfield from

PVA appreciated the opportunity going on the trip with the mem-bers.
The only comment I think we would like to make is the time

frame for operating into the program. There was concern it was alittle too soon. Some of them weren't clearly understanding that.
That was a problem.

64,1
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I think some of the concerns brought up today about the dollar
amount paid into may be lowering it and extending it over a period
of time. That is the only two comments that we really have.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Schultz.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Moran appears on p. 224.]

STATEMENT OF RICHARD SCHULTZ

Mr. ScHum. Mr. ChRixman, we really haven't heard anything
from our people out in the field as to any problems they are
having, and we have no suggestions as far as any changes in the
program as currently administered.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Schultz appears on p. 227.]
Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Schlee.

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL SCHLEE

Mr. SCHLEE. First of all, I would like to say it was a pleasure, Mr.
Chairman, and you Mr. Montgomery, sir, which I learned in Paris
Island, to be on the trip with you. I would like to take a few m_ o-
ments to give you some of my observations on the trip.

I spent'pent a year in 1966 training troops at Fort Jackson where you
were on the October trip, 5 years in the early 1970's, training, Na-
tional Guard troops. I think the men and women I saw dowirthere,
are by far the best caliber I have ever addressed.

I think we should bear in mind one fact, though. They are, in`-
fact, 18 years old, and as far as the curriculum goes, two strong
suggestions I have is, number one, perhaps I didn't pick it up, but
no where in the training is it mentioned the number of VA-ap-
proved facilities, which is close to 8,000: I think an 18-year-old
would want to know the numbers and the types of facilities, and it
would be enhancement to his consideration of the GI bill.

Additionally, I know Chairman Mongtomery has alluded to ,this,
whether we.go with the $100 or $50 a month contribution-I don't
think there was enough emphasis for 18- or 19-year-olds on what
the true tax benefit is. I think the chairman.said $70 or less.

In my personal case, 15 percent at the lowest levelt.State;and
FICA, it is a 30-percent reduction. So we are talking about 70 true,
bread and butter on the table dollars. Or in the case of $50;only 30
bucks.

Again, I express my appreciation to both the chairman, both
chairmen, and all the traveling companions. It is the first time I
have done this, and it was a most impressive trip, well organized,
and I think we learned a heck of a lot.

I think it was organized where we could get down to the hearts
and souls and how the troops, both men and women, really feel in
the Armed Forces today.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Miller, are you aware of any problems adminis-
tratively in terms of the checks getting to those who participate in
the program?

STATEMENT OF JOSEPH E. MILLER

Mr. MILLER. Mr. Chairman, I think we have to understandmy
understanding is there has been approximately 147,000 reservists
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go through the program but very few active duty people at thispoint are eligible.
In fiscal year 1987, there will be approximately 800 people into

the program, and I think at the end of 1987 we will be able to
better judge just how well the VA has managed to provide that
kind of administrative support.

Certainly, there were problems in the.past;.,but those are alwaysstart-up problems,, problems with forms':iiiit being where they are
supposed to be, and I myself went to school',Under the GI bill, and I
am aware the VA can remedy those probleins when they are made,
when they are aware they exist.

I think we have to reserve judgment on probleiiik until we have
had a substantial number of people start into the-program and see
if there is something consistently wrong.

[The prepared statement of the American Legion appears on p.
229.]

Mr. MONTGOMERY. Mr. Chairman, I would like to take this oppor-
tunity to thank the veterans' organizations for being liere today
and testifying, and also for having representation on the trig.

Every major veterans' organization was represented' there. I
think in the long run, having the VA administer the program- and
handle the program. These young men and women each month
under the GI bill, after they start using the GI bill, they will get a
check from the Veterans' Administration.

Even though they will eventually be veteransand let's hope all.
of them stay peace time veteransI think it strengthens our POSi-"
tion, especially this committee, when we have educated veterans
out there that back the programs we must oversee. A number of
these peacetime veterans are going to be members of Congress
some day. They are goilig, to recall they got their check from the
Veterans' Administration, aid they are veterans.

So, I think it is a good home run for us. It is administered by the
VA. They have the experience. It has been done for 50 years like
that now, 40 years. That is the way it ought to stay.

Thank you again, veterans' organizations, for helping us out on
this very important piece of legislation.

Mr. DOWDY. Mr. Solomon.
Mr. SOLOMON. I just want to concur again with what Congress-

man Montgomery has said. We want to thank you for sticking
around and being last. It is not because you are not just as impor-
tant as the others; you certainly are.

Again, we appreciate your being on the trip with us and all of
you, and I think maybe next year we can do the same thing over
again when we start filling in the nuts and bolts on any changes
that need to be made.

We appreciate it. Thanks very much.
Mr. DOWDY. Mrs. Patterson.
Mrs. PARSON. No questions.
Mr. DOWDY. We thank you very much for being here this after-

noon and for your assistance.
If there are no ether witnesses before the committee, the hearing

stands adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 4:15 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned, sub-

ject to the call of the Chair.]
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APPENDIX

100TH CONGRESS 11
1wr SESSION H. R. 1085

To amend title 38, United Stamm Code, to make permanent the new GI bill
educational assistance programs established by chapter 30 of such title, and
for other purposes.

IN TILE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FEBRUARY 11, 1987

Mr. Mowroomant. (for himself, Mr. SOLOMON, Mr. DOWDY of Mississippi, Mr.
Swam of New Jersey, Mrs. PATTERSON, Mr. WYLIE, Mr. Joan, Mr.
RIDGE, Mr. EVANS, Mr. DORMAN of California, Ms. KAPTUR, Mr. SUN-
HOLM, Mr. KINNIDY, Mr: EDWARDS of California, Mr. HAMMERSOIDGDT,
Mr. APPLEOATS, Mr. STUMP, Mr. MIOA, Mr. MoBwEN, Mr. PENNY, Mr.
BURTON of Indiana, Mr. STAGGERS, Mr. Buzzing, Mr. ROWLAND of
Georgia, Mr. RowLato of Connecticut, Mr. BRYANT, Mr. Swat of New
Hampshire, Mr. FLORID, Mr. Dens of Illinois, Mr. GRAY of Illinois, Mr.
BANJO/13XL Mr. RonmisoN, Mr. HARRIS, Mr. Join:sox of South Dakota,
Mr. Palos of Bind% Mr. 'Thowunxii, Mr. Bistorwrr, Mr. SPENCE, Mr.
STRATTON, Mr. &DRAM, Mr. Nxittom, Mr. Homan, Mr. Demist, Mr.
DAVIS of IfichIgan, Mr. Dimwits, Mr. Huziniii, Mrs. SCHROEDER, Mr.
MARTIN of New York, Mrs. Bnox, Mr. BASICS, Mr. Mammas, Mr.
BATSMAN, Mr. Hurro, Mr. SWRSNEY, Mr. SKII/fON, Mr. BLAB, Mr.
LEATH of Texas, Mr. IRELAND, Mr. MCCURDY, Mr. HANSEN, Mr. FOOLI-
STTA, Mr. WELDOR, Mr. Thrsox, Mr. Itn, Mr. HERTEL of Michigan, Mr.
BAVENEL, Mrs. LLOYD, Mr. SISISKY, Mr. RAY, Mr. SPRAT?, Mr. MOCLOS-
E3Y, Mr. ORTIZ, Mr. DARDEN, Mr. BUSTAMANTR, Mrs. Bonin, Mr. HOCII-
BRIIIICENIR, Mr. BRENNAN, Mr. PIOEETT, Mr. QUILLEN, Mr. JENsurs,
Mr. Harmin, Mr. LANCASTER, Mr. RAIEALL, Mr. Plums, Mr. Huowenr,
Mr. VALlwriara, Mr. HUBBARD, Mr. Rozxsz, Mr. HALL of Texas, Mr.
BODING, Mr. BONER of Tennessee, Mr. LENT, Mr. LAGOMAR81110, Mr.
LUJAN, Mrs. Swart of Nebraska, Mr. Comm; of Texas, Mrs. Commis,
Mr. DE LA GARZA, Mr. STAEGELAND, Mr. JACOBS, Mr. GAIDOS, Mr. GON-
ZALEZ, Mr. MOLLOBAN, Mr. Diana, Mr. LIPINSICI, Mr. PEPPER, Mr.
Now/w, Mr. ATEINS, Mr. MORRISON of Connecticut, Mr. MACK, Mr.
BAKER, Mr. Louortsx, Mr. Ox sr, Mr. lifului of Indiana, Mr. Mummies,
Mr. LOWERY of California, Mr. Wou, Mr. YOUNO of Florida, Mr. Rios-
ARDSON, Mr. KOSTMATIR, Mr. GRANDY, Mr. SINSENBRENNER, Mr.
hum, Mr. Dowwzr of New York, Mrs. B000s, Mr. Bantx, Mr. Wowr-
LEY, Mr. MANTON, Mr. DAUB; Mr. HUMS, Mr. TRAILER, Mr. Conn%
Mrs. BRUNELLE, Mr. MoGnAns, Mr. Fuss, Mr. Ron, Mr. PARRIS, Mr.
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Sims of Florida, Mr. ',must of Florida, Mr. Maim's, Mrs. BENTLEY,
Mr. TROMPS A. LUKEN, Mr. GLICKMAN, Mr. WILLIAMS, Mr. EMERSON,
Mr. HWYE1 of New Jersey, Mr. Omiong, Mr. RZOULA, Mr. KLICZYCA, Mr.
YATION, Mr. NDILSON of Utah, Mr. VISCLO8KT, Mr. FROST, Mr. SCHU-
KBE, Mr. Tome, Mr:FAZIO, Mr. MURPHY, Mr. SCHRUE1, Mr. FRIOHAN,
Mr. PAtorm, Mr. Vino, Mr. THOMAS of Georgia, Mr. HOWARD, Mr.
Bus, Mr. ECICART, Mr. DIXON, Mr. ROTRAL, Mr. SUNDQUIST, MN. JOHN-
SON of 04RDOCIi0Ut, Mr. MOLINARI, Mr. GALLO, Mr. WOLPI, Mr. TOWNS,
and Mr. Kumzi) introduoed the following bill; which was referred jointly to
the Committees on Veterans' Affairs and Armed Services

A BILL
To wuend title 38, United States Code, to make permanent the

new GI bill educational assistance programs established by

chapter 30 of such title, and for other purposes.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 lives of the United Stales of America in Congress assembled,

3 SECTION I. ELIMINATION OF TEMPORAL RESTRICTIONS ON

4 AVAILABILITY OF NEW GI BILL EDUCATIONAL

5 ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS.

6 (a) ACTIVE DUTY PROGRAM. Section 1411(aX1XA)

7 title 38, United States Code, is amended by striking out

8 "during the period beginning on July 1, 1985, and ending on

9 June 30, 1988," and inserting in lieu thereof "after June 30,

10 1985,".

11 (b) ACTIVE DUTY AND SELECTED RESERVE PRO-

12 GRAM.Section 1412(aX1XA) of such title is amended by

13 striking out "during the period beginning on July 1, 1985,

dt 111i
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1 and ending on June 30, 1988," and inserting in lieu thereof

2 "after June 30, 1985,".

3 (o) SELECTED RESERVE PROGEMILSection

4 2132(aX1) of title 10, United States Code, is amended by

5 striking out "during the period beginning on July 1, 1985,

6 and ending on June 30, 1988" and inserting in lieu thereof

'1 "eter June 30, 1985".

Ill MS 66
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OPENING STATEMENT OF

HONORABLE WAYNE DOWDY, CHAIRMAN

SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION,

TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT

HEARING ON H.R:1085

FEBRUARY 18, 1987
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GOOD AFTERNOON, LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, AND

WELCOME TO THE FIRST HEARING OF THE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND

EMPLOYMENT IN THE 100TH CONGRESS. WE ARE

MEETING TODAY TO REVIEW H.R. 1085, A BILL

AUTHORED BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL COMMITTEE,

SONNY MONTGOMERY, AND COSPONSORED BY 174

MEMBERS OF THE HOUSE. THIS BILL WOULD MAKE

PERMANENT THE EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

FOR MEMBERS OF THE ALL VOLUNTEER FORCE UNDER

CHAPTER 30 OF TITLE 38, AND THE PROGRAM OF

EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE

SELECTED RESERVE UNDER CHAPTER 106 OF TITLE 10.

TOGETHER, THESE PROGRAMS ARE GENERALLY KNOWN A

THE NEW GI BILL

t
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DURING THE PAST SEVERAL YEARS, TWO ISSUES

OF PARTICULAR CONCERN HAVE BEEN WIDELY DEBATED

IN THIS COUNTRY. THE FIRST IS THE IMPORTANCE

AND AVAILABILITY sOF,HIGH QUALITY. EDUCATION FOR

OUR NATION'S CITIZENS. THE SECOND IS ACHIEVING

AND MAINTAINING A STRONG NATIONAL DEFENSE. WITH

Ti-E, ENACTMENT OF THE NEW GI BILL IN OCTOBER,

1384, THE CONGRESS TOOK AN-IMPORTANT STEP

TOWARD ADDRESSING. BOTH ISSUES. THE NEW GI BILL

PROVIDES,AN EXCELLENT OPPORTUNITY FOR

POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION AND TRAINING TO

THOUSANDS OF YOUNG PEOPLE WHO, BUT FOR THIS

PROGRAM, MIGHT 'NOT BE ABLE TO FURTHER THEIR

EDUCATION. AT THE SAME TIME, THE NEW GI BILL

PROVIDES A COSTEFFECTIVE MEANS TO STRENGTHEN

OUR NATIONAL DEFENSE BY RECRUITING HIGH QUALITY

YOUNG MEN AND WOMEN.



65

-4-
LAST WEEK, I VISITED SERVICE TRAINING BASES

WITH CHAIRMAN° MONTGOMERY AND MANY OF THE

INDIVIDUALS WHO WILL. BE TESTIFYING BEFORE THE

SUBCOMMITTEE LATER TODAY. 1 WAS IMPRESSED BY

THE ENTHUSIASM EXPRESSED FOR. THE NEW GI BILL BY

ThOSE IN POSITIONS OF COMMAND. I WAS EVEN MORE

IMPRESSED, HOWEVER, BY THE. INTEREST IN. THE

PROGRAM. SHOWN BY THE YOUNG RECRUITS. BY THEIR

QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS, THESE YOUNG PEOPLE

DEMONSTRATED A DEEP APPRECIATION FOR THE

IMPORTANCE OF EDUCATION, IN THEIR LIVES Att.LD A

DEFINITE ABILITY TO KNOW A GOOD DEAL WHEN THEY

SEE IT. AT FORT KNOX, THE. STATEMENT WAS MADE,

NIF YOU GIVE A RECRUIT A DOLLAR TODAY, IT WILL

BE GONE TOMORROW. IF YOU GIVE A RECRUIT AN

EDUCATION, IT WILL BE WITH THAT RECRUIT THE

REST OF HIS LIFE." THE YOUNG PEOPLE WE MET

70
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-UNDERSTAND THE, TRUTH AND WISDOM, IN THAT

STATEMENT AND ARE GRATEFUL THAT IN EXCHANGE FOR

HONORABLE SERVICE, THEY WILL 'BE PROVIDED THE

MEANS TO PURSUE FURTHER EDUCATION AND INCREASE

THEIR SKILLS.

OUR NEWEST SERVICEMEMBERS ARE BRIGHT,

AMBITIOUS;:AND EAGER TO;SERVE THEIR COUNTRY.

THEY ARE -ALSO'ENTER1NG THE MILITARY TO,GET AN

EDUCATION, AND THEY KNOW THE NEW GI BILL IS ONE

OF THE MOST EFFECTIVE PROGRAMS AVAILABLE TO

THEM.

71
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THEY KNOW THAT IF THEY CHOOSE TO LEAVE THE

SERVICE AFTER COMPLETION OF THEIR ENLISTMENT,

THE NEW GI BILL WILL ASSIST THEM IN THEIR

READJUSTMENT TO CIVILIAN LIFE. THEY ALSO KNOW

THAT IF THEY CHOOSE TO STAY IN THE MILITARY,

THEY CAN USE THEIR EDUCATION BENEFITS WHILE

THEY ARE ON ACTIVE DUTY. THE MEN AND WOMEN WE

MET Ar:3 TALKED WITH LAST WEEK ARE THE FUTURE

LEADERS OF OUR NATION MILITARY LEADERS,

COMMUNITY LEADERS, AND NATIONAL LEADERS - AND

CAN ASSURE YOU OUR "I JTURE IS IN GOOD HANDS.

72
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IN THE DEMOCRATIC RESPONSE TO THE

PRESIDENT'S STATE OF THE UNION MESSAGE LAST

MONTH, THE SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE, JIM WRIGH r,

STRESSED THAT, IN THE 100TH CONGRESS, EDUCATION

WOULD BE IN ITS RIGHTFUL PLACE AT THE PINNACLE

OF OUR NATIONAL PRIORITIES. HE POINTED OUT THAT

THE BEST FINANCIAL INVESTMENT THIS COUNTRY EVER

MADE WAS THE GI BILL ESTABLISHED AT THE END OF

WORLD WAR II. WE ON THIS COMMITTEE AGREE WITH

THE SPEAKER AND KNOW THAT THE NEW GI BILL WILL

PROVIDE THE SAME DIVIDENDS AS DID ITS

PREDECESSORS DIVIDENDS TO THE SERVICEMEMBERS,

TO THE ARMED FORCES, AND TO THE NATION.

73
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THERE IS BROAD, BIPARTISAN SUPPORT FOR

CONTINUATION OF THE NEW:GI BILL IN BOTH THE

HOUSE AND SENATE. THE SENATE VETERANS' AFFAIRS

COMMITTEE HELD HEARINGS ON THIS ISSUE EARLIER

THIS MONTH, AND SENATOR CRANSTON AND SENATOR

MURKOWSKI HAVE LONG BEEN STAUNCH ADVOCATE' OF

THE NEW GI BILL THE TIME FOR TESTING IS OVER.

THE TIME HAS COME TO MAKE THE NEW GI BILL A

PERMANENT PROGRAM.

BEFORE WE PROCEED TO OUR FIRST WITNESS, I

WANT TO GIVE THE RANKING MINORITY MEMBER OF

THIS SUBCOMMITTEE, CHRIS SMITH OF NEW JERSEY,

AN OPPORTUNITY TO MAKE A STATEMENT. CHRIS, I

LOOK FORWARD TO WORKING CLOSELY WITH YOU DURN

THE 100TH CONGRESS.
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OUR FIRST WITNESS TODAY WILL BE THE

DISTINGUISHED CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL COMMITTEE,

G. V. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY. SONNY, I AM HONORED

TO HAVE YOU AS OUR LEAD-OFF WITNESS. YOU ARE

THE-FATHER AND CHIEF ARCHITECT OF THE NEW GI

BILL AND WE ALL LOOK FORWARD TO YOUR

TESTIMONY.

75
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RECORD STATEMENT OF

HONORABLE G. V. (SONNY) MONTGOMERY

H.R. 1085

FEBRUARY 18, 1987

Mr. Chairman, I want to congratulate you

on assuming the chairmanship of the

Subcommittee on Education, Training and

Employment. I also appreciate the priority you

have given to holding hearings on making the

New GI Bill permanent. H.R. 1085 makes no other

changes to the existing program. 174 of our

colleagues have joined as cosponsors of our

bill.

The future of the New GI Bill is one of

the most critical issues we must act on this

Session. Since H.R. 1085 was jointly referred

to the Armed Services Committee, I hope to get

:early action over there and have the bill to

the Floor by the end of March. I am optimistic

that we care complete action on H.R. 1085 in

record time.
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Wayne, you and, several other members of

the Education Subcommittee, along with

representatives of military associations and

veterans organizations/were with me last week

on our visit to service training bases where we

had the opportunitrtcrobserve, first hand, the

enthusiasm for the New GI Bill expressed by

base commanders, recruiters, trainers and,

especially, the recruits themselves. I know you

will agree with me that those in the best

position to evaluate this program give it an

A+.
It is. succeeding as a readjustment benefit

for the servicemembers, as a powerful

recruitment tool for all the services, and as a

program which is going to greatly benefit the

nation as a whole.

On October 19, 1984, the New GI Bill was

signed into law. It was a day that marked the

culmination of more than four years of hard

work on both sides of Capitol Hill to further

ensure the Nation's strength and security.

Already, we can look back on that day as one of

the most important in the history of our

country's Armed Forces.
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On January 28, 1981, l' first introduced

H.R. 1400, a bill to establish the New GI Bill.

Prior to that date, we had worked for over

eight-months with the military service

departments to. lay the groundwork for this

legislative proposal. It has proven to be time

well spent.

The New GI Bill is fulfilling the purposes

set out by Congress. First and foremost, it

will assist in the readjustment of members of

the Armed Forces to civilian life after their

separation from military service: It is

providing education assistance for tens of

thousands of young men and women who otherwise

might not be able to go to college or pursue

other post-secondary training.
A first century philosopher observed,

"Only the educated are free." This statement is

no less true" as we move into the.21st century,

and it is our responsibility to enable those

who willingly protect our freedom to also

pursue their personal freedom and

self-improvement through education.

In addition to facilitating service-

members' readjustment, the New GI Bill is

designed to attract high quality personnel to

the active and reserve components of the Armed

Forces.

78
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Mr. Chairman, participation rates in all

branches of ,military service confirm the New GI

Bill's value to the young people volunteering

to serve in our country's armed forces. The

latest available statistics show that 84

percent of, all new Army recruits are now

participating in the New GI Bill. The Navy is

signing 54 percent of its recruits; 64 percent

of Marine Corps enlistees are opting for the

program; and,the Air:Force reports that 44

percent of its new recruits are enrolling.

Through the end of lDecember 1986, 43,130

members of. The Selected Reserve had already

initiated training under the New GI Bill..

Statistics compiled by the U.S. Army

dramatically demonstrate the recruiting power

of the New GI Bill. Today, more than 90 percent

of Army recruits are high school graduates

compared to 54 percent in 1980. The percentage

of recruits scoring in the uper half of the

Armed Forces Qualification Test (AFQT) jumped

from 26 to 63 percent during the same period.

"te
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Quality male recruits increased 10 percent

during the first year of the New GI Bill over

the final 12 months of VEAP, the previous

education program,, a program which proved to be

a dismal failure. Particularly impressive are

the statements of 43 percent of the high

quality recruits who said they would not have

joined the Army but for the educational

assistance benefits available under the New GI

Bill.
The first year impact of the New GI Bill

on Army Reserve recruitment has been equally

impressive. Army Reserve high quality. recruits

increased 24 percent and six-year enlistments

increased 28 percent over the year prior to the

implementation of this new program.

The other services are as enthusiastic as

the Army in their support for continuation of

the New GI Bill. The Air Force points to the

seven fold increase in New GI Bill

participation over VEAP and notes that most New

GI Bill participants are in mental categories I

and II.

83T
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Clearly, the smartest young people are

coming into the Air- Force to take advantge of

the available education benefits. Additionally,

the number one reason given for enlistment in

the Air Force Reserve is the New GI Bill. Both

the Marine Corps and the Navy rate this new

education assistance program as a critical.

component of their recruiting package.

Without the New GI Bill, the services

would be forced to compete with an expanding

job market and educational institutions in

order to attract high quality and larger

percentages from a shrinking pool of eligible

recruits. However, since the implementation of

the New GI Bill, and because of it, the

Congress and the military have forged a new,

stronger alliance with our community and junior

colleges, universities and training

instittMoris to ensure that those individuals

%ft desire to further their eductions may do

so, and may do so with the knowledge that they

earned it in service to their country.
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Several of our witnesses who, will testify

later this,aftemoon accompanied us when we

visited four training bases last week. I know

they gained a deeper insight into the

importance of the New GI Bill, as I did on this

and earrer visits. It is very important that

we get out of Washington and into the field so

that we can talk with those who really know

what's important to the recruits and the

services. Brigadier General Paul Funk,

Assistant Commandant of the Army Armor School

at Fort Knox, told us that he has commanded

troops in the 60's, 70's, and 80's. He says the

young people coming Into the Army today are the

best ever. According to General Funk, "The New

GI Bill has made the Army a great place to

soldier."

The AdjutPnt General of Kentucky, General

Billy Wellman, told us, wihe New GI Bill s:1 the

most attractive and important benefit we have

to offer... I don't know of any program more

important to the military Guard, Reserve, and

active force than the New GI Bill."

82L.
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Mr. Chairman, as far as I'm concerned,

statements like these and others we heard last

week make the case for establishing, the New GI

Bill as a permanent program. The mandate is

clear. With 174 original cosponsors, the

bipartisan support for I-I.R. 1085 is strong. I

urge swift action on this legislation. Thank

you, Mr. Chairman.
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STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE

CHRISTOPHER H. SMITH

BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON

EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND EMPLOYMENT

FEBRUARY 18, 1987

THANK YOU, MR. CHAIRMAN.

I COMMEND YOU FOR CALLING THIS HEARING AND

MARK-UP ON H.R. 1085, TO MAKE THE. NEW GI

BILL PROGRAM PERMANENT. THE DISTINGUISHED

CHAIRMAN OF OUR FULL COMMITTEE IS THE

FATHER OF THE NEW GI BILL WHICH IS NOW A

TEST PROGRAM. I THINK IT IS SIGNIFICANT

THAT EVERY MEMBER OF THE HOUSE VETERANS'

AFFAIRS COMMITTEE HAS CO-SPONSORED H.R.

. 1085.

4
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.MR. CHAIRMAN, WE KNOW FROM TALKING WITH

COMMANDERS AND NEW RECRUITS THAT THE NEW

GI BILL TEST PROGRAM HAS BEEN A TREMENDOUS

SUCCESS. RARELY HAVE I SEEN A LEVEL OF

ENTHUSIASM AND CONSENSUS FOR ANY

GOVERNMENT PROGRAM TO MATCH THAT WHICH

EXISTS FOR THE NEW GI BILL

THANKS IN LARGE PART TO IT, THE MILITARY

SERVICES HAVE THE HIGHEST QUALITY RECRUITS

EVER TO JOIN UP. AND EVERYBODY COMES OUT

A WINNER - THE RECRUIT, THE DEPARTMENT OF

DEFENSE, AND OUR NATION AS A WHOLE.

85
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IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN SUGGESTED FOR THE

NEW GI BILL AND POSSIBLE WAYS TO IMPROVE

THE PROGRAM ARE BEING CONSIDERED. HOWEVER,

I AGREE WITH MR. MONTGOMERY THAT WE OUGHT

TO KEEP FIRST THINGS FIRST, AND ELEVATE

THE PROGRAM FROM A TEST STATUS TO A

PERMANENT STATUS. THEN WE CAN CONSIDER

HOW TO MAKE A GREAT PROGRAM EVEN BETTER.

IT CERTAINLY IS OBVIOUS HOW I FEEL ABOUT

THE NEW G: 3ILL I AM GOING TO VOTE TO

MAKE IT PERMANENT.

is cj
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MR. CHAIRMAN, WE HAVE MANY WITNESSES WHO

ARE GOING TO TESTIFY ABOUT THE PROGRAM

THIS AFTERNOON. THOUGH THERE'S LITTLE

DOUBT ABOUT HOW OUR SUBCOMMITTEE MARK-UP

WILL GO, IT IS IMPORTANT FOR US TO

DEMONSTRATE THE STRENGTH AND DEPTH OF THE

SUPPORT FOR THE NEW GI BILL DOD AND VA

OFFICIALS, REPRESENTATIVES OF RESPECTED

MILITARY ASSOCIAT )NS AND VETERANS' GROUPS

WILL SHARE THEIR VALUABLE EXPERIENCE AND

INSIGHTS WITH US, AND I LOOK FORWARD TO

LEARNING WHAT THEY WILL HAVE TO SAY ON

THIS IMPORTANT SUBJECT.

THANK N OU, MR. CHAIRMAN.
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STATEMENT OF

R. J. VOGEL

CHIEF BENEFITS DIRECTOR

VETERANS ADMINISTRATION

'BEFORE THE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING

AND EMPLOYMENT

HOUSEOF REPRESENTATIVES

FEBRUARY 18, 1987

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee:

I am-pleased to appear here today to give you the views of the

Veterans Administration concerning legislation pending before

your Subcommittee which would make the t:ew GI Bill programs

permanent. Educational assistance programs under the New GI.

Bill are provided under title 38, United States.Code, chapter

30, and under title 10, United States Code, chapter 106. We

refer to these programs respectively as the New GI Bill-Active

Duty and the New GI Bill-Reserves.

I want to talk about our experience so far with the New GI Bill

and provide the Subcommittee with some projections for the ex-

pected growth of the New GI Bill. However, before doing that,

I think it would be helpful to outline a brief historical per-

spective of our educational assistance programs.
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Mr. Chairman, we have a proud tradition in this county), of as-

sisting in the smooth transition of veterans from military to

civilian life ttrough educational and training assistance for

over 42 years now. Since June 1944, over 18 million veterans

and service personnel have-received educational assistance un-

der three GI Bills. These 18 million veterans and service-

persons include 7.8 million under the World War II GI Bill,

almost 2.4 million trainees under the Korean conflict GI Bill,

and over 8 million trainees under the post-Korean Vietnam era

GI Bill. All of these programs operated in conjunction with

the draft and afforded a readjustment opportunity for many

people whose lives were involuntarily disrupted. The programs

pursued have taken place in classrooms, businesses, on farms,

at schools of higher learning and even at elementary schools.

In terms of content, they range from basic science to quantum

mechanics, and everything in between.

The costs of these three GI Bills totalled close to $60 billion.

Out of this figure, $14.5 billion was spent on the World War II

GI Bill; $4.5 billion was for the Korean conflict GI Bill; and

some $40 billion for the post-Korean Vietnam era GI Bill.

S9
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Under the current post-Korean Vietnam era GI Bill, the partici-

pation rate is 68,percent. This compares with a participation

rate of 50.5 percent for the World War II GI Bill and 43.4 per -

cent ,for the Korean,conflict GI Bill.

Participation in college level training is greater under the

post-Korean Vietna era program than under eithtr the World War

II or the Korean conflict program. College participation for

World War II veterans was 1/ 4 percent; for Korean conflict vet-

erans, it was 22 percent; and for post-Korean conflict veterans

and service personnel, who served between 1955 and 1976, it was

22.7 percent through September 1986. Vietnam era veterans and

service personnel who served between August 5, 1964 and January

1, 1977 have participated in college level training to a greater

extent than any other group of veterans. They have a college

participation rate of 43 percent.

The GI Bill programs have been widely acclaimed as the best in-

vestment America has ever made. During the four decades since

the original GI Bill, we have worked With Congress in the over-

sight of our programs, and have assisted schools in obtaining

course approvals and in'meeting Osei.r enrollment reporting obli-

gations. We have had to be flexible in our administration of

educational benefits programs so as to adapt to changes in pol-

icy and practice within the educational community; changing

3.
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veteran needs; and shifting governmental priorities. Through it

all, we have learned a great deal about how to efficiently ad-

minister veterans' education programs. Moreover, we are proud

of our role in implementing laws which have promoted quality ed-

ucation for our Nation's veterans, providing them the opportuni-

ty to be the best that they can be.

The post-Korean Vietnam era GI Bill is, of course, scheduled to

end on December 31, 1989. Each year, from now until 1990, the

projections indicate that fewer and fewer veterans will partici-

pate. Congress, in October of 1984, enacted Public Law 98-525,

bringing into being the New GI Bill test program. This new law

(as amended. by Public Law 99-576) provided a program of educa-

tion benefits not only for servicepersons and veterans, but also

for reservists, and set a termination date for VEAP, the DOD-

funded. VA-administered peacetime education benefits program

which had been in effect since 1976. The effective date for the

new programs was July 1, 1985.

The New GI Bill-Reserves was the program with the first signif-

icant number of trainees. Through the end of January 1987,

close to 46,000 reservists have trained under the New GI Bill-

Reserves. Current projections are that the number of trainees

will peak in Fiscal Year 1989 to about 140,000. Over time, we

expect that the larger program will be the New GI Bill-Active

Duty. We expect close to 180,000 trainees in Fiscal Year 1992.

4.
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The number of actual trainees is low now, but that is to be

expected because few individuals have yet .erved long enough

to become eligible. In Fiscal Year 1987, the number of these

trainees will pick up because that is when those with 2-year

enlistments become eligible for training. In Fiscal Year 1987,

we expect 800 of these trainees.

Mr. Chairman, I previously mentioned, in passing, Public Law

99-576, the Veterans' Benefits Improvement and Health-Care

Authorization Act of 1986. This legislation, which was signed

into law this past fall, made a number of significant changes

to the New GI Bill-Active Duty. It added apprenticeship and

on-job training, as well as correspondence training and work-

study, just to mention a few. The VA has great experience in

administering these programs and will be honored to continue to

do so.

As you are aware, Mr. Chairman, the Administration supports

making the New GI Bill program permanent. The Administration

also proposes to: (a) continue funding the additional "kicker"

benefits at their current levels, (b) continue VA administra-

tion of the program, (c) maintain the basic benefit level for

six-year terms of enlistment, and (d) continue the reserve ben-

efits at their current level pending completion of the Sixth

5.
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Quadrennial Review of Military Compensation which is conaucLing

an extensive review of Reserve compensation.

An additional two changes in the current operation of the pro-
.

gram are proposed in the President's 1988 Budget: (1) to shift

funding responsibility for the basic benefit ffom VA to DOD, and

(2) to restructure the basic benefit to offer progressively low-

er benefits for shorter terms of service. These two modifica-

tions are proposed to ensure that the educational enlistment

benefits of the New GI Bill will be productive for the armed

services. Because these changes relate to the needs of the

armed services, we defer to DOD for a detailed explanation of

the rationale.

The Administration strongly urges that the subject 'egislation

which this Subcommittee is considering include all the changes

to t1,7 New GI Bill which are proposed in the President's

Budget.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my testimony. I would be glad to

respond to any questions you or the members of the Subcommittee

may have.

6.
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Testimony of

HONORABLE CHAPMAN B. COX

ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE

(FORCE MANAGEMENT AND PERSONNEL)

Before the

SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFRIRS

NEW GI BILL

18 February 1987

Room 334, Cannon Ficus( Office Building
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Good afternoon Mr. Chairman.

It is a privilege to appear before this vommittee which has

done so such over the years for American Service men and women.

The men and women of the Armed Forces are the backbone of our

nation's defense structure. They are proud and patriotic
citizens and I know they are grateful to this committee for
ensuring their fair treatment as they return to civilian life.

Today, you have requested that I comment on the
Administration's position with respect to the New GI Bill. This

program, administered under your oversight, is a good example of
the important role you play in providing for American military
personnel in their transition back to civilian life.

For over 40 years, veterans have been eligible for Federal
education assistance under a variety of programs. These
assistance programs have been authorized for a number of reasons:

1 to provide Service members with a compensating benefit for
adversities they endure such as low pay, harsh environments,
physical danger and undesirable tasks:

2 to make service in the Armed Forces more attractive:

3 to provide training and readjustment to civilian life for

those who have served in the Armed Forces: and

4 to provide an education for those citizens who might not

otherwise be able to afford one.

There programs were of considerable value both to the nation
and to its Service members. However, both military service and
the rationale for educational benefits have changed markedly
since the inception of the All-Volunteer Force in 1973. Today,

our recruits make a voluntary decision to undertake military
service, many of them motivated by the competitive levels of pay

and improved quality of life in our Armed Forces. In this
environment, we view the New GI Bill not as a readjustment
benefit, but rather as one of many recruiting tools, all of which

contribute to the maintenance of a high-quality volunteer force.

The Educational Assistance Test Program, which we conducted

during 1981, confirmed that educational benefits, if sufficiently
generous, can attract high quality people to the Armed Forces. A
separate study, conducted by the Congressional Budget Office in
March 1982, validated the results of the Education Assistance
Test Program and also pz,iated out that enlistments of high school
graduates with above average aptitude test scores increased with

generous education benefits.

The study found, however, that educational benefits are such

less cost effective than targeted incentives such as enlistment

bonuses. Further, the study pointed out that negative retention
effects may offset gains made in recruiting.

We believe the Hew GI Bill has the potential to be an

effective recruiting incentive. For this reason, we support

making this program permanent. To fit into the overall context
of the DoD recruiting program, however, we believe that it should

be more of a targeted program. For this reason, we are
submitting a legislative proposal that will:
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1 restructure the basic benefit to provide a benefit that
varies with the term of enlistment;

2 continue targeted incentives (known as "kickers"); and

3 transfer funding of the basic benefit from the VA to DoD.

Placing both policy and fiscal responsibility for the New GI
Bill with thR Department of Defense will permit a concentrated
approach to using of educational benefits which emphasizes their
effectiveness as a recruiting incentive.

We will be able to build on the level of variable basic
benefit with additional targeted incentives that recognize
special recruiting needs of the individual Services. These
"kickers" can be varied as necessary and tied to hard-to-fill
skills, test scores or other criteria.

This concludes my prepared statement. Thank you again 1..w
the opportunity to appear. I will be ple;.sed to respond to your
questions.

98
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STATEMENT OF

THE PRINCIPAL DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE

FOR RESERVE AFFAIRS

MR. DENNIS SHAW

REARING BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND

EMPLOYMENT

HOUSE VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTE7

18 FEBRUARY 1987

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
UNTIL RELEASED BY THE
SUBCOMMITTEE
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Mr. Chairman and members cf the committee:

I want to thank you for inviting me to appear and offer
testimony on the New GI Bill for the Selected Reserve.

As you are aware, the GI Bill program for the Selected
Reserve is a non-contributory, general entitlement program.
Reserve officer and enlisted personnel become eligible for GI
Bill benefits after initial active duty for training and after
completing 180 days of service in the Selected Reserve.
Eligibility for GI Bill benefits also requires that reserve
component members enlist or agree to serve in the Selected
Reserve for six years. Participants have up to 10 years in which
to use the full entitlement, provided they remain members of the
Selected Reserve. Benefits are paid at the rate of $140 per
month for full-time study leading to a baccalaureate degree, with
cmaller pro-rated amounts for less than full-time study.

In the current recruiting environment, our readiness and
manpower objectives for the reserve components present a
challenge -- one that can be met only if we have the proper set
of force management tools. The new GI Bill is but one of these
tools. And, when combined with other targeted incentives and
entitlements, the GI Bill will permit us to attract and retain
the number and quality of people we must have.

In November 1985, we testified before the House Committee on
Veterans' Affairs, Subcommittee on Education, Training and
Employment, that we did not have a firm basis on which to
evaluate the impact of the new GI Bill on recruiting and
retention. Our data now indicates there has been some
improvement in recruiting since July 1, 1985.

For example, since a reserve recruit must enlist foz a 6
year term in order to qualify for benefits under the GI Bill, we
can compare the length of terms of service for new accessions.
During the first fifteen months of the New GI Bill, 59 percent of
Selected Reserve recruits enlisted for at least 6 years. During
the same time frame prior to the enactment of the New GI Bill, 57
percent of Selected Reserve recruits enlisted for at least 6
years. In other words, there was an increase of 8,321 six year
enlistments during the first fifteen months immediately following
enactment of the New GI Bill.

While educational benefits have been shown to have a
positive role in recruiting, I also would point out that other
actions taken by the Services during this same period contributed
to this improvement. The effect of increased recruiting and
advertising budgets, for example, cannot be discounted.

We have observed a sharp rise since the program began in the
number of members reported by the Services as eligible for
benefits. And, nearly one-third of these members today are
attending college and using their entitlement.

SELECTED RESERVE GI
SERVICE-REPORTED ENLISTED

Reserve Component FY85

BILL
ELIGIBLES
FY86 Total

DOD 13742 118150 131892
ARNG 6683 63231 69914
USAR 921 15463 16384
USNR 1139 10607 11746
USMCR 7 4676 4683
ANG 3397 15567 18964
USAFR 1595 8606 10201

SELECTED RESERVE GI BILL
ENLISTED ENROLLMENTS

Reserve Component FY85 FY86* Total
DOD 11783 29146 40929
ARNG 4301 13702 18003
USAR 3501 5164 8665
.USNR 723 2720 3443
U9MCR 115 1269 1384
ANG 1795 4771 8361
USAFR 1348 1520 2868

(* as of November 29, 1986)

,
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We continue to monitor closely the administration of the GI
Bill program. A close working relationship exists between the
DOD and the Veterans Administrati= in refining the accuracy of
our data systems to ensure only eligible members receive this
important educational benefit. As of November 1986, more than
40,000 new applications for the GI Bill were processed by the
Veterans Administration. Applications to the Veterans
Administration have increased from a weekly average of 752 in
October 1985 to a weekly average of 974 in October 1986. The
largest number of enrollments so far, have occurred in the Army
National Guard followed by the Army Reserve. Of the more than
40,000 new applications, more than 29,000 Selected Reserve
members, or nearly 69 percent, have applied for full-time
benefits -- a relationship that has remained constant since the
program began in July 1985. It is interesting to note that most
of the reservists applying for,the New GI Bill do not have an
entitlement under an earlier GI Bill program and are using
veterans, educational benefitc for the first time.

Cooperation from the Veterans Administration on the exchange
of information and development of an accurate data base has been
excellent and is important to us in establishing effective
program management.

In terms of quality, we hale examined high school graduace
non-prior service (NPS) accessions during FY 1984 and FY 1986.
During FY 1986, 5 percent more Selected Reserve recruits (or
34,500) were high school graduates than in FY 1984. This is a
significant improvement in terms of the quality of NPS
accessions.

We see great potential in the reserve components for
continued participation in the new GI Bill. Nearly 73 percent of
Guard and Reserve members recruited during FY 1986 possessed a
high school diploma, General Education Development (GED)
certificate, or above. More than 81,000 enlisted members have
two years of college (8 percent of the cote]. Selected Reserve
enlisted strength). The chart below displays the component
percentage of those members who have 2-years of college.

ENLISTED EDUCATION LEVEL BY RESERVE COMPONENT
(Those With 2 Years College*)

Reserve Component 2 Years College (%) Enlisted Strength
DOD 81082 ( 8.3) 972197
ARNG 33232 ( 8.3) 402628
USAR 19780 ( 7.8) 253070
USNR 14516 (12.5) 116640
USMCR 816 ( 2.1) 38123

ANG 5964 ( 6.0) 99231

USAFR 6774 (10.8) 62505
(* Data from DOD 1147/1148 Report, FY 1986 Summary)

Our analysis shows reserve component enlistment and
reenlistment incentive recipients tend to honor their contracts
and serve longer with the component. While it is still too early
to tell, we believe this behavior also will hold true for GI Bill
recipients as well. Therefore, in order to track participation
and further evaluate the effectiveness of the new GI Bill
entitlement, we have asked the Sixth Quadrennial Review on
Military Compensation (QRMC) to examine both the short and
long-term effects. Their report is due later on this year.

In,conclusion Mr. Chairman, no single incentive or
entitlement is likely to meet all Selected Reserve manpower
needs. The Department will continue to require a broad range of
incentives -- those that can be targeted toward critical skill
areas and shortages as well as general educational incentives

such as the GI Bill.
Mr. Chairman, this completes my testimony. I thank you once

again for the opportunity you have given me to appear before the
Committee. I em prepared to answer any questions you may have.
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Enlistment Current New GI Bill
DoD Proposed r 4 t
Legislation :P7cE'r

Two yrs A. 'Individ contribution $1,200 $1,200 7
B. Govt basic benefit 7,800 1,200
C. Govt kicker 8,000 Variable'
D. Totals 17,000 2,400pluc

variable kicker

Three yrs A.
B.

Individ contribution
Govt basic benefit

$1,200-
9,600

$1,200 1;1
3,600

C. Govt kicker 12,000 Variable*
D. Totals 22,800 4,800 plus

variable kicker

Four yrs A. Individ contribution $1,200 $1,200
B. Govt basic benefit 9,600 6,000 .5

C. Govt kicker 14,400 Variable'
D. Totals 25,200 7,200 plus

variable kicker

Five yrs A. Individ contribution $1,200 $1,200 03:
B. Govt basic benefit 9,600 7,800 3
C. Govt kicker 14,400 Variable*
D. Totals 25,200 9,000 plus

variable kicker

Six yrs A. Individ contribution $1,200 $1,200 7
B. Govt basic benefit 9,600 9,600 5

C. Govt kicker 14,400 Variable*
D. Totals 25,200 10,800 plus

variable. kicker

100



70

60

IfIni 50
Q.

Z
40

0 30

a. 20

DoD SELECTED RESERVE, NPS
ENLISTED ACCESSIONS

(FY 84 COMPARED AGAINST FY 86)

FY 84 FY 86
HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES

*Percentage of NPS accessions who are high school graduates. 101



DoD
SELECTED RESERVE ENROLLMENTS

THE NEW GI BILL

45,000

39,375

33,750

28,125

22,500

16,875

11,250

5,625

0
4Qtr 1Qtr 2Qtr 3Qtr 4Qtr 1 Qtr

85 86 86 86 86 87*

*thru November 102



SELECTED RESERVE GI BILL ENROLLMENTS*
1986

45,000

39,375

33,750

-
-

28,125

22,500 CA)
00

16,875

11,250

5,6251--

0 I
I I I I I 1_±_i I I I I

J F M A M J JASON
MONTHS 1 03

*Total figures include Coast Guard Reserve



77.111.111.111

invest a few years in your country
and we'll invest from $5,040 to $9,600
in your college education.

NITRODUCING THE NEW
GI BILL. Every American
should have the ity for
higher education. not all
Americans can afford further

.edttcation. That why the New
GI Bill vas aeated. It a unique
Program for outstanding young
people, like you, to help pay
the high costs of a college
educrition.
HOW THE NEW GI BILL
WORKS. fulldimelctiveDuly.
Invest a few years in the U.S.
Armed Forces on a full-time
basis. For the first 12 months
only sot k contribute $100 per
month. Then we contribute
$9,600. That a total of $10,800
vou can use for your education.

Serve on a
oasis In the National Guard

or ...osves. Wiu give us limited

tune per month for 6 years. We
provide $5,040 with no contnbu-
lion from you.

AN INVESTMENT IN LIFE.
Serving in the U.S. Armed
Forces offers many opportuni-
ties. The chance to travel. To
learn a useful skill. To receive
tuition assistance for courses at
approved colleges, vocational
or technical schools. Above all,
itt a wonderful opportunity for
personal growth.

DO YOU FIT THE BILL? If
you're the person were talking
about see your local Service
recruiter for full details today It
could be the best investment
you'll ever make.

The U.S. Armed Forces
Kt a great place to start

0
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T ArnA I ncithe
ciucating America

United StateArmy ky( rutig om,id
Fort Sheridan, Illinois ((X)37-6020
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The CI BBL introduced on July 1, 1965, continues a tradition
of educational assistance to our nation's vetrans which
began after World War II. The first CI Bill of Rights, signed

by President Roosevelt on lung 22.1944, gave veterans oppon
tunitles their fathers could only dream about Educational
assistance has evolved thrOugh four versions to today's CI Bill, but
the theme has been constant: American men and women serving
their country and earning a better future.

Today's CI Bill participant contributes $100 per month during his
or lice tint year of Army service. The Veterans Administration corn
tautes a lot more, providing the participant a combined total of
up to $10.1100 for college. This Is paid after the soldier leaves the
Army and enrolls in school.

The Army offers even greater benefits to high school graduates
who score In the 50th percentile nr higher on the aptitude test
Through the Army College Fund, young people who enlist for cep
taln critical skills can earn t4, en 125.203 for college. That's $703 per
month for 36 acader),:k months four years of college. .

Young American', who earn the CI Bill and tr...., Army College
Fs.nd are not the only ones who benefit America benefits as well.
More than 16 m7Aion Army veterans have attended college using
veterans' beneCts. akmy would have never realized their educa-
tional potentiil without the CI BH11 assistance.

This publication looks at some of the people who got their start
In the Army and used their educational benefits to train themselves
for a successful career.

The Army Is proud of lu veterans' success stories. We feel we've
had at least a small hand In them. Now a new generation of
Americans can write their own success storks. They will start by
providing the Army's strength. They will become i.merica's strength.

This booklet was produced by the U.S. Army Recruiting Command. The success stories
were provided with the consent of each of the Individuals profiled Permission to reprint
should be obtained by writing:

Commander
U.S. Army Recruiting Command 04 calls
ATTN: Public Allah Office Commercial: (312)926.3918
Building 103 AUTOVON: 499.3918
Fort Sheridan. IL 600374010

for snore Mlortnagen about the CI 8111. the Army College Fund and all of the Army's
benefits. call your 1000 Army recruiter. whose phone number is listed In the Yellow Pages
(under 'Recruit:W.)

I
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Veterans' benefits in America are nothing new: In fact, the
tradition predates the creation of the nation itself.

In 1636, the Pilgrims' declared, "If any person shalbee sent
forth as a soldier and shall return maimed hee shalbee mayntained
competently by the Collonie during his life." This small beginning
led to the development of the most comprehensive system of
assistance and care for veterans of any nation.

Veterans' benefits not only dealt with the aftermath of wars, but
also became important recruiting trsols for maintaining a ready
defense. When its western frontier was threatened in 1755 by hostile
Indians, the Virginia House of Burgesses enacted a law providing
enlistees with immunity from civil offenses.

A year later, the same assembly paid five pounds to new soldiers.
Enlistment bounties were a common practice among a people who
distrusted a standing army. Colonists routinely returned home as
soon as their enlistments expired, regardless of whether the conflict
was resolved.

At a critical point early in the Revolutionary War, whole com-
panies from Connecticut abruptly left the Army at the end of their
year of service. Others from New Jersey and Pennsylvania-soon
followed. Faced with a rapidly disappearing army, the Continental
Congress decreed the first American package of veterans' benefits.

Commissioned officers who stayed the duration of the war re-
ceived half pay foi seven years. Enlisted men received $80. Dis-
:'sled veterans and the dependents of those killed in battle received
lifelong pensions. Some of these dependents proved to be very
hardy patriots, indeed, as the U.S. government continued to pay
Revolutionary War pensions until 1911.

Veterans' benefits continued and grew thoughout the 19th
century. The Congress never failed to offer benefits to veterans of
the War of 1812, the Mexican War, the Civil War, the Indian Wars
and the Spanish-American War. Among the most common benefits
of that century was a "mustering our pay. These bonuses provi 'Id
citizen soldiers a modest means to resume their civilian lives,

Some benefits were offered as solutions to dual problems. To en-
courage settlement of vast sections of the frontier, Congress passed
several land grant acts. By 1850, any veteran who had served 14
days or more during wartime was entitled to 160 acres of land.
More than 47 million acres of land were granted to veterans
through these acts.

The modern era of veterans' benefits began with the entry of
America into World War I. The Rehabilitation Act of 1919 provided
educational assistance and an allowance of up to $145 a month for
disabled veterans. While limited in scope, this act established the
precedent of a period of governmentsubsidized training for
veterans.

.The state of Wisconsin established the first unlimited educational
fund in 1918. Each state resident who served at least 90 days in the
Great War qualified for four academic years at a $30 monthly sti-
pend. Any veteran could resume his schooling from the elementary'
through graduate levels.

But the most significant change in veterans' benefits was to come
as the result of World War IL The first GI Bill of Rights gave "em-
phatic notice to the men and women of our Armed Forces that the
American people do not intend to let them down," said President
Franklin D. Roosevelt as he signed the legislation.

1.09
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T- he first CI Bill of Rights turned out to be one of the most
important bills in tl..: history of the United States. At the
time of its signing, there was little realization of the great

changes it would have on life in America. The program changed the
entire concept of adult education In this nation, and started the
greatest home construction boom in history.

Many Americans worried about the effect a large body of return-
ing veterans would have on the still-recovering economy. Following
World War I, veterans in nearly every European nation clamored for
bonuses or other benefits. Their discontent had helped to foster the
rise of fascism which led to the Second World War. In the United
States, veterans of the First World War lobbied for several years
before Congress finally granted them a bonus.

In 1943, President Roosevelt formed a government council to
study arm anticipate post-war problems. That council estimated
that, in the first year after the war, between eight and nine million .

men would be unemployed. The council concluded that some
means to dispel the likelihood i::: a return to h Depression must be
devised before the war ended. Such a program should provide more
than a ont.time bonus so that its effect on the economy would be
longer lasting. It was agreed that one of the most important aims of
such a pnigram was to find a way to gradually re-integrate veterans
into the work force.

Several congressional acts, as well as legislation by individual
states, became thi basis for the first CI Bill. The Selective Training
and Service Act of 1940 provided that U.S. servicemen were entitled
to reinstatement in their former, jobs or in similar positions. The
Veterans Act of 1944 gave veterans special advantages in the
federal civil service.

Many states also enacted laws providing for veterans' preference
for civil service jobs, special educational benefits, and loans for
purchasing homes, farms, or small businesses. The Veterans
Emergency Hotising Act of 1946 speeded the construction of homes,
rrnvided teroPorary hawing for veterans, and gave them preference
in buying or renting new homes.

Most returning servicemen were young and had not completed
their education or become established in permanent jobs or homes.
The Servicemen's Readjustment Act of 1944 better known as the
CI Bill provided these young veterans unemriloymint benefits,
paid educational expenses, and offered low-interest home, farm and
small business loans.

Demobilization aid to disabled servicemen reached high levels
after World War II as the U.S. expanded its facilities for hospitaliza-
tion and rehabilitation. Great progress was made in medical and
surgical treatment, in re-echication, and in vocational guidance and
placement services. Veterans' preference and the reservation of cer-
tain civil service positions for the disabled were practically univer-
sal, while training allowances and disability allowances were more
liberal than ever before.

During the 42 years since the first CI Bill was signed, the
American people have invested over 855 billion in educating 182
million World War II, Korean Conflict, postKorean and Vietnam
War veterans. They also have made possible more than 8215 billion
in home loans for more than 11 million veterans. More than half of
these Veterans Administration guaranteed home loans have already
been repaid in full. Remarkably, fewer than four out of 100 veteran
homeowners have defaulted on their guaranteed loans in this
42year period.

'L
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1944-1955 Success Stories

Arthur N. Brown (right), director of
employee development for General
Mills in Minneapolis, used the GI Bill
to earn both his bachelor's and master's
degrees.

"The GI Bill enabled me to have the
essential cost of education taken care
of, which would otherwise not have
been possible."says Brown. "Thus, I
had to make only the time commitment.
to my education, not the financial com-
mitment. The advanced degree oppor-
tunity was particulary beneficial in
getting a working.careeriinderway,"

"The GI Bill is a good invest-
ment by the government since
it allows most veterans to earn
incomes that ultimately con-
tribute to the livelihood of our
economy," says Robert S.
McPherson (right).

McPherson, manager of
financial compliance for the
Coca-Cola Company in Atlanta,
used his GI Bill to earn a dual
bachelor's degree in accounting
and education from the Univer-
sity of Georgia.

Stuart M Frey (right). used the GI Bill to earn a
bachelor of science degree in mechanical engineering
from the University of Michigan.

"A college education was of major importance to
me and was made available through the GI Bill,"
says Frey who is vice president of car product
development for Ford's North American automotive
operations.

"Not only did the allow me financial aid, it
allowed the comfort of security and the assurance
that I had the Army behind me in any difficulty
which may have been encountered."

"Having the GI Bill available to me was absolutely
the key to being able to attend Duke University, as I
would otherwise not have had the finances to go to
college," says Gene Gowan (right), Notre Dame's
director of athletics. "While at Duke, I was able to
participate in intercollegiate athletics, a field which
has become a life's work."

iv
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"My Army service was an educational and ex-
hilarating experience that gave me perspective and
matunty at a relatively early age," says Harry I Gray
(left), chairman and chief executive officer of United
Technologies Corporation in Hartford, Conn

Gray used the Cl Bill to earn both his bachelor's and
master's degrees from the University of Illinois. "There's
no question that the Cl Bill was a tremendous asset in
helping me accomplish my goal of attaining both my
undergraduate and graduate degrees."

Albert E. Munson (left), professor of pharmacology and toxicology
at Virginia Commonwealth University in Richmond. Va. completed
his bachelor and master of science degrees using the Cl Bill "I could

-not have attended college if funds were not available through the GI

Bill,".sayi Munson.

tK

Roger G. Lambert (left), pro-
fessor of biology at the Univer-
sity of Louisville, used the Gl
Bill to earn a bachelor of
science degree in plant
pathology at the University of
Minnesota.

"There is no way I would
have been able to pursue a
degree without the help of the
Cl Bill. It made all the dif-
ference financially,"

From corporal to vice president
and general manager, Philip B. Auer-
bach (left) of Sperry Corporations
Tactical Systems Division, used the
Cl Bill to earn both his bachelor's
and master's degrees.

' At separation from the Army,
with a wife and son, I elected to
seek employment and enroll in the
evening sessions. The Cl Bill paid for
all fees, books and supplies, making
things much easier on my budget,"
says Auerbach.

9
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0 ne of the factors that aided the original CI Bill's passage
was the universal belief that the program was a one'
timeonly deal. The benefits were intended to terminate

as soon as the need for them ceased. Surely postDepression era
legislators would have provided greater opposition if they had felt
they were creating a long-term assistance program.

But once enacted. the "Bill" firmly established the precedent of a
period of readjustment spoiisored by the government for all war
veterans. The name itself Implied that the benefits were due to the
veterans as a right of wartime service.

It was this assumption that led to the passage of the PostKorean
Conflict Veteran's Readjustment Act of 1952. No fear of a new
depression or widespread saterans' discontent motivated this bill's
authors. It was recognized that military service would prevent many +.
high school graduates from attending college Most felt this
sacrifice to both the individual and the country required some coin.
pensation But the first CI Bill was believed to be too large a pro.
gram and too generous. The bill resulting from this thinking,
then mainly concentrated on education benefits, as have the bills
that folloWed It.

Korean Conflict veterans were entitled to CI Bill education and
training for a period equal to oneand-a-half times their active ser
vice, up to a maximum of 36 months of training This program end-
ed on January 31.1965.

The total cost of the Korean Conflict CI Bill was $4 5 billion. In
return for their investMent, Amedians educated 2.4 million veterans
or about 43 percent of the 5 5 million who were eligible. One and
two-tenths million enrolled in institutions of higher learning; 861,000
in vocational/technical schools; 223.000 received on-the-job training;
and 95.000 took institutional on-farm training,

11
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1955-1964 Success Stories

Michael Senuau (righa director of corporate human resources
operations for the Coca-Cola Company in Atlanta, earned his
bachelor's degree from Western Michigan University andhis
master's degree in psychology from Wayne State University. "The
Cl Bill education benefits provided me the opportunity to achieve ,

the level of education I acquired and that education has subs's*
tally contributed to where I am today."

"The Army taught me that
setting goals and working con.
sistently toward reaching them
are the keys to success."

So says land Chordegian
(rtghL1 accounting section head
for Coca-Cola Company.

Chordegian used her CI Bill
benefits to obtain her
bachelor's degree in accounting
and says, it would have been
very difficult for me to pay for
my education without the CI
Bill it was a tremendous
assistance."

"The CI Bill education benefits had
gust been reinstated and tt was at i time
when I needed financial assistance
most to complete my education," says
Gerald E. Yandel Sr. (righa marketanalyst
for the Coca-Cola Company in Atlanta.

"With a family of six to support and
wanting very'much to finish my degree
It would have been tremendously dif-
ficult without the CI Bill benefits.'

Yandel earned his bachelor's degree
in business administration from Loyola
University In Chicago "The excellent
education I received has been put to
good use and greatly vitributes to my
success."

12
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"The Army educational
benefits were very instrumental
in enabling me to return to
school for a master's degree"
Says Alan E. Cummins (lets),
director of the materials
management division for
Eastman Kodak Company.

Cummins used his CI Bill ro
earn a master of science degree
in applied statistics from the
Rochester Institute of
Technology

t.,
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Walter 1, Dutton
(Belt), director of special
Protects for Hughes
Helicopters, Inc, used
his CI Bdl to earn his
bachelor of science
degree in mechanical
engineering from Pun
die University.

"My Army training,
and the erPosure I had
to first rate military
hardware, have helped
me directly. But the
greatest benefit is a first
class engineering educa

"With my veterans benefits, I was able to obtain a start in
the great career of aviation,- says L L. "Les" Berkheiser (left),
chief inspector of aircraft maintenance for Shell Oil Company

Bokhener got a head start on his aviation career white ser.
ving as a helicopter maintenance specialist in the Army. After
leaving the Army, he earned his degree from Parks College of
Aeronautical Technology of St Louis University

13
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Again, a change:: economic climate brought about a changed
Cl Bill for Vietnam veterans. Overall, the benefits provided
by this bill were reduced in number and scale from those of

its predecessors because of a number of factors. The economy was
stronger and other forms of gm.ernment loans and scholarships
were now available. Also, when the bill was passed in 1966, the
Vietnam War had yet to reach Its height. It was believed that only a
small number of veterans would be the eventual recipients of its
benefits.

In this climate, the 89th Congress passed the " Veterans Readjust-
ment Benefits Act of 1966." The education and training program
under this Cl Bill went into effect 6n lune 1,1966.

Originally, this Cl Bill provided one month of education and
training for each month of service, up to 36 months. But in
December 1968, the bill was changed to providtd one-and-aralf
months of entitlement for each month of service. Eighteen con-
tinuous months of continuous service after January 3, 1955 qualified
a veteran for the full 36 months, if he or she had satisfied his or her
military obligation. In October 1976; the maximum entitlement was
extended to 45 months,

A veteran with no dependents, In full-time institutional training,
received $100 a month from the Veterans Administration under the
bill as It first passed. By January 1981 this had been increased to
$342 monthly.

This bill also provided home and farm loans, job counseling, an
employment placement service, and other benefits.

The Army's history of veterans benefits shows they have been
well used by the soldiers they were Intended to help. By the end of
the fiscal year 1983, nearly 66 million out of the 9.1 million eligible
Vietnam era veterans received training under this CI Bill.

A recordsetting total of nearly 4,9 million Vietnam vets trained In
Institutions of higher learning, 2.5,million in vocational/technical
schools, 591,000 on the job, and 56,000 In institutions" owfarm train-
ing.

The popularity of veterans' benefits and the CI Bill continued to
increase'over tilt years. As of 1984, the VA had spent about $37
billion to provide educational assistance to 8 million participants In
the Vietnam CI Bill education and training programs.

.4 1
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1964-1975 Success Stories

"The wide range and variety
of experience and training
received M'the Army, I am con-
fident endowed me with a
neatperfect overall background
for 'people' programs," says
equal employment manager
valjean L. f Subbed (right).

Hubbert, who works at Letter-
kenny Army Depot in
Chambersburg. Pa, earned her
associate's degree in behavioral
science and minority studies
with the help of the CI Bill

"I believe the benefits of the
Cl Bill were most instrumental
In my success to this point and
will continue to benefit me In
my career."

Dr. lack L. Arnold, senior systems analyst for the
Coca-Cols Company in Atlanta, Ca, remembers his
military service as an "exciting adventure; a great ex.
pedence."

Arnold served as a combat medic during the Vietnam
era. "My military experience Is primarily responsible for
helping me to develop discipline, order and patience.
These are basic elements for success in today's world."

Arnold completed his undergraduate studies while
serving in the Army. The CI Bill gave him thewoe
tunity to earn his master's In business administration;he
followed this with a law degree.

'Without the financial support, I would not have ac
complished my educational pursuits. I'm thankful this
benefit was available to me," says Arnold.

16

"I won't tell you I enjoyed every minute I spent In the Army,
but I sure met and served witha lot of wonderful people and
that1 what service life is all about anyway. It's not the Indivi.
dual that's all important it's the team effort that counts,"
says lames L. Schwarzkopf (right), process engineer for Dana
Corporation In Toledo, Ohio.

After serving four years as a heavy truck operator. Schwarz
kopf used his CI Bill to receive an associate's degree in
business from Davis lunior College of Business.

"Without the opportunity to earn my degree through the use
of the CI 8114 my marketable skills would not have been any
greater than those of the thousands of other returning Cis In the
job market With this additional education, I was able to Pro-
mote myself to management who In turn realized my newly
acquired skills could be useful to them."

1° 0
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following his tour of duty in
Viet um two decades AM Dc
David Stewart (left), director of
student programs and services of
Pennsylvania Stare University. used
bh Cl Bill education benefits to
am three college degrees.

WA the help of the Cl Big
Ste'ran earned his bachelor's
degree in psychology at the State
University of Hew York In Buffalo;
a master's in higher education ad.
ministration and Eater a doctorate
In counselor education from Penn.
sylvania State.

"I found the Army to be one of the few places
where I could receive equal opportunity as a female,
Serving my country, especially during the Vietnam
war period. gave me a sens of pride." says Deborah
A. Skelton (left),

Skelton, education specialist at the education
center at fort Sam Houston. Texas, used her Cl Bill
benefits to earn an associates degree in business
technology and a bachelor's degree in occupational
education from Southwest Texas State University.

"I know that I would not have completed college
without the Cl Bill. I encourage all young men and
women to enter the Army as a means of attaining
maturity and education."

"It taught me to appreciate the freedom and oppor
tunitles we have as Americans and not to take them for
granted" says tarry M. Britt (left), about his Army es.
periences. "It had quite a maturing effect upon me.'

Serving in Vietnam as an accounting specialist, Britt,
now accounting section head for Coca-Cola's analysis seP
tion, furthered his accounting education by obtaining his
bachelor's degree in that held from Georgia Sur '..;niversi-
ty

Veterans' education benefits helped finance that degree,
says Butt 'It allowed me to go to college on futl.time
basis to complete my degree work at a much lager our
with higher grades than what I wasesperiencirtg prior to
entering the Army."

17
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The years following the end of the Vietnam War brought
about perhaps the most significant change in American
veterans' benefits since the end of World War II.

President Richard M. Nixon declared the end of the draft and the
beginning of the "All Volunteer" armed forces. While Americans
welcomed the first action, they were less enthusiastic about suppor-
ting the latter. Opposition to the war and the general low esteem
for the military lingered after the war.

Whet is more, potential enlistees, as well as the American public
as a whole, he,f se to expect a "Cl Bill" of some sort. The
absence- e- senefits, as well as disdain for the military, caused
many potential recruits to choose college or other career paths. As

they did, the quality of the armed forces declined The armed'
forces becasas ;he employer of last resort Recognising the serious
national defense implications of s,,ch a trend. Congress acted to
reverse it

Three who entered the armed forces from lanuary 1, 1977 until
Jun; 30.1965 wereeligib:e for the "Post-Vietnam Era V '
Education Assistance Program." This program, known as the VEAP,
differed from Its predecessors in that it was not a benefit
automatically available to all whO served In the military. In order to
collect the benefits, the VEAP required the soldier to make monthly
contributions from his or her military pay in`ader to participate.

In addition to the YEAR a new incentwe program was established
to encourage enlistments fa certain occupational specialties.
Soldiers who enlisted for this'Army College FUnd" received addi-
tional government contributions above those already provided by
the VEAP.

The program,wai a successl The fottaiei of recruiting were
turned around. Bright young Americans-or -a hairs cce,Idered
militarsriervfai posttivi,nOwii to build for tali fotuiiii

1
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1975-1985 Success Stories
"My service record greatly enhanced my potential

for getting into law school, " says Linda M Terrell
(right) of Somerville, Mass. "The responsibility the Ar-
my gives you, teaches seltdiscipline and to manage "
your time effectively, both of which are crucial to
first-year law students."

Terrell, now a third year student at Harvard Law
school, served four years as a military intelligence of-
ficer. "My military career helped prepare me for law ,
school. Through my training. I was able to approach' ;
my studies with a mature attitude and less anxiety
than the younger students."

Martin Martinez (right), manager of compensation
and benefits of Merck and Company, Inc., recalls his
Army c"oeriences as "challenging, stimula:ing and
extremely szwarding."

Martinez pir.fir-1 from several Army education
benefits. He received his undergraduate degree
through a ROTC scholarship and most recently, corn-
pleted a law degree by using the CI BilL

"This education has opened doors that otherwise
would have remained closed Furthermore this
education, coupled with the exposure received in
managing line organizations while on active duty, has .
given me the tools needed to be successful in any
walk of life," says Martinez.

"Without the CI Bill, I would not have been able
to complete my education," says Rodney W. Holland
(right) quality engineer for Honeywell, Inc, New
Brighton, Minn.

Holland served as a military policeman and, since
leaving the Army in 1979, has obtained a bachelor's
degree in engineering from the University of
Minnesota.

"There was no way I could have worked and cas
tied the number of courses I did," says Holland
"The CI Bill was a blessing."

124
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An immigrant," says Young H. Noh (left), "I ob-
tained knowledge of the American culture, the
English language and basic leadership skills"

Noh, served in the Army as a persor del actions
specialist. Army educational benefits "allowed me to
obtain a master of science degree in program

'management and a master of business administration
in financial management.

"These degrees provided me with the knowledge
required to pursue my career objectives, which led

',to a challenging position in operations systems with
;Hughes Helicopters."

"The Army's discipline enabled me
to not only complete my education
but has helped me tremendously in
my professional career, " says Xavier
Candia (left), corporate forecasting
manager for Colma Company in
Milpitas, Calif.

Candle who served as an Arabic
translator in the Army, earned his
bachelor of science degree becaJse
of the GI Bill. He later earned a
master of science degree in system
management.

"The experience I had m the Army taught me the im.
portance of teamwork, planning and self sacrifice for
the good of the whole,"says Reed T Hauser (left), pro-
curement engineer for Honeywell Inc. in New Brighton,
Minn.

The Army also helped Hauser earn two college
degrees His bachelor of arts degree in chemistry from
the University of Dayton was earned under a ROTC
scholarship, while his M B A from Florida Institute of
Technology was funded by the GI Bill

21
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July 1,1965 marked the beginning of a new era of veterans'
benefits in America As it replaced the old Veterans Education
Assistance Program, the "New" CI Bill brought with it a return

to some of the widespread entitlements of the past.
The current CI Bill is open to all enlistees (some of the previous

programs had been limited to veterans who served In select military
occupations). It is not, however, open to individuals who received
their officer's commission by attending a service academy or by par
ticipating In the Reserve Officers' Training Corps after December 31,
1976.

Soldiers entering active duty after July 1,1965, are automatically
enrolled in the CI Bill unless they choose to not participate. Those
enrolled have their basic pay reduced by $100 a month for their first
12 months of service. Upon completion of three years of continuous
active duty, soldiers are eligible for a maximum of $10,000 of basic
benefits for full-time schooliPe,

In addition to the new CI Bill, the Army offers a new Army Col.
lege Fund, which provides an even greater incentive for top high
school graduates to choose Army.

Through the Army College Fund, the Army can increase the rate
of benefits up to an additional $400 a month for soldiers enlisting
for critical occupational specialities that are difficult to MI or re-
Win, Radar operator and combat engineer are two such specialties.

The Army College Fund, as its name would imply, Is unique to the
Army. The educational benefits are added to the CI Bill benefits
which are offered by all the armed services

Based on a four-year term, an Army enlistee can leave the service
with $25,200 for college.This consists of a $1,200 personal contralti-
tion, a $9,600 govemment contribution, and a $14,400 Army College

Fund benefit.
Money Is paid out to veterans on a monthly basis for 36

academic months. The rate depends on whether a veteran Is a full
or part-time student. A veteran eligible forthe Army College Fund
attending college or vocational school full-time, who served a four
year enlistment, receives $700 per mcinth:A fulkime student with a
three-year enlistment receives $633 33 each month, while a full -time
student with a two-year enlisthwnt receives $472.22 a month.

As a recruiting tool, the new CI Bill plus the Army College Fund
should have more apneal than any veterans' benefits program ever
offered. On every level,,Cfollar for dollar, there is more money
available. Enlistees contribute a smaller pOrtion of their salaries
than In the past, and there_ are larger government contributions.

One possible arrangement make, this Army college aid program
particularly attractive. The Army offers a two-year enlistment. In
two years, a young soldier can learn a valuable skill, earn a good
salary, and develop self-confidence. Often those two years are lust
the right amount of time for a yourig person to define career goals
and make Plans for the future.

With the new college aid program, total benefits to the veteran
are greater than ever before. Individual contributions have de-
kreased more than 50 percent. The combination of more govern.
ment money and smaller personal contributions is a combination
that has made the program highly successful.

127
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The Army's Own Success Stories
Lt Co? Russell W. Jena (right) chief of Triplet Army

Medic!! Ceoters Radiology Department in HorC-.4ulu,
gradated from West Point in 1966.

A year's leave of absence from active duty allowed
him 'o complete his premed courses at the University of
lows and then medical school at the University of South
Florida. Both schools were financed by the CI Bill;

LI, Co?. Thurman S.
Doman Ir. (right). deputy
division chaplain for the 7th
Infantry Division at Ford
Ord Calif., started his Army
career as an Infantry lineoh,- i
firer. But his future with the
Army was to take a less con
ventional direction. "My
dream was to serve soldiers.
as a chaplain." Domani:ad,
his CI Bill benefits to make
that dream come true.

"My VA educationsl bra.
fits I used to the fullest
Three years through semi
ary, one yea! for a gradual. '
degree at Princeton, and
what was left contributed
towards my doctoral work."

"I came In the Army with a high school .
and within twelve years, I had a PhD."

So says Capt Alex W. Valadez, (center right, this
page) who enlisted In the Army as a neuroPsYchileik
specialist. Voted.' finished his bachelor, of science.
degree by taking advantage of the Army's degree
completion program.

A master's in education and doctorate in counsel.
int psychology, earned while he served fullzime with
the Army, completed his Ilst of educational credits.

24

"There's education and success
here, young people Come and get
rtr says 1st Sgt Roger C. Mont.
Bornety (right). "The Army gives.
you the tools and opportunity, all
you have to do is take advantage '
of them."

Montgomery, with the Academy
of Health Sciences at Fort Sam ,
Houston, Texas, earned an ass.
date's degree using CI Bill benefits.

72-772 0 87 5
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Co,. PeterD Christman dela
commander ol the U.S Army
Dental Activity at Fort Leonard
Wood,Mo. lirst served as a
combat medic in Europe during
the ad, - 1950s. Upon con.
eluding that initial tour ol duty,
Christman used the CI Bill to
complete his bachelor's degree

.6nd then earned a doctor ol
dental surgery degree.

Christman was commissioned
and returned to active duty in
1961: In 1967, the Army sent
Wm to Indiana University to
complete his master ol science
In dentistry.

Sgt,1st Cleats Ciro e r 1. goides says, "The Army took me in as I was,
straight out of high school, and gave me lob training as well as a col.
lege *dilution."

Roldes, semis as a data processor In Heidelberg, Germany. "The col.
Imes:redid received through the Army helped me get promoted in
the Nit arid wilet m sure; In the future."'

Col. Frank L. Miller le dela
chief ol stall of the Army's Na.
tional Training Center in Fort It.
win, Cald., entered Army service
without a bachelor's degree "The
Army provided me with a two
year fully funded period to obtain

'my degree. I was also afforded the
time and resources to obtain my
master's degree."

Miller says, "The Army educa-
tion benefits I received have been

-lice a loan or Investment paid
back by concerned, intelligent and
better leadership in this member
ol the Oi liCef corps."

s &hes" the harder one works to learn
,'and the herder one works on the lob, the

more successful that person can be."
' Et Col. Robert P. Walters (left] chief of
tne Military Police Branch at the Army
Military Personnel Center In Alexandria,
Ni. earned both his bachelor's and master's
ilegrees'usIng hki CI Bill benefits.

ri have been privileged to serve in posi
tions'whete I could use my military and
civilian educational experience and build

'fir'Y blanket knowledge As a result of my
bockground rand the help I got Irori7 the
Cl Bin 1 was selected early for promo.

'don to colonel. Without these degrees, I
couldn't be where I am today."

25

12.9
,

1



\e1?e

iz*c. coccpc

,eN
\

\<
\("

\\ st,;`-

-4/



126

The description "AU Volunteer Army" is certainly a
misnomer. In truth. today's 1.rmy should be known as "all.
recruited'. The bright young people who join our rinks to.

day have a lot of potential. Many avenues are open to diem. It
takes coordinated research, well-considered planning, and concerted
effort In order trt bring the Army's message to them,

The early years of this experiment were rough going. Anti-military
sentirmot and the "me" generation of the 70s made recruiting
tough. During the last decade, publk opinion about the military has
Improved, yet the number of eligible young people to revolt has,
steadily declined. Insole* of these obstacles, the Army has sue
ceeded In accompliihIng Its mission by recruiting enough new
soldiers. What Is more, it has exceeded Its objectives by providing
the brightest shiniest, most morally fit Army America has ever
known.

In fiscal year 1985, 91 percent of the Army's new recruits were
high school graduates. Ninettslx percent of these new soldiers piss
the Army's stringent physical training standards In balk training.

The Army has a lot to offer high achievers. For one, It is the
largest single training school In the nation: In the Army, a young
person doesn't have to dream about operating a main-frame corm
puter. He or she can be trained to operate It paid well while in
training and then put in front of the terminal to put thosiinews
found skills to work.

Young people learn a lot more than just a skill. They learn self
confidence, teamwork, and responsibility. They travel around the '
world. They continue teaming and accepting new responsibility and
as they do so, the Army recognizes their Individual efforts by pro:
motions and the opportunity to advance even more.

Whether a soldier chooses to make theAmly a career or to return
to civilian life after Ids or her first term, :America Is enriched. Like
the soldiers who served at Normandy, Inchon, and Hue, today's
veterans are returning to the classrooms, finishing their degrees, and
advancing the American economy as they contribute their skills,
enterprise and experience. The GI gill plays a big part in America's
future. It's helping the new generation of Army veterans to `Be All
They Can Be."

131
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Tomorrow's Success Stories
Opt David D. Crowell (right)

has done his best to use all the
educational opportunities the
Army has to oiler.

Crowell, commander ol a medi.
cal company at Madigan Army
Medical Center In Tacoma,. Wash.,
financed his bachelor's and
master's degrees by using the
Army's tuition assistance program.
the CI Bill, and ROTC.

"The education I have obtained
through these resources has put
me where I am today. I hilly en-
girt to continue to reap con.
tinued benelits throughout my
future.

"The Amty, with the variety ol
assignments and geographical IOCa'
bons. has served to broaden me as
an individual. I sincerely feel it has
enriched my file and provides sub.
stantial pleasant memories for
mysell and my family."

Sit Donald R. felt (right.1 airborne fillaritnnkre at
fort Bragg, MC., says, "The Army has had a very,
positive ellect on my life. I have found that one can,
truly. Be All You Can Be by setting goals and work.
Ins hard to achieve therm"

Felt kilned the Army two years ago and soaks
highly ol the Army's educational benelits. "The per.
romance oriented training the Army provides has
helped me gain confidence In mysell and set my
tools even higher. I try to take maximum advantage
ol every opportunity to gain knowledge and
experience.

"I strive to be as technically and tactically pro& ,

cknt as possible. I look forward to each opportunity
to gain Army schooling as a means of prolessional
development and personal accomplishment^
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The Non-Convnissioned Of freer of the Year Ice the 82nd
Akbome Division is earning Ps degree while he tenet

Stall Sgt. Kenneth W. Riley (left) loaned the Army with
no college experience Since then, he has earned almost
moue r.41-. ice an auociate's degree Riley says. "I
hove taken classes on Saturdays and at nights whenever I
could lit them In : would urge all those with access to
we them Education can expand and enhance your life"

I MMe progressed very rapidly In the
.Army," says Stall Sgt. Charles It Willis

'Jabal* "Some ol the things that I feel have
made me successful are.striving to be the
best soldier that I can be, good management
of my persoul afters, knowkdge 01 my fob,
and saeldng selbirnprovement at all times."

^ One way Willis intends to continue his
aellEmprOvernent goals h to use his veterans'

k educational benefit% which lu says, "will
"'contribute to my success In order for me to
progress to the fullest extent ol my military
cartur"

low years ago, I was going nowhere and
doing nothing. My fife didn't have a lot ol
meaning. Then f )(tined the Army and the

' 82nd Airborne Division," says Sgt
Esposito (left).

In Esposito's lour years in the Army, he
hes participated In two overseas excembet.
including 'URGENT Fury 83" better
known as the Invasion ol Grenada.
' "The Army enables me to do things that
although small, do effect the welfare of our
nation. That gives me a feeling of satisfaction
that couldn't be found elsewhere."
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PREFACE

THE CURRENT SITUATION

The current GI Bill is a test program which is scheduled to

expire on,June 30, 1988. Further, there is no replacement program

on the boohs to revert to when the New CI Bill ends. The Omnibus

Veterans' Benefit. Improvement and Health Care Authorization Act

of 1986 eliminated the PostVietnam Era Veterans' Education

Assistance Program (VEAP) which was a program of smaller benefits

that followed in the footsteps but not the spirit of the three

preceding versions of the GI Bill.

Senator Cranston, chairman of the Veteran's Affairs

Committee, has introduced legislation which would make the New CI

Bill permanent. The bill has bipartisan support among members of

the committee and the Senate. Congressman Montgomery will soon

introduce permanent GI Bill legislation in the House of

Representatives. His bill has over 170 original cosponsors from

both parties.

ADDENDUM
WHILE THIS BOOK WAS IN PRINTING, CONGRESSMAN
MONTGOMERY INTRODUCED HIS BILL TO CONTINUE
THE GI BILL, IN ITS PRESENT FORM, ON 11 FEBRUARY
198T.

13C
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BACKGROUND

TRADITION OF EXCELLENCE

The New GI Hill,:which began on July 1, 1985, continues a

traditicn of educational assistance to veterans which began at

the end of World War II. Since then, education assistance for

veterans has evolved through several versions, but the theme

has been constant: young men and women serving their nation

and investing in their future.

As a readjustment mechanism for veterans returning to

civilian life, an incentive to attract quality young people

into military service and a pradent investment in our Nation's

human resources, it would be difficult to design a better

program than the New GI Bill. Participation by soldiers

indicate that it is an attractive program which enhances

recruiting and will be used to continue their .education aftei

the completion of military service. Further, our society as a

whole bene_its. Veterans repay the taxpayers several times

over in increased tax revenues and national and community

service.

Congressman Montgomery, chairman of the House Veterans'

Affairs Committee, who was the driving force in the passage of

the New GI Bill in 1984, describes the performance of the New

GI Hill this way:

The New GI Hill has played a major role in

saving the All- Volt'rteer Force...we must maintain

a cost-effective means of attracting higher
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percentages [of a declining youth population].

furthermore, we must have a program that gives us

bright, disciplined, goaloriented individuals.

After all, that is what builds a strong military

force. The New GI Bill, in concert with the

compensation and enlistment bonus' incentives, is

allowing all branches of the military service to

compete in the marketplace for quality personnel.

The Speaker of the House of Representatives has

made eloquent reference to the GI Bill and its

impact on the Nation. In his words: The very

best financial investment this country ever made

was the GI Bill of Rights at the end of World

Wafr II. It sent an entire generation of Amer

icans to college. And our country has been

reaping the dividends ever since.

He is.absolutely right. And we would like to

see those dividends continue.

The GI Bill has become an American institution with far

reaching effects. Prom Congressmen and government officials to

leaders in business and education, marry veterans got started as

productive, concerned citizens with the help of the GI Bill.

The New GI Bill is continuing this tradition of excellence.

138
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PURPOSE OF THE NEW GI BILL

Traditionally, the primary purpoie of all four versions of

the GI Bill, including the New GI Bill, is to provide an

educational assistance program to assist in the readjustment of

members of the armed forces to civilian life. However, the

advent of the All Volunteer Force expanded the role of the GI

Bill.
1

The description 'All Volunteer' is a misnomer. In truth,

today's Army is 'All Recruited.' Hence, Congress cited another

important reason for the New GI Bill which focuses on the Army's

recruiting needs. That reason -- to promote and assist the all

volunteer force in the recruitment of h.gh quality personnel --

has been a part of the total program which has produced the

brightest and strongest Army America has ever known.

Further, the New GI Bill is designed to encourage membership

in units of the Selected Reserve. The Army Reserve and National

Guard constitute an increasingly larger part of the Total Army's

combat and support units. Congress' intent here seems to be the

same as with the active component -- developing and maintaining a

force of high quality, dedicated soldiers.

In
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PURPOSE OF THE NEW GI BILL

PROV,IDE A NEW EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
.TO ASSIST IN READJUSTMENT OF MEMBERS OF THE
ARMED FORCES TO CIVILIAN LIFE

PROMOTE & ASSIST THE ALL-VOLUNTEER PROGRAM
PROMOTE RECRUITMENT OF HIGH QUALITY PERSONNEL

ENCOURAGE MEMBERSHIP IN UNITS OF THE
SELECTED RESERVE

FIGURE I

BENEFIT'S

The current GI Bill is open to all enlistees and officers

except those officers who received their commission by attending

a service academy or by participation in an ROTC scholarship

program.

Active duty soldiers are automatically enrolled in eae GI

Bill unless they choose not to participate. Those enrolled have

their basic pay reduced by $100 a month for their first 12 months

of service. Upon completion of honorable service, veterans are

eligible for a maximum of $10,800 ($9,000 for a two-year

enlistment) for full-time schooling. The soldier's contribution

of $1,200 is added to a maximum government contribution of $9,600

($7,800 for a two-year enlistment). The soldier's contribution

represents about a 15 percent reduction in pay during the first

year's service.
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Benefits are paid out to the veteran on a monthly basis for

36 acadtisic months as long as he is satisfactorily enrolled in a

Veterans Administration approved education program. The monthly

rate.depends on whether a veteran is a full or part-tiMe student.

A full-time student who served three years or longer receives $300

a month, while a full-time student who served two years receives

$250 a month. 'Qualified young men and women who enlist for hard-

to-fill occupational specialties are eligible to receive

additional benefits on top of the basic benefit through the Army

College Fund.

Figure 2 compares the three most recent veterans' education

programs. The current GI Bill requires a smaller personal cont-

ribution than VEAP while doubling the total benefit for a three-

year enlistment. Yet, the New GI Bill pays 20-30% less than the

Vietnam Era GI Bill.

COMPARISON OF BENEFITS UNDER THREE,PROGRAMS

ACTIVE ARMY

(EXAMPLE: mm -TEAR ENLISTER)

SOLDIER GOVT TOTAL

PROGRAM CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION BENEFIT

yri ERA 01 BILL 0 $16.121 /GLIM
(PRZ JAI4 Tr) ' '
YEA?

.
E2.T00 MAO *100

(JAN 11- JUN f)

NEW GI BILL AIX° $11.600 *10.100

FIGURE 2
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For Reserve component soldiers, the current GI Bill offers

substantial improvement over the previous program. Figure 3

compares the current and previous programs. An important

difference between the programs is that the current program is

open to all enlistees and reenlistees; whereas, Jie previous

program was targeted to certain recruits.

COMPARISON 'OF BENEFITS
RESERVE COMPONENTS

EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE' NEW GI
PROGRAM BILL

ILIGIRLES MILISTIM NPS. MOH SCHOOL MIL I 011:1170. FS.
GRAD. I -TIIA IN-SIMMOL HS MAD.

ALL ISM CATIMOMIDI

BENEFIT ITIPS ISCHHIIVIC

OIUGATION s TN, suscum news
BENEFIT To SLASMYR

To HAMM

HOW PAID undminonamoir or
scnooa MOMS MUD
QUAltITILY

FIGURE 3

MITITLISMNT

s rim mak= assaays

SIAM AT IMMO 11211
*UN AT COMM° MI TOM
%pa AT IMMO TOLL TAM

CASH PAID UCH SEMOTT
MONTH

PARTICIPATION

The New GI Bill has been a tremendous success with soldiers.

Active and Reserve soldiers are participating (enrolling) in the

current program An impressive nu:abers.

Since the program started in 1985, over 76 percent of

eligible active duty soldiers have elected to participate and

contribute the $1,200. Further, monthly participation rates have

risen steadily. Since June 1986, the monthly rate has been nearly

85%. Enrollment in the GI Bill has nearly doubled that of VEAP.
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ACME ARMY PARTICIPATION IN GI BILL..
MILT IN6 DECEUBER 1166)

MUST 60,41. SO Is

0

"..
SO

ISCGIBLIf ENROLLED Is ACP

12

170,637 120,363 TS

MONT11:1:f RAIZ'

w a SS

00,461

St St St

n
CY Ilse
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TEO
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FIGURE 4

The GI Bill is proving to be as popular with Reservists and

Guardsmen as it is with their active counterparts. Reserve

component soldiers who join a unit for a six year obligation are

eligible to begin using benefits after successfully completing six

months of service and skill training. Through December 1986,

27,916 Reserve component soldiers had applied for education

benefits. Annually, Reservists and Guardsmen are using the New G:

Bill (an exceptionally effective incentive for high quality young

Americans) at a rate of over three times that of the previous

Reserve component program.

The other services are also experiencing vastly increased

participation compared to VEAP. As with the Army, GI Bill

participation rates for the other services in general are nearly

double those of VEAP.
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PARTICIPATION IN THE NEW GI I3ILL
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FUNDING

It is 'a powerful point to note that the Secretary of Defense

and all Services feel so strongly about retention of the GI Bill

that they are willing to fund it within the DOD. However, funding

for GI Bill education benefits has allays been in the Veterans

Administration (VA) budget. This is because the primary purpose

of the GI Bill id readjustment to civilian life. First and

foremost, the GI Bill is a'program for veterans. Both bi.ls

introduced in the Senate and House of Representatixesp.eep funding

within the VA for that reason. Nonetheless, .here are other sound

reasons for not transferring funding to another agency.

.._
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The VA has oTrer 40 years of experience in planning, budgeting

and executing education programs for veterans. The administrative

expertise and machiniiy is in the VA. Additionally, regardless

of which agency funds the program, the VA will execute it.

Taking the budgeting process from the VA causes an undo

administrative burden and the very real problem of the VA being

responsible for executing a program mith-a budget developed by

another agency.

THE NEW GI BILL SUCCESS STORY

Historically, the GI Hill education programs have been among

the country's most effective legislation. The New GI Hill will

be no different. In return for faithful service, veterans

receive modest but important support in the form of an investment

that will benefit the nation, as well as the individual for a

lifetime.

A STRONGER ARMY

Enlistment incentives are essential for successful Army

recruiting. Theincreased complexities of modern warfare demand

that the Army maintain the quality of its enlisted force. The

Army needs quality soldiers who will perform well during their

initial enlistment and will develop into qualified leaders who

can successfully meet the challenges they will face over the

course of a career.
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The Army's quality program stems from the recognition that

military service is a profession-into which lateral accessions

are net possible. Today's recruits will be tomorrow's sergeants.

From 30 to 40% of the individuals who enlist in the Army will

reenlint. It is from these individuals that the Army must

develop its cadre of career soidiers. These individuals must

perform well during their first enlistment and must be able to

adapt to the changing requirements placed on them as their jobs

change through second and succeeding enlistments. For some

individuals those changes will require the ability to learn

complex technical skills, while for others it will require them

to have or learn the skills to be trainers and leaders. The

point is that the Army must select not only those who will

successfully.complete their first enlistment but also those kinds

of individuals who will rise to the greater challenges of

leadership.

In recent years, the quality of Army recruits has improved

dramatically in terms of education and Armed Forces Qualification

Test (AFQT) scores. This is primarily due to improved recruiting

incentives such as the New GI Bill. Today over 90 percent of

Army recruits are high school graduates compared to 54 percent in

1980. Based on requirements determined by the Army's skill

proponents, the percentage of recruits scoring in the upper half

of the AFQT jumped from 26 to 63 percent over the same period.

These improvements have reduced attrition and indineipline and

enhanced performance. In fact, these quality recruits have saved

146

1.....yelmair=11117.1S



142

the nation the expense of recruiting and training a division's

worth of manpower each year.

IMPROVED QUALITY OF ARMY RECRUITS
ACTIVE AOCZEGIONS

FY 80 FY 83 FY 86

MENTAL CATEGORY

IMA
IV

HIGH SCHOOL
GRADUATES

26%

52%

54%

61%

12%

.88%

63%

4%

91%

FIGURE 6

Smarter soldiers perfcrm -ubstantially better. Figures 7 and

8 show the results of sone tests which vividly point this out.

Analyses of virtually every measure of performance (e.g., tank

firing, skill tests, promotions, indiscipline indicators, etc.,)

supports the same common-sense premise -- Smarter Soldiers Are

Better Soldiers.
2

Among enlistment incentives, education incentives are

critical for recruiting quality young people. rgure 9 shows

some of the positive. effects of education benefits. The GI Bill

and Army College Fund expand the recruiting market by attracting

college-oriented youth. Note that 43 percent of quality recruits

(APQT I-IIIA, tigh school graduates) would not have joined the

Army without the combined benefits of the GI Bill and Army

College Pund.
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QUALITY SOLDIERS PERFORM BETTER
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POSITIVE EFFECTS OF, EDUCATION BENEFITS
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FIGURE 11)

,The GI Bil3, is one of a package of incentives which attract

quality recruits, and in conjunction with the Army College Fund;

it becomes a significant part of the Army recruiting effort.

Moreover, the GI Bill has drawing power of its own. Recent

analysis shows that quality male recruits were up 10 percent

during the first 12 months of the Hew GI Bill over the last 12

months of VEAP.
3 Similar results have been recorded in the

Reserve Components. For example, USAR ANT recruits

increased 24 percent, and six-year enlistments increased 28

percent when comparing the first year of Hew GI Bill to the year

prior.
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The General Accounting Office reported in March 1986 that:

while the potential impact of the New CI Bill

on recruiting cannot be conclusively deter-

mined; Army statistics show a marked recruiting

improvement since the New GI Bill was started

on July 1, 1985. In addition, data obtained from

the Reserve and National Guard components of the

Army and Air Force show other improvements in

enlistment, reenlistment, and extension sta-

tistics since the start of the New CI Bill. 4

Now that recruiting resources are dwindling while recruiting

challenges Are increasing, the GI Bill is becoming even more

vital as a recruiting tool. Improving employment opportunities

and a shrinking youth population are occurring at the same time

that incentives are being cut (Figure 10). As shown on the

next page, reduction& in the enlistment bonus, Army College Fund

zed advertising but4ets along with ever worsening pay (relative

to earnings) and the prohibition on paying both Army

College Fund and enlistment bonuses to a recruit have increased

the role played "by the New GI Bill.
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COMMITTED STREWS

In addition to financial support, military service benefits

soldiers in other ways. Tile responsibility and discipline

required by the Army fosters the maturity, self-confidence and

values necessary foi success in college and throughout life.

The financial support combined with character development

result in mature, committed students preparing for productive

citizenship.

REACHING. FOR EXCELLENCE

The Army has for a lcng time been committed to education.

Recently that commitment -- Reaching for Excellence -- has been

intensified by assisting soldiers who have completed their

service with the transition to the academic environment.

"Partnership In Excellence' is a joint program by the Army and

the American Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admission

Officers to ease the transition from service to school.

Each year the Army discharges about 70,000 soldiers who are

headed for some type of an education experience. Through

"Partnership In Excellence" the Army will now be linked to

counselors and admission officers nationwide. This network

will facilitate the enrollment of soldiers pursuing a college

education. The Army believes its obligation to its soldiers

involves following through beyond their enlistment. In

conjunction with the GI Bill, 'Partnership in Excellence' will

help better fulfill that obligation.

152
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A BETTER AMERICA

Benefits of the financial support provided by th, GI Bill do

not accrue-solely to the individual. Because the support is

wisely piovided in the form of an investment in human resources,

it will pay dividends to the country for many years.

The Senate Veterans' Affairs Committee found that education

assistance to-Veterans Was repayed several times over. Senate

Report 90-1243 (September 1976) concluded that:

For each dollar spent in education benefits,

...the Federal government has received from

63-66 in additional tax revenue from veterans

whose education has given them increased

earning capicity.

This finding was.recently supported by Senator Cranston in the

January 6, 1987, Congressional Record.

Rot only does the use of educational benefits

to recruit college-oriented young people benefit

our Armed Forces, but it also benefits our

country in.terms of the developMent of a more

highly educated labor force...There is no

question that increased taxes paid over a life -

tine bf work on increased income repays many times

the cost of the education borne by the taxpayer...

The enormous contributions that have been made by
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the three predecessor GI bills to our Nation

through the education and training of our citizenry

and the increased productivity, gross national

product, and tax,reventles produced thereby are

well known.

It is easy to see the impact that the GI Bill has on the

economy and goveinment revenues by comparing the increased income

resulting from a college education to the Cost of the GI Bill.

The median earnings difference between workers with a college

degree and those workers. who only completed high school is more

than $9,400 annually, which is virtually the same as the

one-tine, total government contribution for the GI Bill.

The cost of the ,GI Bill pales in significance to the massive

Pell,educatiOn grants of close to $4 billion annually.which are

provided with no expectation of service to the nation whatsoever.

It is interesting to note that in 1985 the maximum Pell grant for

four years was $8,400 which is roughly equivalent to the maximum

$9,600 government contribution for the GI Bill.

Not only does the veteran serve -his country, but he

voluntarily disrupts his life to do so. Veterans returning to

civilian life find themselves three or more years behind their

contemporaries in formal education or civilian job experience.

Although the Army teaches discipline, self confieence and

success-oriented character traits, the majority Army jobs are

tar.
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not directly applicable to civilian life. The GI Bill helps ease

the transition.

Senator Murkowaki, in the January 6, 1987, Congressional

Record, eloquently refers to the obligation of the citizen to

serve his country and the country to provide for his readjustment

as the interlocking tapestry of duty and responsibility.*

The Odited States has no obligation more fun-

damental than ensuring that the'freedoms and

opportunities we enjoy are protected from those

who would destroy them by force of arms. To

meet this obligation.to its citizens the Nation

must impose upon them a corresponding duty to

support the Armed Porces which defend both the

Natipa and the Constitution which protects our

liberties. At times, that support must take

the form of service in the Armed Porces.

When circumstances compel us to call Amer-

icans to arms we, in turn, have a responsibility

to provide for the readjustment to civilian life

of those who have protected our liberty. Veter-

ans' benefits are one of the major tools we have

to meet this responsibility...

In a nation in.treasingly dependent upon the

knowledge and skills df its citizens, such a
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benefit (education) works to the adyantage of

society as well as the, veteran. In an economy

where the future of an individual is dependent on

his or her education, such a benefit allows an

individual to prepare for a productive and

independent life. An education benefit is uniquely

appropriate to assist veterans in their readjustment

to civilian life and to provide the United States

with the productive and skilled citizens we will need

to succeed in the highly competitive international

economy we can expect to face in the future.

CONCLUSION

The Army has embraced the New GI Bill and promoted it as a

positive reflection of its commitment to America's youth. This

philosophy has helped advance the Army to the highest level of

readiness and public acceptance in many years. In October

1986, Congressman Montgomery, chairman of the House Committee

on Veterans' Affairs and a senior member of the House Armed

Services Committee, led a delegation which visited basic

training sites to observe and evaluate the implementatiorof

the New GI Bill. In his report Congressman Montgomery

concluded that

The delegation believes that the New GI Bill

is on track. All services are implementing

this program effectively and making gooe use

156- -1 1,-
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of the flexibility built into the New GI Bill

to best meet their own needs. The delegation

is convinced that theNew GI Bill is success-

fully fulfilling its intended purposes which

are to enhance recruitment and retention in the

services and to provide a meaningful readjust-

meilt benefit to the men and women entering mili-

tary service today...

The New GI Bill has enabled the services to open

the previously untapped recruitment market of

college oriented young people and to broaden

access to the potential recruits who are employ-

ment oriented. The Army's utilization of the

New GI Bill is a particularly impressive success

story. For the first time, the Army has...

broken the link between unemployment and recruiting

and vastly improved the quality of new recruits

[Figure 12). Only 4% of FY 1986 nonprior service

accessions are in Category IV, a remarkable

improvement over the 57% of Category IV's

accessed during FY 1980.

Thn reserve components have also utilized the

New GI Bill successfully and effectively. Units

visited by the delegation indicated significant

11
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visited by the delegation indicated significant

increases in retention and in recruitment of

high quility;young people...

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE, MALE, IMA CONTRACTS VS.
MAI v UNEMPLOYMENT RATES
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The conclusion reached by the delegation is that

the New GI Bill is working extremely well. It is

the primary benefit that is drawing high school

graduates in the upper mental categories into

active and reserve military service. The dele-

gation is mindful, however, that the recruiting

climate is currently, and will continue to be,

fragile due to the improving national employment

situation and the constantly shrinking cohort

of young people from which the services must

reruit. In view of this, it is the belief of
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the delegation that the total benefit package

now available must not be reduced or diminished.

The New GI Bill, combined with an adequate level

of base pay, enlistment and reenlistment bonuses

and other benefits, will allow the services to

continue and even surpass their current level of

successful recruitment and retention.

The New GI Bill is a winner for the veteran, the Army and

the Nation. The permanent continuation of the GI Bill will

continue the tradition of assisting veterans, encouraging the

enlistment of quality young men and women, and supporting a

vital, productive American society.

tug
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EXPLANATORY NOTES

1. New GI Bill requirements and-benefits are in Chapter 30,
Title 38, USC for active-component service memb:rs and chapter
106, Title 10, USC for those in the reserve components.

2. The tests referenced in Figure 7 were conducted in 1980 for
SHORAD engagements, 1981 for combat-simulated tank gunnery, and
1984,for infantry combat simulaion.

3. The ten percent increase was estimated using econometric
techniques to Asolate the effect of the New GI Bill on
recruiting high school v:aduates, AFQT wales (GMA).
Yariables included in the analysis were number cf recruiters,
high-quality mission, other missions, population, unemployment,
GI Bill and dummy variables for quarters cf the year analyzed,
and Army Recruiting Brigades. The coefficient o:,the variable
measuring the effect of the New GI Bill was highly significant
and implied'a 9.7 percent increase in GMA contracts as a result
of implementing the New GI Bill. For more detailed
information, contact one of the Army representatives shown on
the title page.

4. GAO Report, "The New GI Bill: Potential Impact of Ending
it Early, March 1986, as reprinted in Congressional Record,
6 January, 1987, page S230.

16D,
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Legislative Authority.

Oa October 19. 1914. Public 'Law 911-525 was
enacted. This Act provides for a new educational

'assistance programthe Veterans' Educational
Assistance Act of 1914. mon commonly known as
*the New 01 BBL" The new program also provides
for an educational. entitlement program fcr
members of the Selected Reserve. Significant
provisions of this legislationart listed below.

The New GI Bill- Eligibility
and Entitknot
Individuals who come on active duty between July

1915 and June 30. 1918 will be automatically
enrolled under the New 01 Bill, unless they dis-
enroll during Basic Military Training. Once signed
up. active duty members will have MOO deducted
from their pay for the first 12 full months of active
duty. This reduction is nonrefundable. To receive
full postservice benefits u veterans. members
must:

(I) Serve at least three years active duty
after June 30, 1985.

(2) Have received a high school diploma or
equivalent prior to completion of their initial tour
of active duty.

(3) Separate from service with an honorabk
discharge.

Air Force members can begin using benefits after
two years of active duty. Benefits expire 10 years
after last discharge or recast from service.

The new program RA a total benefit of 510,800
for three years' of service at the rate of 5300 per
month for up to 36 months. Three quarter time
study wilt be paid at the rate of 5225 per month.
and half time study at a rate of 5150 pa month.

The program will pay for studies at post-secondary
Institutions which ate approved by the Veterans
Administration for the payment of educational
benefits.

Apprenticeship and other on-the iob training.
cooperative programs, farm cooperative. flight
training and correspondence training are not
approved for payment under the new GI Bill.
Work-study, tutorial assistance and educational
loan programs are also not approved for payment
of benefits.

Graduates of Service Academies and ROTC
scholarship recipients are not eligible.

The New GI BIU for Selected Reserve*

Selected Reserve enlisted personnel who enlist,
extend or reenlist for at least six years from July I.
1985, are 'eligible for a total benefit of $5,040..
Officers who, on July I. 1985. or later, agree to
serve for six additional years beyond their current
Selected Reserve obligation. arc also eligible. The
benefit is paid at the rate of S140 per month for up
to 36 months for full-time eduation attendance;
$105 per month for three-quarter time attendance;
and 570 per month for halftime attendance.

There is no deduction from pay for Reserve
members.

Reserve members are eligible for benefits as soon
as they have completed initial active-duty training
and ISO days service in the Selected Reserve.
Members who have a bachelor's degree are net
eligible for benefits.

If additional information is desired concerning the
New GI Bill prior to entry on active duty. please
contact your nearest Air Force recruiter. For those
on active duty. see your education counselor at
your local base eduation center.

Maud Resent conslau of units Wooing to the Ale Rome
Resent and tic Ale National Guard &I ntl as lion indIndiuls
terms es IC*4 day on stattesty lost atiguttaU
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J. CLAY SMITH, JR.

DEAN

HOWARD UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF LAW

Dr. J. Clay Smith, Jr., is the Dean of Howard University Law School.

He was born in Omaha, Nebraska, and attended Creighton University, graduat

ing in 1964. He obtained his J.D. from Howard University School of Law

in 1967. From 1967-1971, he was on active duty with the Army, where he

served as Captain in the Judge Advocate General Corps. He received his

LL.H. and S.J.D. degrees from the George Washington University National

Law Center in 1970,and 1977, respectively.

Dean Smith began his legal c'reer in 1971 as an associate with Arent,

Pox, Kintner, Plotkin and Kahn where he specialized in the field of anti

trust and trade regulation law. From 1974 through 1978, he served as

Deputy Chief of the Cable Television Bureau and as Associate General Counsel

of the Federal Communications Commission. In both positions, he was the

first Black person appointed to a policymaking position at the FCC since

the creation of that agency. In 1978, Dr. Smith was appointed by President

Jimmy Carter as Commissioner of the Equal Employment Opportmlity Commission,

where he also served for one year as Acting Chairman in President Ronald W.

Reagan's Administration.

Dr. Smith began teaching at Howard University Law School in 1482 where

he taught communications law, torts, administrative law, civil rights law,

legal methods, and administrative process. In 198b, he was appointed Dean

of the Howard University School of Law.

Dr. Smith is a former president of the Washington Bar Association.

He became the first Black person to serve as the National president of the

171
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Federal Bar Association since it was founded in 1920. He served in that

capacity from 1980-81. Dr. Smith also served as Federal Bar Association

representative to the American°Bar Association House of Delegates from

1981-83. In 1981, Dr. Smith was selected by the Board of Trustees of

Howard University to receive the "Outstanding Alumni Award" in the area of

Law and Social Rez,cm.. In 1985, Dr. Smith received the highest award be

stowed by the Nation' Bar Association, the C. Francis Stradford Award.

Recently, he was elected as a Fellow to the American Bar Association Foun

dation and received the 011ie May Cooper Award from the Washington Bar

Association.

Dr. Smith has filed several Amicua briefs before the Supreme Court

and other federal courts and administrative agencies on civil rights and

related issues.

Dr. Smith is a prolific author. He has published approximately 85

articles on a variety of issues, including torts, class actions, attor

neys fees, legal history of Black lawyers, civil rights, and Haitian art.

Most recently, he has prepared a bibliographical index on genetic engi

neering, and he is currently researching the history of Black lawyers in

America in preparaton for a book. In addition to his numerous other acti

vities, Dr. Smith has taught Church School at Asbury United Methodist

Church for 20 years. He also served as President of the Friends of the

D.C. Youth Orchestra Program.

12/4/86
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TESTIMONY TO

SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS AFFAIRS

UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FEBRUARY 18, 1987

PRESENTED BY

CHARLES B. SAUNDERS, JR.

VICE PRESIDENT FOR GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION
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Mr. Chairman and lumbers of the Subcommittee:

I as Charles S. Saunders Jr., Vice President for

Governmental Relations of the American Council on Education.

ACE is the major coordinating body for higher education,

representing the nation's large, small, public, private, two-year,

four-year and graduate colleges and universities and their national

essociatic.ns. This constituency is large and diverse: a

$100 billion enterprise accounting for about three percent of the

Gross National Product, employing 800,000 instructional and research

staff and one million administrative and support personnel in 3,300

institutions enrolling over 12 Killion students and serving millions

sore in public service programs.

On behalf of ACE, I am pleased to have this opportunity to

testify in strong support of HR 1085, to make permanent the authority

for the New GI Bill. This legislatioh is a high priority for the

higher education community.

Juan as the original post-World War II GI Bill sparked a

broadening of opportunities which changod Ameacan higher education

dramatically, so we believe that the New GI Bill promises to

significantly assist research, industry, and the military services to

obtain the talent they need to maintain America's security and

international competitiveness. The early success of the legislation

in its pilot stage stands as a remarkable tribute to its sponsor,

Chairman Sonny Montgomery, and his colleagues on the House Committee

on Veterans Affairs.
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In a publication distributed to all members of Congress last

month, A Higher Education Agenda for the 100th Congress, ACE

identified the community's primary legislative objectives. Among

those priorities, it urges renewal of the New GI Bill, with the

following statement:

"In 1985, the new GI Bill was enacted as a three-year test

program designed tr) meet the critical skill needs of the armed

services and the ieservcs, hnd to enhance the lives of military

personnel by helping them to pursue postsecondary education. It has

already proved successful: tens of thousands of active duty,

vational Guard, and Reserve personnel have made a financial

commitment to their ftture education under the proqcam, and the

quality of recruits has risen significantly. The higher education

community st:ongly supports renewal of the legislation before it

expires in June of 1988."
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STATEMENT OF FRANK MiNBEL

Mr. Chairman, my name is Frank Mensal. I serve on the ;staff of both the

Association of Community College Trustees and the American Association of

Community and Junior Colleges, as manager of federal relations for both

'Associations. It is a special personal pleasure for me to spear at this

hearing, :Ir. Chairman, and to reaffirm to you and this Committee the strong

support of the community colleges for the New CI Bill.

We are very pleased to see such tremendous appreciation in Qv' House for

the program's success, as shown by the more than 180 Members who are

cosponsoring Chairman Montgomery's reauthorization bill, H.R. 1085, and to see

the Senate Veterans' Affairs Committee moving as vigorously on reauthorization

as this Committee is. You will be pleased to know that we already have written

letters of appreciation to every cosponsor.

Community colleges have been very active in support of the New CI Bill

since the original introduction of H.R. 1400 four Congresses ago. And our

members have no cause to regret that support. It is clear to us that the New

CI Bill is exceeding its expectations as a three year pilot and is now making

vital contributions to the national interest on at least three fronts:

national security, postsecondary education access, and a more competitive

American skill base.

The program's contributions to national security are underscored by marked

improvements in the general guslity of personnel entering the armed services,

particularly the Army. We know these improvements are being graphically

documented for you by the Army. If the White House continues to oppose the New

CI Bill, it will do so in the face of strong evidence that the program Z. the

key to the increasing success of an allvoluntear military.

11
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A vital innovation in the New CI Bill is the college incentives it offers

for Reserve and National Guard members who take six-year enlistments. Those of

us who have supported this innovation from the beginning have often referred to

it as an "up front" CI Bill. By allowing the Guard and Reserve enlistees to

take college courses whils.serving their military obligation, the program gives

the defense system the direct benefit of the enhanced skills -- this in

contrast with the traditional CI Bill, in which the skill enhancement comes

after the service. The more sophisticated our weapons systems become, the more

dependent our security is on the skills of the personnel using them.

Mr. Zhairman, this mixing of military service and college training

strengthens both national security and the oconony, in both the short and the

long run. The college benefits that Guard and Reserve members reCQLVe during

their enlistments are bound to strengthen their civilian careers. Many skills

so gained will find that way sooner or later into civilian defense work, as

well as benefit the military directly through extended enlistments. In many

cases, they will do both.

A perhaps more subtle benefit of the New CI Bill is its potential for

alleviating the competition among the military, employers and higher education

for the reduced flow of high school graduates -- competition that poses

hardships for all three sectors. In the jargon of affirmative action, great

numbers of the Guard and Reserve enlistees who use their New CI Bill benefits

will become "two -fors" and 'three - fors.- That is, they will be college

stud/re carving as part-time soldiers, whose training then may lure them into

, pe?-time employment as well.

It is worth noting, Mr. Chairman, that a recent analysis by Carol Frances,

a Consulting economist who is the former chief economist of the American
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Council on Education, shows that the biggest single step that a working

American takes up the pay ladder is the completion of the two-year college

degree. It shows that a worker with a two-year college degree earns an average

of SO percent of what a bachelors degree holder earns, while the Individual

with only a high school diploma earns an average of just 70 percent of what

community college graduate earns. Many of the Guard and Reserve members who

use the New CI Sill benefits in community colleges will pursue the technical

training that fits the skill needs of the local military unit in which they

servo. They are bound to see this as a way to better themselves in rani. and

pay with14 the military.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, we should not underestimate the importanse of the

New CI 8i11 to the American dream of universal postsecondary educational

opportunity. With a marked decline in the purchasing power of student

financial aid as measured against full costs of college attendance, increasing

numbers of high school graduates are Mel, to turn to the New ni Sill as their

surest path to a college education.

In summary, the community colleges are enthusiastic about the

opportunities for greater produrtiVity that the New GI Sill offer' both re

!ndividual Americans and to the national 000nosy slrxe. In its quiclening

quest for an economic competitiveness policy that will give this country the

technical education and skill bass it must have to meet she global challenge,

Congress already has a cornerstone in place in the New CI Bill. We know this

Committee appreciates this fact.

We thank you again, Mr. Chairman, and all your col.a.gues who have

supported and are supporting the New GI Sill, and va applaud the dauntless

leadership and vision of Congressman Montgomery in building this program.

Please count on the continued support of the community colleges.

178)



Members of the Committee:

The National Association of Veterans Program Administrators

Honorable Mr. Montgomery, Chairman and Distinguished

California State University, Chico

Office.of Veterans Affairs
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Committee on Veterans Affairs

of the

House of Representatives

on H.R. 1085

Testimony of Ms. Bertie Rowland

I am Bertie Rowland, president of the National

Association of Veterans Program Administrators (NAVPA). NAVPA

is most grateful for the opportunity to share with you some

of our thoughts, concerns and enthusiasm for the new GI Bill,

under Chapter 30 and Chapter 106.

My testimony is to speak in favor of H.R. 1085, which

extends the New GI Bill' for active duty service persons

under Title 38, Chapter 30 and for reservists under Title

,10, Chapter 106.

- 1 -
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NAVPA represents the directors of veterans educational

programs throughout this country. We are in an excellent

position to view the effects of the educational programs as

we serve the students who partake of the various GI Bills

and dependents educational assistance programs.

It is unquestioned that VA Educational Benefits have

had a positive influence on our country. Veterans returning

from WWII, KOREA, and VIETNAM used their GI BIlls to help

them to readjust to the new and changing civilian employment

opportunities. It is well documented that these programs have

effectively paid for themselves many times over by increasing

the overall productivity of the citizenry, and by subsequently

returning increased tax dollars to the government. These

programs not only provide readjustment benefits, but also

encourage veterans to aggressively participate in today's

technology.

Under the Veterans Education Assistance Program, this

country attempted its first peace-time educational benefit

package, and its return to an all volunteer" service. While

VEAP had some degrees of success, a poor participation rate

served to highlight that the program did not attract the

quality recruits required to staff our increasingly

sophisticated military. The program had limited appeal. From

-2-
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the students' point of view, many of them could find adequate

funding for college through utilization of Student Financial

Aid--without taking years out of their lives to participate

in the military.

The New GI Bill has a higher benefit rate than did

the reAP. With an 85% participation rate in the new bill,

this difference is significant enough to indicate that it

does attract educationally oriented recuruits. Furthermore,

the New GI Bill encourages retention in the military services.

If the serviceperson wishes to have more money for college

and his or her subsequent readjustment to a civilian

occupation, their lengthened commitment to the military will

provide this funding. The 'New GI Bill* has experienced great

success and the Chairman of this committee has our appreciation

for his work in this area.

Industry and educational institutions are interested

in attracting the same group of young people that is targeted

for recruitment by the military. The New Reservists GI Bill

is very attractive to these individuals. It allows for the

pL.suit of an education while holding a job, contributing

to the local community, and enjoying the satisfaction of

service to one's country . . . all by the same individual.

This incentive to serve in the reserves has Leen heralded

- 3 -
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as a success as demonstrated by the rising educaitonal level

of the recruits, by a lengthening of the average enlistment

period and by the increasing participation rate in the Chapter

106 program.

One of the elements which is generating support for

the reservists GI Bill is it's overwhelming acceptance by

the educational community. This acceptance is partly due to

it's inclusion in the Veterans Educational Benefits delivery

system. This system includes members of the Department of

Defense, t veterans Administration and the Veterans Affiars

Offices at educational institutions. It is important to

maintain the visibility and direct support that is generated

through the VA and the IHL's. This established support network

has proven to be a vital link in problem solving

the needs of the reservists on campus.

and satisfying

After service in the military, the educationally

motivated veteran will begin or continue their academic career,

and since the early eras of veterans educational benefits,

the GI Bills have been viewed as a readjustment benefit. The

returning veterans of every era have come home to observe

that their peers have an advantage of several years in their

jobs or professions. The NEW GI BILL in it's current delivery

system will continue to offer support and readjustment to

-4 -
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these returning veterans. It may be appropriate at this time

to suggest that since benefit delivery is primarily after

the serviceperson is discharged and that the targeted objective

is readjustment and support, it is our feeling that funding

should remain as currently budgeted through the Veterans

Administration.

Implementation of Chapter 106, reservists GI Bill

has been a success, however, we feel that the difficulties

in the distribution process for the Notice of Basic Eligibility

should be addressed to preserve the integrity of the program.

In conclusion the National Association of Veterans

Program Administrators is enthusiastic about the benefits

of the New GI Bills. Their value has been demonstrated in

the Department of Defense statistics and is currently proving

'itself on our campuses. We therefore support H.R. 1085 and

the permanent installation of the New GI Bill.

We thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to

support this very worthwhile program.

- 5 -
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STATEMENT ON
`THE NEW G.I. BILL CONTINUATION ACT"

H.R. 1085
"to amend title 38, U.S.C.

to make permanent the New G.I.

BEFORE THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION, TRAINING AND EMPLOYMENT

VETERANS' AFFAES COMMITTEE

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

18 FEBRUARY 1987

BY

ROBERT. W. NOLAN

FLEET RESERVE ASSOCIATION

NATIONAL EXECUTIVE SECRETARY

Not to be released until made public
by the House Committee on Veterans' Affairs

FLEET RESERVE ASSOCIATION
Serving Career Enlisted Personnel of the

U.S. NAVY U.S. MARINE CORPS U.S. COAST GUARD
1303 New Hampshire Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20036

(202) 785-2768
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ZNTRODOCTION

Mr. Chairman and members of this distinguished Committee, I
am Robert W. Nolan, National Executive Secretary of the Fleet
Reserve Association. The PRA is a national military organization
comprised of over 159,000 enlisted personnel of the United States
Navy, Marine Corps and Coast Guard, active duty and retired. As
a retired Navy Chief Petty Officer, it is my privilege to speak
for not only my Shipmates but for all active duty personnel of
the three Sea Services'on,the vital subject of making the New
G.I. Bill permanentby law. As we learned on last Thursday and
Friday when we toured the recruit training centers at Fort Knox,
Lacklan&AFIL Orlando and Parris Island, young Americans entering
the service today are vitally interested in furthering their
formal education. For the vast majority of the several hundred
recruits-we talked to, education was their primary motivation for
enlisting in the service, and earning educational benefits under
the New G.I. Bill was the first step they could take to achieve
their goal.

PRESENTATION

Mr. Chairman, the Fleet Reserve Associatior 'as long been an
active advocate of a peacetime program which afr-cds young
Americans the opportunity to Obtain a higher education in
exchange for a stated period of service in our armed forces.
Exactly 22 years ago today I was involved in presenting the FRA's
testimony in support of U.S. Senator Ralph W. Yarborough's
(of Texas) Cold War G.I. Bill, S.9, before the Senate Committee
on Veterans' Affairs.

G.I. Bills of the past were based upon the philosophy of
rewarding those who served our nation in wartime by assuring them
a measure of readjustment assistance as they returned to civilian
pursuits. Based on 40 years of G.I. Bill experience, no one can
question the overwhelming and total success of previous G.I.
Bins.

However, to meet today's challenges, we must dasign and
apply a New G.I. Bill philosophy. We want to assure the
continuing success of the AlrVolunteer Force. In the cold
reality of our shrinking national demographics, we must attract
the best of our nation'[ youth to serve in our Armed Forces.
This can be done equitably with cost-effectiveness by making the
New G.I. Bill permanent law.

THE NEW G.I. BILL'S PERFORMANCE TO DATE

Based upon the statistics over the period from 1 July 1985
through 30 September 1986, the New G.I. Bill is one of the most
effective recruiting tools since the implementation of the All
Volunteer Force. Over fifty-six percent of the eligible
enlistees who have joined the military since 1 July 1985 have
chosen to participate in the New G.I. Bill.

By comparison, analysis of the participation statistics of
VEAP over an 8-year period reveals that only 37 percent of
eligible enlistees participated in VEAP. What is even more
revealing is that of the participating 37 percent, almost half,
48 percent. chose to withdraw and reclaim their contributions
after a period of military service.

The following participation percentases show the
overwhelming, approval and acceptance of the New G.I. Bill:

NEW G.I. BILL VEAP

Navy 41% 19%

Marines 60% 8%

Army 74% 20%

Air Force 41% 1%
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FRA SUPPORT OF THE NEW G.I. BILL

The Fleet Reserve Association's total ,support of making the
New G.I. Bill permanent law is based upon what, the FRA has
learned from active duty personnel. FRA's,active duty members
have voiced their full acceptance of the New G.I. Bill. The SeaServices' senior enlisted military leaders have informed us of
the popularity,of the new G.I. Bill with junior enlisted person-nel. Naval Reserve officials state the Naval Reserve will be
hurt significantly if the New G.I.

Bill's termination date is notextended beyond 1988. The Naval Reserve and Marine Corps Reservespokesmen say both Reserve groups have enjoyed a substantial
increase in reenlistments and extensions because of the New G.I.Bill with corresponding increases in readiness and Unit
stability.

The last week in Jar lry the FRA participated in hosting the
U.S. Navy's "Recruiters Le the Year Week" here do Washington.D.C. The Navy's top recruiters and recruiting commands werehonored for their successful performance in 1986. We met and
discussed Navy recruiting with the top 20 officer and enlisted
recruiters of 1986. Each and every one of them unequivocally
stated that the New G.I. Bill is their most attractive lure to
young potential enlistees, in the upper mental categories.

Because of these reports. PRA was delighted on 4 February
1987, to express its unqualified

support far the passage of H.R.
1085's companion bill, S.9. before the Senate Committee on
Veterans' Affairs.

IMPRESSIONS OF THE NEW G.I. BILL GAINED
ON A FIELD TRIP TO RIMIIIIT TRAINING CENTERS

Thanks to Chairman Montgomery, the PRA had the opportunity
last week to experience the New G.I. Bill's acceptability among
recruits of all Services. As, you know, we were invited to
accompany members of this Committee on a two-day field trip,
12-13 February 1987, to military recruit training centers at Fort
Knox, EY./ Lackland AFB, Tex.: Orlando, Fla.: and Parris Island,S.C. Allow me to relate our impressions gained on the fieldtrip.

Each visit to a recruit center began with a briefing
explaining that Service's policy, ia compliance with the
Department of Defense's directive, of informing the recruits oftheir New G.I. Bill benefits and allowing the individual recruit
to make the decision on whether or not to participate. T:sis was
followed by attendance to a class of new recruits receiving their
initial briefing on the New G.I. Bill. We were present for theentire class. Then our group, interviewed a second group of
recruits who had made their decision as to whether or not they
would participate in the New G.I. Bill and we would interview
them as to their reasons for their decision. At each briefing,
Chairman Montgomery's personality and remarks set the stage for
an easy and free exchange of comments with the recruits
expressing their opinions.

The following are the impressions gained during the two-dayfield trips

1. The New G.I. Bill is attracting the brightest
and best of young Americans to serve our
country and most are joining the service for
three or four years.

2. Almost ALL are h50 school graduates, and I
was pleasantly surprised to see the compar-
ative high percentage who already had earned
college credits.
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3. Young America is hearing of the availability
of the New G.I. Bill. The recruits stated
they had learned of it through a variety of
sources: the local recruiter, through high
school, from relatives and television ads.

4. The military Services' administration of
informing the recruits of their New G./. Bill
benefits is very good and each Service is
monitoring its performance and comparing its
success with the success of the other
Services.

S. it was obvious -that this monitoring had
caused changes in the individual Services'
administration of their New G.I. Bill
information classes to gain increased
effectiveness and participation.

4. This on-going analysis by the Services is
accompanied by a policy of adjustment in the
explanation of the New G./. Bill and the time
the recruit has to decide on whether or not
to participate. The wisdom of this flexi-
bility being afforded to the Services is
clearly demonstrated by the fact that since
30 September 1986, the Army has increased its
participation rate frcm 74 percent to 77-78
percent and'the Marine Corps has increased
its participation rate from 60 percent*to 72
percent!

7. We particularly noted that the spokesmen for
the Services' Reserves and the National Guard
were especially enthusiastic of the success
the New G./. Bill was bringing to their
forces. All said that the availability of
the New 0.I. Bill benefits has increased
their enlistments and reenlistments.providing
their Units with an unprecedented peacetime
readiness and stability.

8. The candor evident in the remarks of the
recruits who did not elect to participate in
the Neat G./. Bill. They asked pointed
e4Witions of the Chairman and Committee
members. The primary reasons given for non-
participation in the New G.I. Bill were:

a. The feeling they could not afford
to contribute the required 8100 a
month for 12 months. Almost all
maid if this contribution was a
:caller amount over a longer period
(e.g. 850 a month for 24 months)
they would have participated.

b. Many felt they did not have enough
time in which to consider their
decision.

c. A few felt that they were going to
make the military a career and
would not need a college education.

The Committee members explained the realities of enacting
legislation. Chairman Montgomery told each group that the New
O./. Bill law is due to expire on 30 June 1988. Th,efore, the
Committee's primary goal is to have the law becomo p:rmanent
first and then the Committee would consider the wisdom of
amending the law. He assured the recruits their views and
comments would be taken into consideration.
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The Fleet Reserve Association agrees, with Chairman
Montgomery's priorities. Furthermore, the individual Services'
monitoring and adjusting of their programs of explanation allows
us to better evaluate-the New G.I. Bill and its impact before
addressing amendments to the law.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Chairman, the Fleet Reserve Association was fully
convinced of the New G.I. Sill's cost-effective contribution to
the national security and future economic stability of our nation
prior to embarking on the field trip to. the Services' recruit
training centers. The first-hand knowledge we gained by
interviewing the 'recruits and our observation of the individual
Services' information program adds to our conviction of the
imperative need for the continuation of the New G.I. Hill as a
permanent program.

Therefore, we urge you to'enact the provisions of H.R. 1085
immediately so as to send young America the message that the New
G.I. Bill is here to stay and to inform our military leaders they
can continue to depend on the beneficial -'exults of the New G.I.
Sill in attracting and retaining the personnel needed to defend
the United States.

We thank you for the opportunity to express our views today.
It is because our representative form of government provides the
opportunity to do so that we have willingly devoted a major
portion of our adult lives to the defense and perpetuation of
that government. On behalf of not only my PRA Shipmates, but our
enlisted Sea Service personnel everywhere, I thank you. I will
answer any questions you may have to the best of my ability.
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Mr. Chains:1n, and members of the subcommittee, I appreciate this
opportunity to appear before you today to present the views of the
National Guard Association of the United States on H.R. 1085, a proposal
to extend and make permanent the authorizing language of the New GI
Bill. This is my first appearance before Congress in my capactty as
President of the National Guard Association. I am pleased to use this
occasion to express our strong support for continuing the very effective
recruiting and retention entitlements of the New CI Bill. With me today
are Lieutenant General LaVern E. Weber, Executive Director of our
Association and Major General T. Eaton Merchant, Jr., the Adjutant
General of the State of South Carolina.

THE ROLE CF THE NATIONAL GUARD

Ste initiation of the Total Force Policy in 1970 has had an "ex-
plosive" effect on the historical role of the National Guard in the
defense of our nation. During the past 15 years Do0 application of the
Total Force Policy, along with encouragement from the Congress, has
resulted in a significant increase in reliance on National Guard and
Reserve forces. Today, the Army and Air National Guard are true full
partners in the Total Force. Almost 50 percent of the Total Army
fighting personnel are in the Army National Guard and approximately 26
percent of the aircraft in the Total Air Force are in the Air National
Guard. Representation in specific areas is even greater, with 73 percent
of Army infantry battalions and 73 percent of Air Force CtNUS strategic
interceptor forces in the National Guard. To meet its defense
objectives, the nation relies on a well-equipped and well- trained
National Guard.

MANKAZR

Although equipment and training are essential ingrediots of wartime
readiness, the most important factor in producing combat-ready National
Guard units is the ability to recruit and retain sufficient numbers of
qualified personnel. While the National Guard has been able to meet its
manpower goals in recent years, this will become a much more difficult
task as the service age manpower pool continues to diminish. Increased
reliance on the Guard will place even greater demands on recruiting and
retention efforts. At the end of FY86, the ARM had attained a strength
level of approximately 446,900 and the AM had achieved an end strength
of 112,600. With programmed growth of 12,000 in the Army Guard and 4,100
in the Air Guard by the end of FY88, and continued growth programmed
through FY92, the effectiveness of recruiting and retention efforts will
be critical to maintaining the readiness of the National Guard and the
Total Force.

RECRUIT= AND RETEMICti INCENIIVES

There are a number of incentives that haV2 been helpful in achieving
required strength goals. They include enlistment and reenlistment
bonuses; tuition assistance; and educational loan repayment programs.
Some have been developed to serve a special purpose, and are targeted to
specific critical skills or occupations, such as medical skills.

The bonus and tuition assistance programs are certainly important
parts of the overall incentive package for recruiting and retaining
high-quality targeted segments of the military population. They have
been instrumental over the past few years in helping to reduce the
shortage in many critical skill specialties. Their effectiveness has
been hamdered, however, by the limited period of authorization.

Those incentives that have proven to be effective should be made
permanent. The lapse in authority for enlistment and reenlistment
bonuses in late 1985 resulted in a great deal of turbulence and
confusion. Authority will again terminate on September 30th of this
year, if not renewed prior to that date, and the indefinite status of
these programs is harmful to day-to-day recruiting activities. In
addition, the tuition assistance program has been extended only one year,
with limited participation, pending a DoD review of the program, We

1 9 0
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realize pay and incentives of Guard and Reserve members are under -iew

by the recently activated 6th Ourdrenial Review of Military Compenstion

group. We would hope its review mould validate the need and effective-

ness of the various incentive programs, however, the 6th Ouadrenial
Review of Military COmpensatica report to the President is not due until

mid November too late to influence the authorization extension

necessary on September 30th.

THE MCI BILL

Although it is not targeted toward specific specialities, the New GI
Bill Educational Assistance Program for the Selected Reserve has proven

to be a valuable incentive for across-the-board recruitment and retention
within the National Guard. By providing education assistance, it serves

as a very effective attraction to college oriented Individuals. It

promotes the Guard/Reserve all-volunteer program by assisting in

recruitment of high quality personnel. It also improves retention

through the six-year enlistment /reenlistment requirement and by

authorizing participation only while in selected reserve status. The

success of the New G/ Bill is probably best illustrated by the over 75

percent participation rate in the program by new active Army recruits,
and by the average participation rate of more than 57 percent within all

Active Services.

Specific data on the participation rate within the Guard and Reserve
is not available because of the eligibility of both new recruits and

six-year reenlistees. However, the information which is available

indicates the Guard and Reserve program is as successful as that of the

Active Services. Over 43,000 Guard and Reserve members were partici-
pating in the program as of the end of December, 1986. A recent National

Guard survey indicated that 51 percent of recruiting and retention
specialists considered the New GI bill to be effective to "a very great

degree" in recruiting new Guard mestere. Thirty-nine percent considered

it to be equally as effective as a retention tool. Another 27 percent

considered the New GI Bill to be effective to "a great degree" in both

instances. Finally, the steady growth in Air National Guard six year

enlistments/reenlist- rents /appointments, as a percentage of total

enlistments /reenlist - rents /appointments, from 35 percent in FY 1984 to

48 percent in FY 1986 almost certainly reflects the value of the New GI

Bill as a retention incentive.

The success of the New G/ Bur as a recruiting and retention incen-
tive certainly supports the proposed legislation making the program a

permanent entitlement. The value to the military and the nation should

far exceed the cost of the program, through higher retention, increased

readiness, and pay back through a higher-educated populace. The

last point was rade very clearly by the Speaker of the Mouse In his

response to the Resident's State of the Union Address on January 27th:

"The very best fLuancial investment this country ever made was the GI
Bill of Rights at the end of World War II. It sent an entire generation

of Americans to college. And our country has been reaping the benefits

ever since. That program -- simply in greater taxes paid from higher
earnings -- has actually repaid the Treasury about S20 for every dollar

invested". In view of that stabmsnit, administration proposals to reduce
New GI Bill benefits at this time would appear to be shortsighted.

SUIVARY

The National Guard Association of the United States strongly urges
passage of H.R. 1085 making the New G/ Bill a permanententitlement. The

effectiveness of the program has been demonstrated by the high

participation rates and longer enlistments during the test period. The

cost of the program should be evaluated not only in relation to increases

in manning and readiness but also as an educational Investment. We are

investing in individuals who devote Their time and talents toward the
nation's security and will very likely repay the investment many tires

over during their lifetimes.

The New GI Bill is an excellent recruiting and retention incentive
and it should be made anent.

'-191
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MR. CHAIRMAN I AM DELIGHTED TO HERE TODAY. AFA APPRECIATES THE

MANY EFFORTS OF YOUR COMMITTEE TO SUPPORT VETERANS AND THE

MEMBERS OF OUR ARMED FORCES.

THE AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION AT IT'S 1986 NATIONAL CONVENTION PASSED

A POLICY PAPER WHICH STATES "THE AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION SUPPORTS:

ESTABLISHING A PERMANENT EDUCATIONAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM DEVELOPED

TO MEET QUALITY MANPOWER
NEEDS OVER THE LONG TERM, INCLUDING AIR

NATIONAL GUARD AND RESERVE COMPONENTS."

THE AIR FORCE HAS FOUND THAT OVER 60% OF THEIRNEW RECRUITS

SPECIFY EDUCATION AS ONE OF THE REASONS FOR ENLISTMENT. THE VAST

MAJORITY OF THOSE WHO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW G.I. BILL IN THE AIR

FCRCE ARE IN THE TOP TWO MENTAL CATEGORIES. THE NEW G.I. BILL

HAS ALSO HAD A POSITIVE IMPACT ON THE SELECTED RESERVE AND IS THE

STRONGEST REASON FOR ENLISTMENT IN THE SELECTED RESERVE. THE NEW

GI BILL IS CLEARLY A SUCCESS.

193



189

PAGE 2

THERE ARE, HOWEVER, A FEW MINOR CHANGES THAT NIGHT ENHANCE ITS

ACCEPTABILITY AND SUCCESS. FOR EXAMPLE, THE AIR FORCE

ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDS

- CHANGING THE AMOUNT AND DURATION OF MONTHLY CONTRIBUTIONS

TO THE NEW GI BILL TO $60 PER MONTH FOR 20 MONTHS.

WE ALSO RECOMMEND

GRANTING MORE DECISION TIME TO THE NEW RECRUITS

DECIDING WHETHER TO OPT FOR THE GI BILL COULD BE THE LAST

ACTION BEFORE LEAVING BASIC TRAINING.

AN ENLISTEE DOES A LOT OF MATURING IN THE FIRST YEAR OF

SERVICE.

- IF THE DECISION TO OPT-IN COULD BE TAKEN ANYTIME DURING THE

FIRST YEAR OF SERVICE, I BELIEVE MORE WOULD PARTICIPATE.

- THE OPTION COULD, FOR EXAMPLE, BE LEFT OPEN DURING THE

FIRST YEAR OF SERVICE AND START THREE YEARS OF OBLIGATED

ACTIVE SERVICE - FOR FULL ELIGIBILITY - FROM DATE OF SIGN-

UP.

194
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- WHILE SOME ADDITIONAL NUMBERS WOULD OPT FOR THE BILL IF

REFUNDS OR TRANSFERABILITY WERE OFFERED, I BELIEVE BOTH

WOULD REDUCE THE INCENTIVE OF THE PARTICIPANT TO GO TO

SCHOOL -- WHICH IS - AND SHOULD REMAIN - THE PRIMARY

PURPOSE OF THE PROGRAM.

THE AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION BELIEVES THE G.I. BILL IS A BASIC

BENEFIT AND IS INTENDED TO BE A READJUSTMENT BENEFIT BASED ON

FAITHFUL AND HONORABLE SERVICE. ACCORDINGLY, THE GI BILL HAS

HISTORICALLY BEEN FUNDED BY THE VETERANS ADMINISTRATION AND

SHOULD CONTINUE TO BE FUNDED BY THE VA. HOWEVER, IF THE SERVICES

DESIRE TO SUPPLEMENT THE BASIC BENEFIT WITH "KICKERS" TO AID IN

RECRUITING, THESE SHOULD BE PAID FOR BY THE APPROPRIATE SERVICE.

195
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A Statement to the

Subcommittee on Education, Training and Employment

Rouse Veterans' Affairs.Committee

18 February 1987

I am COL Edward P. Smith, USA retired, of the Association of the
United State.. Army. This association very much appreciates the opportunity
to express lts view, on the legislative proposal to make permanent the
current educational assistance test program for members of the armed

services.

This associatio. to',., a leading role in helping to win.support in the

Congress when reenstatm-ent of the CI Bill wig it major issue on your
lee.slative calendar back in 1981 - 1983. We urged its adoption then and

we Jo now again. We do so because this program is a proven winner - -

everyone benefits. The government benefits, the Services benefit, the
youth of the country benefit, their hardworking, tax-paying parents bandit
from this program, and our colleges and universities also benefit.

Benefits to the Government. We have all seen any number of studies
which correlate personal income levels to education levels. Generally

speaking higher levels of education mean higher income. .For the govern-

ment, higher incomes mean higher tax revenues to fund essential programs --
not exactly an unpopular result over.here, as I understand it.

As to the question of coot to the government, the CI Bill is a winner

here too. The latest estimate we have is $1 billion per year peak costs.
If one compares this to costs in the Department of Education for loans and
grants, currently estimated at about $8 billion, some idea of the govern-
ment's bargain from the CI Bill begins to emerge. Add to this that, in

most of the loan and grant programs, there is no other personal obligation

on the part of the individual to the government. Two to 6 years of immedi-

ate duty in the Armed Services is the personal obligation under the CI

Bill.

Finally, I think I should point out that the present GI Bill is not an

outright grant. As you well know the service man or woman must contribute
$100 per month for 12 monthel,'and forfeit the entire $1200 if he/she later

decides not to attend college. Incidentally, $100 per month from a current

recruit's pay represents 16.9 percent of his monthly pay; not an insignif-

icant amount.

Benefits to the Army. It is not my intention to repeat all the
statistics that I know LTC Bob Elton, the Army's personnel chief, has or
will shortly provide you. However, I think it important to point out to
you that we have seen a number of very recent. Army studies that convince us
the following are significant benefits to the Army directly rttrIbutable to

tae CI Bill.

- Education benefits expand the available youth market.
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- Education benefits are a stronger enlistment
incentive for high -

quality, College-Oriented youth than bitter pay. (Please ler as interruptvealf here and add parenthetically that with higher quality accessionscomes reduced attrition presently equating
to 13,000 personnel annually inthe Army.)

- Over 35 percent of the high-quality sale, high
school graduates

vated education benefits as the single most important reason for enlisting.

- Over 40 percent of the high-quality recruits
would not have joined

without the CI Bill and the Army College Fund.

Senefits to Tooth. A college education is the dreamt of a large
segment of our youth population

-- and their parents I night add. For many
the cost le.probibitivt, and for some they have not yet discovered a fieldof endeavor.in which to focus their time. talent and effort. It seems tous that there is no sore economical and

socially constructive way or thegovernment to apportion precious resources than to reward military serviceto the nation by providing the financial
means for higher education of

America' top quality young men and women. It is not a grant; it is not agive-away program; it is smart business.

At the beginning of my statement I mentioned that the CI Dill was also
a benefit to parents of our college age youth. My guess is that practical-
ly everyone in this room over the age of 45 has had to face the cost of
college bills to educate their children. For some of us the idea that son
or daughter could earn money for college through a stint in one of the
armed services was an answer. It even had the added attraction of perhaps
teachlig than self reliance and independence. Today's parents, I suggest,
ars not different; they recognise a bargain when they see it. The CI Bill
is a bargainlor all concerned.

lenefits to Colleges and,Universities. Colleges and universities of
our country are well aware of the impact of the CI Bill on their diminish-
ing enrollments and budgets. This has nurtured the recently arrived at
agreement between the Army and the Association of Collegiate Registrars and
Admissions Officers which provides Army counselling and assistance to those
leaving the service in getting their college placement lined up prior to
departure from the service.

The turn around in the quantity and quality of men and women in the
ranks that we have seen over the past few years obviously may not be
attributed solely to the new CI Bill, which only became effective in July
of 1955. The Congress has seen fit to provide many remedies in a number of
areas which have combined to give us a fit and ready-force. This Associa-
tion, however, is convinced that a major contributor to the improved
personnel situation in all of the services, and .spatially in the Army, has
been enactment of the new CI Jill. We further believe that it will, if
made a permanent program, be a major contributct in precluding any return
to a "Hollow Army." I urge you to approve expeditiously this legislation
now before the committee.

198
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Statement of Major General Evan L. Hultman, Army of the United
States (Retired), Executive Director, Reserve Officers Association
of the United States before the Committee on Veterans Affairs sub-
committee on Education, Training and Enployment, concerning the
.continuation of the New GI Bill- -18 February 1987

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:.

The Reserve Officers Association (ROA) appreciates being

provided this opportunity to express our support for legislation,

introduced by the distinguished Chairman of the Committee on Veterans

Affairs G.V. "Sonny" Montgomery, which, if enacted into law, will

continue the New GI Bill beyond its current June 1988 termination date.

As this subcommittee knows, three years ago ROA worked with many

of you in support of a new GI Bill. We believed that the then

existing VEAP educational program was not doing the job, and that

a new GI Bill of the type that was under
consideration, and which

became law as a test program, would have a beneficial impact on

recruitir3, retention and on the quality of the force. We also

believe that we have been proven right on all three counts.

All reports that ROA has received indicate that the New GI

Bill has been a great success. In fact, when continued funding

for this program was not included in the administration'smdget

request for FY87, ROA's Kid-Winter Conference adopted an

emergency resolution urging the administration "to abandon

any initiatives to terminate the New GI Bill and urging

the Congress to continue, extend, and fund this effective

educational assistance program." We were pleased that the

Congress did take. the necessary action to fund the GI Bill

for FY87 and we strongly support the legislation under

consideration today which will delete the termination date of 30

June 1988 for the current GI Bill and change its status from a

206
(40

1



202

test program.to that of an ongoing military service based

educational assistance program.

The GAO has reported that Army statistics show a marked recruiting

improvement under the New GI Bill and data obtained from the Reserve and

National Guard components of the Army and Air Force also show improve-

ments in enlistment, reenlistment and retention statistics since the

start of the New GI Bill.

The attractiveness:of.this program to the individual service

memIxar is clearly illustrated by the fact that in the active

Army, during the period of July 1985 to September 1986, 74% of

those eligible enrolled, in the program. Ih the Army Reserve

components, for the same time frame, over 21,000 applied for the

New GI Bill benefit. These were reserve component members who

had entered'a 6 year obligation and had completed 6 months

service as well as their military skill training. Significantly,

there was an increase, of six-year enlistments during the first

fifteen Ilunths immediately following enactment of the New GI Bill.

Chartered by the Congress with a goal of furthering national

security, ROA supports the New GI Bill as a recruiting benefit

applicable to the total force. As a voice for Reserves, we would

be remiss in not emphasizing the importance of the program for the

reserve component. The New GI Bill provides the first comprehensive

educational assistance program to members of the reserve component;

without the Bill, Reserves would be without eligibility for

assistance. Given the shrinking number of persons eligible for

military service, competition from the private sector, and the

high retention rate of the active component, the importance of

this educational assistance cannot be overemphasized. At a time

when budget cutting calls for more and more responsibilities to
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be shifted to the Reserve, the need for recruiting and retaining

highly qualified men and women-in the reserve component has never

been greater.

The quality of recruits is equally-as important as the increases

in numbers. The New GI Bill appeals to the most capable young men and

women, those who take education opportunities more seriously. During

FY 1986, 5 percent more Selected Reserve non-prior service accessions

were high school graduates than in FY 1984. This is a significant

improvement in the quality of non-prior service recruits and can be

attributed in part, if not wholly, to the appeal of the New GI Bill.

The Reserve Officers Association believes the New GI Bill is

good not only for the services and the individual service member,

but is also good for our country. If we are to remain vital and

competitive in today's world, an educated population is

essential. This is recognized by the.larqe amount of dollars that

go for non-military service related educational loans and grants.

For example, the Department of Education spent over $3.8 billion

in Pell Grants just in FY85, and that is for a GI Bill without

the "GI". ROA believes that if an individual wants to serve his

country, either in the active or the reserve components, it is

highly appropriate for that service to be recognized through an

educational assistance program. Thus, we as an association

applaud this subcommittee for the consideration it is giving to

deleting the termination date for the New GI Bill. ROA supports

the goals and objectives of the legislation proposed to make the New GI
Bill a permanent program.

208



204

Thank you tor the opportunity to'present SON's views. Your

support tor the son and Wien litho are searing and have vain the

uniform of cur country, both active and Reserve, is deeply

appreciated. Vs v111 bmppy to address any questions that you

'my have.

209



205

STATEMENT, OF THE MILITARY EXECUTIVE
OF THE RESERVE FORCES POLICY BOARD,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF'DEFENSE

MAJOR GENERAL WILLIAM R. BEREMAN
'UNITED STATES ARMY

BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE ON EDUCATION,

TRAINING, AND EMPLOYMENT OF THE

COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

FIRST SESSION 100TH CONGRESS

FEBRUARY 18, 1987

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
UNTIL RELEASED BY THE
HOUSE VETERANS' AFFAIRS COMMITTEE



206

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee:

It is a pleasure to applar at your invitation to present the
views of the Reserve Forces Policy Board on the New GI Bill for
the Selected Reserve.

The Reserve Forces Policy-Board (Board) is by statute the
"principal policy adviser to the Secretary of Defense on matters
relating to the reserve components." (10 USC 175(c)). The Board
is chaired by the Honorable Will Hill Tankersley and has as
members general/flag officers from each of the service Reserve
Components, their Active Components, and the Assistant
Secretaries for reserve affairs.

The Annual Report of the Board for Fiscal Year 1986 was
recently submitted by the Secretary of Defense to the President.
The report reviews the current status of our Reserve Components
which are now essential elements of our Total Force and vital to

our national security. The report states:

"One of the most critical factors in achieving force
readiness is the ability to meet the Selected Reserve
personnel requirements, both in quantity and in quality."

Because the New GI Bill has proved an effective factor in
achieving Selected Reserve quantity and quality, the Board for
over two years has recommended that the New GI Bill for the

Selected Reserve be continued.

The Principal Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense (Reserve

Affairs) put it well in testimony before the Senate Veterans
Affairs Committee on February 4, 1987:

"In the current recruiting environment, our readiness
and manpower objectives for the Reserve Components
present a challenge -- one that can be met only if
we have the proper see of force management tools.
The New GI Bill is but one of these tools. And,
when combined with other targeted incentives and
entitlements, the GI Bill will permit us to attract
and retain the numbers and quality of people we
must have."

Those views were confirmed last week during a field trip by

some members of this committee to training centers of each

service: Fort Knox, Kentucky; Lackland Air Force Base, Texas;
Naval Training Center, Orlando, Florida and Marine Corps Training

Center, Parris Island, South Carolina. I was pleased to
participate in that field trip. At each location' representatives
of the Reserve Components emphasized that the New GI Bill for the

Selected Reserve was an important factor in recruiting and
retention improvements. The result is soldiers, sailors, airmen,
and marines in the Selected Reserve in the quantity and quality

we require.

Those are the reasons that the Board recommends continuation
of the New GI Bill for the Selected Reserve on a permanent basis.

Thank you Mr. Chairman.
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The New G.I. Dill is a remarkably successful program in
meeting its objectives. Already members of reserve components
are using its benefits and, in less than two years, many other
veterans will begin training under the program. Its benefits,
although not overly generous, should assure the opportunity of a
college education to thousands of young men and women who have
served their nation. Indeed, the New G.I. Dill is a program of
which its sponiors should be proud. Vet NCOA has several !deco
which we believe will make the program better.

Foremost, NCOA believes Congress should act to eliminate the
June 31, 1988 cut-off date for enrollment under the new program.
The program should be made permanent. Additionally, the
association believes the treatment of career servicemembers
should be modified to provide benefits under the program to some
who are excluded by the circumstances of the test. NCO believes
the enrollment fee should be eliminated or modified to allow
greater participation and believes servictmembers'eligible for
the Veterans Educational Assistance Program (VEAP) should be
allowed to participate in the New G.I. Dill. Finally, the
association objects to the transfer of G.I. Dill funding to the
Defense Department. Frankly, NCOA does not believe the Defense
Department would sustain the program. The first and last of
these recommendations are the most immediate concerns.

Extending the Program

While there is no disputing the success the New G.I. Dill
has had in achieving its secondary objective of assisting in
military recruiting, NCOA believes its primary objective of
assisting veterans in obtaining an education is the most
important benefit of the program. Certainly the New G.I. Dill
produces smarter soldiers. Recruiting in both quantity and
quality has soared since the program was created. More than 90
percent of new recruits are high school graduates and more than
99 percent are in mental categoriesI to III, the most desirable
and trainable recruit. Yet, more important than the quality the
program brings to the armed forces is the quality of citizens it
creates and the quality-of life it provides for veterans.

This nation's success is a product of previous G.I. Dills.
How many members of Congress would hold their seats today if not
for their G.I. Bill education? If we took all the G.I. Dill
trained engineers out of the space program, would the D.B. still
be reaching for the moon? Row much tax revenue would have been
lost; how many colleges would have closed; how many veterans
would bo struggling to feed their families because they lacked
the education or training opportunity offered by the G.I. Dill?
The questions are impossible to answer. Indeed, we are fortunate
that we will not know the answer. But if the New G.I. Dill,is
allowed to expire, the next and future generations may know the
answer.

NCOA believes the veteran should be the first to benefit
from the billions of dollare spent annually to support
post-secondary education. Prom 1976 until 1985 Congress spent
billions on a G.I. Dill without the G.I. Allowing this program
to expire would return us to that sad state.

Funding

Transferring funding responsibility from the VA to the
Defense Department might have an effect equal to the terminating
of the program however. The current VA budget proposal suggests
this change which NCOA adamantly opposes.

During the creative process leading to enactment of the New
G.I. Dill, the Defense Department sought authority to use the
program as a selective recruitment tool; offering its benefits
only to those who would join the service for no other reason.
Having failed, DoD sought to create in the program a trigger
mechanism allowing service secretaries to turn the program on and

off with swings in recruiting. Last year DoD and OMB sought to
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have the New G.I.Bill terminated before the test was barely six
months old. And, only a few weeks ago it was announced that DoD
was working on a plan to reduce benefit: under the new program
$100 per month after three years of service for those who enlist
after July 1, 1988.

Clearly, DOD does not recognize the social vales of the
program, nor does it recognize the need of veterans. NCOA
believes that the basic benefits of education should accrue
equally to all who serve.' Its value to veterans and the nation
make it an infinitely desirable program. Accordinglz, !ROA urges
that funding of the basic'benefits be continued as a rzodjustment
progrom of the Veterans Administration.

Pay Forfeiture

In the Democratic response to the President's State of the
Union address House Speaker Jim Wright specifically praised prior
G.I. Bills as the very best financial investment this country
ever made.` He went on to say the program '...has actually
repaid the Treasury about $20 for every dollar invested.' That
return should be enooghl

NCOA continues to object to provision requiring a pay
forfeiture of $1,200 among participants for one fundamental'
reason. It discriminates against soldiers, sailors, airmen,
Marines and coast guardsmen whose financial obligations do not
allow them to participate. Recruits who join the service today
make $608.40-per month during the first four months of service.
The average first year earnings of most-recruits is about $7,700.
If they participate in the G.I. Bill, that drops to $6,592, a
below minimum wage income for an individual who works a forty
hour week. But any servicemember would be grateful for
workweek of only 40 hours. As,a result many recruits who have
mothers, wives or children to support cannot participate. No
matter how great their desire they are out. They are locked in a
cycle like so many other disadvantaged individuals, lacking the
opportunity of even the G.I. Bill to escape. Accordingly, NCOA
urges the committee to eliminate the fee for participation in the
basic program.

At least, as an alternative, NCOA beliewir the committee
should make the contributions refundable ::.nd Chould extend the
period of time over which the contr:Lueions can be made. Some
individuals might be comfortable making $400 monthly payments
during their first three months of service while they are
isolated in recruit training while others may be comfortable
making payments of only $25 per month over the course of a four
year enlistment. There is no profit in the'current payment
system and no discernable advantage to retaining it.
Concurrently, NCOA does not understand the logic of not refunding
the pay forfeitures of those who do not use the program.

Government need not profit from the C.I. Bill other than to
produce better citizens through education and better
servicemembers through enticement. Neither should the program
become a veterans helping veterans program, supported by its
participants as the Administration would like to do with the VA
Home Loan Guaranty Program. Thos- who subsequently decide not to
participate should be refunded their money. At least refunds
should be given to those who cannot participate because of
hardship or disability and to the survivors of those who die
before using their benefits. However, NCOA would endor,:t
legislation delaying refund eligibility to one year after
discharge to discourage young veterans from using the refunds
unwisely.

Eligibility

In addition to creating a necessary replaceMent for the
Veterans Educational Assistance Program (VEAP) the New C.I. Bill
was in part created to stem the hemorrhage of talented
noncommissioned and petty officers who were leaving service to
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use benefits they earned uLder the Vietnam Era G.I. Bill. The
new G.I. Bill provides benefits to those individuals who remain
on active duty until June 38, 1988 to replace the loss of those
benefits. Unfortunately, there is a group of servicemembers
caught in a vacuum between the old and new G.I. Bills. Because
of service regulations and federal law many servicemembers have
been or will be required to leave service before becoming
eligible for benefits under the new program but without
sufficient time to use the benefits of the old program. Most
servicemembers are forced to retire or accept discharge on the
basis of a compression of their rank and years of aervice. For
example, an E-6 who fails selection to E-7 may be discharged at
24 years of service. If that individual completes 24 years of
service between July 1, 1985 and June 30, 1988, some education
benefits will be lost. Accordingly, NCOA urges the committee to
provide benefits under the new program (after 1989) to any
Individual who retires from serVice for longevity during the
current teLt period.

Finally, NCOA urges the committee to reconsider the issue of
later participation by individuals who do not enroll in the New
G.I. Bill during their first enlistment and the eligibility of
certain VEAP participants. The underlying principle behind the
new G.I. Bill is an exchange of education benefits for honorable
service in the armed forces. In part it is designed to encourage
quality soldiers to reenlist. NCOA therefore believes it would
be logical to allow those who have not previously participated in
the program to reconsider upon any reenlistment. The armed
forces will benefit from the continued aervice of an experienced
noncommissioned or petty officer. Additionally, the
servicemember will have an opportunity to reconsider a decision
more maturely. If pay forfeitures are retained as a part of the
program they will likely be more manageable for the experienced
servicemember and conversion of previous contributions could pay
for the participation of VEAP eligibles.

Conclusion

The New G.I. Bill in the association's opinion is a
tremendous asset to the nation as a veterans benefit. Its
sponsors and supporters should be commended. However, NCOA
believes the program should be modified as outlined in this
statement to eliminate the fee which discriminates against the
participation of many; to accommodate the career servicemembe
caught in the void between education programs: and, to make the
benefits of higher education available to those who continue in
service. NCOA also urges the committee to advance legislation
makig the program permanent and retaining its funding as a
function of the Veterans Administration.
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MR. CHAIRMAN, COMMITTEE MEMBERS, THE NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION APPRECIATES

THE COMMITTEES INVITATION TO PRESENT OUR VIEWS CONCERNING THE PROPOSED

LEGISLATION WHICH WOULD MAKE THE NEW 6.1. BILL CONTAINED IN TITLE VII OF PUBLIC

LAM 98-525 A PERMANENT PROGRAM.

THE NAVAL RESERVE HAS SEEN, OVER THE PAST SEVERAL YFMS, INCRFASED TASKING

AND ASSIGNMENT OF WARTIME RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE TOTAL FORCE HAS GROW IN SIZF

AND COMPLEXITY. THE NAVAL RESERVE FORCE TODAY 'PROVIDES 100% OF THE COMBAT

SEARCH AND RESCUE, I00% OF THE LIGHT-ATTACk HELICOPTER SOUADRONS, 100% OF U.S.

BASED LOGISTIC SUPPORT SQUADRONS, 86% OF THE CARGO-HARMING BATTALIONS, 18! OF

THE NAVAL MOBILE CONSTRUCTION BATTALIONS. IN THE HYPERCRITICAL AREA OF

ANTI-SUBMARINE WARFARE, THE NAVAL RESERVE PROVIDES 35% OF THE LONG RANGE.

MARITIME PATROL SQUADRONS, 21% OF THE AN HELICOPTER SQUADRONS MD 26 ASWAN

BY THE EARLY 1990's THE NAVAL RESERVE WILL BE THE 10TH LARGEST NAVY IN THE

WORLD. I WOULD HASTEN TO POINT OUT THAT THE NAVAL RESERVE, IN ADDITION TO

PROVIDING WARTIME SURGE CAPABILITY IS ALSO A PEACETIME 'FORCE MULTIPLIER' WITH

RESERVE AIRCREWS AND SHIPS ROUTINELY DEPLOYED FULFILLING THE PEACE TIME

OPERATIONAL COMMITMENTS IN SUPPORT OF OUR NATIONAL MARITIME OBJECTIVES.

THIS INCREASED RELIANCE ON RESERVE FORCE CAPABILITIES IS BOTH COST-EFFECTIVE

FOR THE NATION AND WELCOMED BY THS NAVAL RESERVIST.

THE NAVAL RESERVE OVER THE NEXT FEW YEARS IS SCHEDULED FOR CONTINUED GROWTH

REACHING A TOTAL SELECTED RESERVE END STRENGTH OF OVER 161,000 BY r? 89 OR A

GROWTH OF 20,000 IN THREE YEARS. THIS GROWTH IS ALMOST EXCLUSIVELY 'HIGH TECH°

GROWTH, THAT IS BECAUSE THE REQUIREMENTS ARE BASED ON THE A) EXPANSION OF HEALTH.

CARE PROFESSIONAL SEGMENT OF THE NAVAL RESERVE AND B) THE CONTINUED TRANS/AR OF

1
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INCREASINGLY SOPHISTICATED WEAPONS SYSTEMS INTO THE RZsERvE FORCE..

THE RESERVE FORCE IS RV ITS VERY NATURE THE MOST VOL:MARY"
SEGMENT OF THE

TOTAL FORCE. COMPRISED MAINLY OF FLEET
VETERANS RECRUITING AND MORE. IMPORTANTLY

RETENTION IS OF VITAL IMPORTANCE.
THE ENACTMENT OF 7HIT NEW G.I. RILL HAS

WITHOUT QUESTION BEEN THE MOST
IMPORTANT FACTOR IN RESERVE FORCE GROWTH AND

STABILITY. IT HAS PROVIDED THE MOST EFFECTIVE INCENTIVE FOR THE RETENTION OF

THE QUALITY PEOPLE ABSOLUTELY ESSENTIAL TO OUR INCREASED READINESS. As WE
APPROACH THE KNOWN SHORTAGE OF

DRAFT ELIGIBLE MALES IN THE EARLY 90's THE NEW

G.I. BILL SIMPLY MUST BE MADE PERMANENT IF FORCE MANNI°,.:
REQUIREMENTS ARE TO BE

ACHIEVED.

IN OUR VIEW, AN OFTEN
OVERLOOKED FACTOR ROTH IN TERMS OF DOLLARS AND REDUCED

READINESS ARE THE INCREASED TRAINING
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH S. RAPID AND ENDLESS

n.cni OF PEOPLE THROUGH THE RESERVE UNITS. THE NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION IS

CONVINCED THAT THE STABILITY INDUCED
BY THE NEW G.I. RILL WILL MORE THAN OFFSET

THE EDUCATIONAL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROGRAM BY SIGNIFICANTLY REDUCING

THESE "FLOW ASSOCIATED TRAINING COSTS.

THE NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION mom). ENDORSES THIS,PROPOSED LEGISLATION

AND QUITE FRANKLY DOES NOT BELIEVE THAT FUTURE RESERVE FORCE MANNING AND

READINESS OBJECTIVES CM BE ACHIEVED WITHOUT IT.

:Ds
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Statement of

Colonel Charles C. Partridge, USA (Ret)

Legislative Counsel

The National Association for Uniformed Services

Before the

Subcommittee on Education, Training, and Employment

Committee on Veterans' Affairs

U. S. House of Representatives

February 18, 1987

H.R. 1085, The New GI Bill - A Permanent Program

Mr. Chairmen, and members of the Committee, I welcome the opportunity
to present the views of the National Association for Uniformed Services on
legislation to make the new GI Bill permanent.

The National Association for Uniforme0 SerMicest (NAUS) membership
represents all grades and ranks of career and non-career service personnel
and their spouses and widows. Our membership includes active, retired,
and reserve personnel of all seven uniformed services: Army, Navy, Air
Force, Marines, Coast Guard, Public Health Service, and the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. With such membership, we are able

to'draw information from 'a broad base for our legislative activities.

The need for a permanent GI Bill for military personnel is great And
growing. The current GI Bill has already proven in the teat period that
it is a great success as a readjustment device and a recruiting incentive.
It provides a basic benefit administered by the VA for all personnel in
recognition of their service to their country and provides the military
services with the option of further, special financial supplements or
kickers as necessary to obtain hard to recruit skills. It has done more
than any other recruiting incentive to attract top quality young men and
women into our Armed Forces.

The proposed measure provides for the continuation of the New GI Bill
beyond the June 30, 1988, expiration date. The New GI Bill is
contributory, requiring a decision by the entering recruit to contribute
$100 per month for 12 months. It will return a basic benefit to the
soldier of $9,000 after two years -of service and $10,800 for three years
active duty service. The basic becefit is funded by the Veterans
Administration. Reduced benefits are provided for individuals enlisting
or reenlisting in the Selected Reserve or National Guard.

In addition, through programs such as the Army College Fund, a
recruit may earn kickers for enlisting in the hard to recruit skills the
services need. Beginning in 1985, an ROTC option was also offered in
conjunction with the GI Bill.

The so called kickers are aimed at recruiting rather than
readjustment, and are appropriately funded by tha Department of Defense
based on military personnel requirements.
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As ambitious, public spirited, dedicated young men and women leave
military service after two or more years, they face an increasingly
competitive workplace and froi their perspective, ,in many instances they
are behind. their contemporaries in. civilian related skills.

The nation can repay the veteran for this dedicated service and
delayed entry into the civilian job market by providing the GI Bill as a
reward for his service and to prepare him educationally for the future.
This could include service at a higher level in,the military through ROTC
or through advancement to senior non-commissioied officer status.

The cost effectiveness of the GI Bill as a readjustment benefit has
been amply demonstrated over the years in terms of additional taxes as a
result of increased earnings by veterans who otherwise would not have
attended college. With our nation seeking to increase its competitiveness
via-a -via other nations, the GI Bill has become an even more significant
part of our national effort to become more productive and therefore
improve our competitiveness in world markets.'

In addition, there are more immediate and more readily apparent
benefits which accrue to the military services. The GI Bill attracts a
high percentage of college-oriented youths in the high-quality mental
categories I-IIIs. These high quality recruits are:

- more likely to complete their enlistments, thus reducing
the number

of recruits needed.

- Are more easily trained, thus reducing training time and providing
a spark of leadership in the enlisted ranks. This provides
commanders with the opportunity to reenlist these high-quality
personnel who would not have been available for reenlistment
otherwise.

- Less likely to go AWOL or to desert. This population has
lower crime rates and a lower incidence of drug abuse, resulting in
savings in management time, reduced personnel turbulence, and
savings in training time.

Studies by-the Department of the Army show that the increased number
of high school graduates recruited as a result of the GI Bill produced
savings of about 13,000 personnel, and cost savings of approximately
$200,000,000 annually as a result of lower attrition rates. Further, high
quality soldiers perform about ten percent better than other soldiers and
provide an example for all soldiers.

As the military services face a rapidly dwindling pool of 18 to 23
year olds, the GI Bill becomes even more important as an incentive to
serve.

In recent studies, education benefits were found to be a stronger
incentive for high-quality, college-oriented youths than higher pay.
Thirty-seven percent of high-quality male, high school diploma graduates
rated educational benefits as the single most important reason for
enlisting. Forty-three percent of high-quality recruits would not have
joined without the GI Bill.

Participation rates by new recruits in the New GI Bill have
increased to 85 percent in the Army, 65 percent in the Marine Corps and 50
percent in the Navy and Air Force.

The Army Recruiting Command reports that education benefits increase
the pool of potential applicants by 500,000 high-quality young people.

C.
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Some analysts say that the G/ Bill encourages soldiers to leave the

service after their initial period of service. This is csnitrary to the

military services' experience: The GI Bill encourages a higher quality

recruit to enter: Significant numbers of them stay for full careers, thus

providing a high-quality, profeasioual soldier and leader which the

military would not otherwise have attracted. Of those who do not remain

on active duty, many will go on to college and enroll in ROTC, while

others will join National Guard or Reserve units. With the reserve

components playing, an increasing role in mobilization and readiness, the

GI Bill is avimportant pert of their recruiting effort.

For all of the above reasons NAUS urges you to make the G/ Bill a

permanent program; continue the basic benefit as a readjustment benefit

funded and operated by the VA, and allow the military services to enrich

tha program for recruiting purposes.

The nation, its armed forces and the veteran will all be the

beneficiaries.
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Mr. Chairman, and distinguished members of the panel, thank you for the op-

portunity to present the views of the Air Force Sergeants Association with

respect, the proposal to make the New G.I. Bill a permanent program.

Sir, there is solid proof that the New G.I. Bill is a potent recruiting

tool, however; the present success in recruiting quality young men and

women could be jeopardized by changing conditions in the future -- condi-

tions for which we must be prepared or suffer the consequences. With a

diminishing manpower pool throughout the decade of the 1980s and into the

1990s, the risk in trying to cut corners in compensation for military per-

sonnel cannot be ignored.

The New G.I. Bill is a proven winner. Unlike the VEAP program which pro-

duced a dismal 6 percent average participation rate for Air Force recruits

during its six and one-half year tenure, the New G.I. bill has attracted a

solid 42 percent participation rate.

Based on my conversation with enlisted men and women at numerous Air Force

bases, we feel there is an opportunity to double the 42 percent sign-up

rate by making a few minor modifications to the existing program.

First, we would ask this subcommittee to consider reducing the airman's

monthly contribution from $100 to $60 and spread the payments out over a

20-month period. When you consider that $100 a month represents almost 20

percent of an airman's pay, after taxes, that presents a difficult decision

for a new recruit to make upon entering military service.

- 1 -
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The second modification needed to attract more participants is to allow the

services to refund contributions to the member if he or she decides not to

utilize the New G.I. Hill after separation from the service. Also, if the

servicemember should die, the monies he or she contributed should be re-

funded to the, beneficiary.

Sir, we urge this subcommittee to consider these recommendations to improve

the Air Force participation rate.

Mr. Chairman, one of your distinguished colleagues, the Honorable Hill Arm-
..

strong from Colorado, summed up the value of the New G.I. Hill when he made

the following comment:

"The G.I. Hill should not be viewed solely as a recruitment measure.

The G.I. Hill is an investment in America's future, one from which everyone

benefits -- the beneficiaries who obtain a college education, the colleges

and universities they attend, our society as a whole."

This concludes my statement and, again, thank you for this opportunity to

appear before this subcommittee. I am prepared to respond to any questions

you or your distinguished colleagues may wish to pose.

- 2 -
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MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE:

Thank you for this opportunity to present the views of the Veterans of

Foreign Wars of the United States with respect to proposed legislation which

would amend Title 38 USC to remove the expiration date for eligibility for the

educational assistance programs for veterans as contained in title VII of

Public Law 98-525. This proposed letldiation enjoys the full support of the

Veterans of Foreign Wars inasmuch as it would indefinitely extend a program

which is both a potent recruiting tool for the Armed Forces and is also an

invaluable readjustment benefit, facilitating the transition of those members

of the Armed Forces who elect to return to civilian life.

As you know, cha VFW hal long stood for a strong national defense. We

firmly believe that the very foundation of our ability to protect and defend

our country lies in a strong and capable troop force which is ready, willing

and able to respond to the civil and martial exigencies of this modern age.

* WASHINGTON OFFICE *
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We believe that our Armed Forces are now in a position to do just this, and

the New CI Bill is playing an essential role in achieving and maintaining this

crucial capability. Data collected on the program leave no doubt that the New

CI Bill is directly responsible for dramatic gains in military recruitment and

retention, allowing our nation to maintain and improve strength levels for

both active duty and reserve forces while avoiding a return to the draft.

We of the VFW are convinced that the New CI Bill is dollar for dollar the

most cost-effective means of recruitment now in existence. The Army has

stated that the New CI Bill is saving it about 3234 million a year in military

personnel coat. These savings come from attracting more intelligent and

highly motivated people into the military. And these are exactly the people

needed to serve in our modern, high-tech Armed Forces.

We point to the fact the site of this program in dollars in return for

service to the nation pales in significance when compared to the massive Pell

Educational Grant program of close to four billion dollars annually. Pell

Grants are provided with ao expectation of service to the nation whatsoever in

contrast to the New GI Bill whic,. directly benefits both the participant and

the country.

There can be no doubt about it, the New GI Bill is, across the board, the

best educationakincentive the Department of Defense has to offer today.

Furthermore, this educational benefit program is paying for itself by

improving recruiting quality and reducing turnover in personnel.

Along with providing,a highly motivated and capable Armed Forces, drawn

from a full cross section of the population, the New GI Bill's indirect

benefit to the nation is also profoundly felt. Increased taxes !mid on

increased income more then repays the cost of this educational benefit.
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The New CI Bill is a low cost and highly patriotic means for this

nation's young people, who could not otherwise afford it, to further their

,education aad then fully achieve their potential both as mature individuals

and as informed citizens. Which brings us to address one of the more

important aspects of the New CI Bill, namely, the highly beneficial impact

this educational readjustment program has on those young men and women who

choose to return to civilian life after having served in the Armed Forces.

The VFW is highly concerned with the career mad personal needs of those in the

service of their country, both while in the Armed Forces and after they have

returned to the private sector. The VFW has long understood that the

education and training received while in the military service often is not

sufficient to adequately meet career goals once out of the service. In this

regard, the New CI Bill is designed to provide the financial resources so very

necessary to achieve the professional or vocational skills necessary for

success in our modern society.

Military service itself, undoubtedly, has a highly beneficial effect on

those young men and women who choose to serve their nation. The military's

special emphasis on discipline, working for the good of the group and personal

initiative, the insistence that the individual make decisions provides an

environment which fosters strong personal growth. This environment invests a

young person with an unusually high degree of maturity and selfconfidence.

Nonetheless, the transition from the rigor and discipline of military life to

the more capricious and indefinite contingencies of civilian society, is often

not easy. Thislis where the New GI Bill Fducational Program may serve as an

invaluable readjustment aid.
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The New GI Bill provides not only the means of achieving the professional

or vocational skills necessary for financial success, but also affords those

reentering civilian life the opportunity to enter an educational or academic

milieu, a place of calm and contemplation, wherein their values and views may

be considered in a relaxed yet intellectually disciplined fashion. They are

given the chance to carefully compose the intellectual and moral principles

which will guide them through the remainder of their lives. Out of such

carefully constructed principles are born the finest citizens this nation has

to offer.

Thus, as a transitional mechanism, the New GI Bill provides the means

whereby our young men and women who have opted to serve in the Armed Forces

say achieve both financial well being and moral and intellectual maturity. In

this regard, there is one ocher such consideration we will address here today.

It pertains not to the breadth of a life time but, rather, only a moment.

A young an or woman may very wisely choose to enter the military and

then, just as wisely, choose to leave it. Fven so, leaving the certainties of

military service for the uncertainties of civilian life is, for many, an

intimidating step to take. This is especially true for anyone who CO248 from

the lover economic sector of society and who, therefore, cannot be expected to

have an especially clear or happy view of whet the world outside of the

military holds for chem.

Once again, the New GI Bill can be tremendously beneficial for such young

men and women. Due to the aid provided by the New GI Bill, these individuals

know they have the means of at lease achieving a near term goal, namely,

educational or vocational betterment which may also lead to social and

financial wellbeing in the future. In .other words, they do not have to feel

t.r.4 0 n 0
0.4
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that leaving the military will result in there being left out in the cold.

Upon returning to civilian life, they are afforded the opportunity to achieve

a highly worthuldle shortterm goal which will benefit them in the future.

Because of the New CI Bill, these young men and women know they have a chance.

Our nation is served best by an educational incentive which most improves

our people resource. Participation rates cow that the New CI Bill is

the incentive our military personnel will use the most and will therefore

provide the greatest improvement to society as a whole. As a readjustment

mechanism for veterans returning to civilian life, an incentive to attract

high quality young people into the military and a prudent investment in our

nation's human resource, it would be difficult to design a better program then

the New CI Bill. Therefore the Veterans of Foreign Wars strongly supports

this proposed legislation to indefinitely extend this invaluable readjustment

program.

Hr Chairman, this concludes my testimony, thank you and I will be happy

to respond to any questions you may have.
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Mr. adman and Members of the Subcommittee, it is an honor for me to be

able to participate here ,today and speak on behalf of the members of

Paralyzed Veterans of America. I am Bob Moran, Associate Legislative

Director for PVA.

Initially, Mr. Chairman, I want to take this opportunity on behalf of all of

the members of PVA to officially congratulate you on taking over the Chair-

manship of this most important Subcommittee. WA is confident that with your

leadership and a good working relationship, we can address and improve VA

programs and benefits that-provide for all of our Nation's veterans and their

dependents.

Also, I would like to welcome back those members to the 100th Congress, who

served so adeptly on the Subcommittee last year. PVA looks forward to once

again working with each of you on your specific areas of interest which

affect our Nation's veterans. And lastly, a special welcome to the newest

members of the Subcommittee, Representatives Patterson, Jontz, Stenholm,

Kennedy, and Doman - we look forward to building a constructive, working

relationship with each of you and your staff.
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And now to the business at hand, 11A wholeheartedly supports H.R.1085, a bill

introduced by the House Committee on Veterans' Affairs Chairman, C.V. (Sonny)

Montgomery, and cosponsored by the full Subcommittee. This legislation

would amend Title 38 and Title 10, United States Code, removing the

expiration date of June 30, 1988, thereby making the educational assistance

program under Chapter S3 of Title 38 and Chapter 106 of Title 10 a permanent

program.

For over 40 years veterans have been eligible for federal educational

assistance under a variety of educational assistance programs. The New G.I.

Bill is the best educational incentive the federal government has to offer

today. It not only provides for the recruitment of high quality recruits and

their retention within the military, but also serves as a vehicle for

readjustment back into the civilian population. In a relatively short period

of time the New G.I. Bill has proven that a more motivated individual, of

higher quality, is being attracted to the Armed Services, which is cost

effective. Along with providing highly motivated and capable military

manpower, drawn from a full cross section of the population, the New G.I.

Bill's indirect benefit to the nation is also profoundly felt. For example,

the country benefits from a more highly educated populace. As reported by

the Department of Labor workers with college degrees had median earnings of

$27,777. Those who had completed high school had median earnings of about

$18,350 and those with fewer than four years of high school earned only

$14,776. Increased taxes paid on increased income more than repays the cost

of this educational benefit, the New G.I. Bill, borne by the taxpayer.

Analyses show that educational assistance is the most cost effective means of

getting high quality recruits. According to a recent survey conducted by the

Army, 35 percent of today's recruits cite the educational benefits as their

principal reason for enlisting. In a letter dated November 17, 1986, from

Representative G.V. (Sonny) Montgomery, Chairman of the House Committee on

Veterans' Affairs, to PVA's National President Richard Hoover, he stated:

The New GI Bill is helping them (recruiters) bring bright, high quality

young people into military service. For example, the Army has told us

that during the first 12 months of the New GI Bill, the average monthly
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percentage of high quality graduate contracts written increased to 57.9%

from 50.8% under VEAP. Army Reserve Components report that during the

first 12 months of the New GI Bill, U.S. Army Reserve I-IIIA enlistments

increased 24%, high school enlistments increased 7% and six year

enlistments increased 19% as compared to the pre-New GI Bill rates.

Whether viewed as an incentive to attract high-quality young people into

military service, or as a prudent investment in our Nation's human resources,

or as a readjustment mechanism for veterans returning to civilian life, the

New G.I. Bill should be made a permanent program, with the basic benefits

paid for and administered by the VA, so our Nation can continue the tradition

of rewarding those who s& Ire and protect our freedom.

In conclusion Mr. Chairman, we commend you and the Subcommittee Members for

cosponsoring this most worthy legislative proposal. PVA supports making

permanent the "New G.I. Rill" and has always supported the need and utility

of educational incentives as an investment in our Nation's future.

That concludes my statement and I will be glad to answer any questions that I

Can.
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February 18, 1987

MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE SUBCOMMITTEE:

On behalf of the more than one million members of the
Disabled American Veterans, I wish to thank you and the members
of the Subcommittee for your invitation to appear here today to
express our views on the draft bill, which accompanied our
invitation, proposing to make the "New GI Bill" a permanent
program.

Mr. Chairman, as you know, the DAV is composed of honorably
discharged veterans who were wounded, injured or otherwise
disabled in wartime service for this country. It therefore
follows that our'organization is p4marily concerned with
veterans' educational assistance provided by the Vocational
Rehabilitation Program under Chapter 31 and the Sturvivors and
Dependents Educational Assistance Program provided under Chapter
35 of Title 38, U.S. Code.

Though our organization was founded on the principle that
this nation's first obligation to veterans rests with the
rehabilitation of its service-connected wartime disabled, we
nevertheless are also concerned with those federal programs
which have been designed to enhance the educational
opportunities of veterans in general.

also wish to add that the DAV fully endorses and supports
a str.ng national defense to assure that the United States'
Armed Forces are second to none.

Mr. Chairman, as you know, Title VII of the Department of
Defense Authorization Act, 1985 (Public Law 98-525) established
the "All Volunteer Educational Assistance Program" (commonly
called the "New GI Bill") under Chapter 30, Title 38, U.S. Code,
and the "Educational Assistance for Members of the Selected
Reserve" which appears in Chapter 106, Title 10, U.S. Code.
Both programs were initiated as three year "tests" to determine
their Value as recruitment and retention tools for our nation's
Armed Forces and are administered by the Veterans
Administration. The Title 38 educational assistance program is
also funded by the VA, however, the Title 10 program receives
its funding from the Department of Defense.

In addition tc the educational assistance program offered
under Title VII of Public Law 98-525, the individual branches of
the military may also offer recruits various "kickers" in order
to enhance recruitment in critical skill areos or to encourage
longer enlistments. While these supplemental bencrits are also
administered by the VA, the individual branch of service
offering the "kicker" is responsible for its funding.

In order to participate in the Chapter 30 program,
sdrvicemembers who enter active duty for the first time during
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the period from July 1, 1985 through June 30, 1988 must agree to
a non-refundable $100 per month reduction in pay during the
first 12 months of their service.

Persons who complete a three year tour of active duty
generally receive $300 per month for 36 months and those
individuals who complete two years' active duty and four years'
service in the reserves receive 36 months of entitlement at $250
per month.

Also, under the Chapter 106 program, reservists who
reenlist or extend for a period of not less than six years
during the test period can receive educational benefits of up to
$5,040. The Chapter 106 program, however, does not reqUire a
monetary contribution from the servicemember.

Draft Bill

This measure proposes to make the New BI Bill" permanent
by amending Sections 1411(a)(1)(A) and 1412(a)(1)(A) of Title
38, U.S. Code, and Section 2132(a)(1) of Title 10, U.S. Code, by
deleting the current June 30, 1988 ending date for the
educational assistance programs established by Title VII of
Public Law 98-525.

Mr. Chairman, as mentioned in this testimony, as we'l as in
previou's appearances before this Subcommittee and your
counterpart in the Senate, the DAV focuses its efforts primarily
upon those benefits and services earned as a result of a
service-connected disability or death. Consequently, our
membership has not taken a position on the "New GI Bill," nor do
we have an official position on this measure proposing to
continue tha "New GI Bill" indefinitely.

Having stated this, I must also say, however, that the DAV
fully recognizes the importance of educational benefits as a
recruitment and retention device for our Armed Forces. We note
that various studies and analysis of.the "New GI Bill" have
shown that it has prompted a marked improvement in recruitment,
resulted in obtaining high quality recruits in the upper mental
categories and is now considered as the leading reason for
enlistment in the Army.

Mr. Chairman, the great contributions made to this country
by the GI Bills of World War II, Korea, and Vietnam in terms of
educating and training its citizenry, as well as adding to the
Gross National Product and the tax base of nearly every
community in this country, are well known. Based upon the high
percentage of participants currently enrolled in the "New GI
Bill," we believe this educational assistance program will
follow in the footsteps of its predecessors. Therefore, we
also believe that the "New GI Bill" will serve as an excellent
"transition mechanism" by enhancing the future employment
opportunities for those individuals who elect to return to
civilian life following their initial period of military service.

This concludes my testimony, Mr. Chairman. I again wish to
thank you for the opportunity to appear here today and will be
pleased to answer any questions you may have at this time.
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Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

The American Legion is pleased to appear before you today in support of H.R.
1085. This bill would remove the expiration date for educational assistance eli-
gibility for members of the All-Volunteer Force and Selected Reserve. We believe
its enactment is essential if the armed services are to continue to meet their re-
cruitment goals during the remainder of this century.

In this regard, we would like to briefly illuminate the differences that we
feel exist between the new GI Bill and its predecessor. Prior to the enactment of
the new GI Bill educational assistance programs, administered under title 38, were
designed to'provide readjustment assistance to veterans whose educational careers
were interrupted by involuntary service or the threat of such service. Indeed,
the readjustment benefit accrued to most veterans regardless of whether their ser-
vice was through conscription or enlistment. Honorable service for a specific
period during the term of eligibility was the only requirement set by Congress to
receive educational assistance under the old program.

While the new GI Bill is similar in that it provides an educational benefit

and therefore some readjustment value after the service member has been released
from active duty, it is clearly a program to improve the ability of the military
services to attract and retain high-quality recruits. But the differences do not
stop here. This program, unlike its predecessor, is a contributory system in
which the service member-is financially investing in his or her own future. Of
equal importance is that, unlike the universal availability of its predecessor,the
new GI Bill requires that the recruit make a decision about future educational plans
at the time of enlistment. In addition, the -new GI Bill provides for Makers or ad-
ditional monthly benefits for recruits entering certain military career categories,
benefits not available under the old system.

In order to meet.themanpowerdemands of the armed forces during the remainder
of this century most experts agree that it will be necessary for the military ser-
vices to attract upwards of one half of those eligible to serve. Assuming the con-
verging factors of an ever-dwindling manpower supply in an expanding civilztn job
market and the continuation of the concept of an All Volunteer Force, we are con-
vinced that the new GI Bill is crucial to meeting the manpower needs of the armed
services.

The All Volunteer Force is now 14 years old, and on occasion since the draft
was discontinued the military services have-experienced difficulty in meeting their
recruitment goals. Earlier programs to provide contributory educational assistance
had such low participation rates that they served little practical use in attract-
ing high-quality individuals to military service. All the armed services now agree
that the new GI Bill, with its overall 58 percent participation rate, has clearly
increased the quality of new recruits - a necessary ingredient to meet the envolv-
ing high technology of today's military service. It has also served as a magnet to
draw -youth from all segments of our society to military service. Therefore, The
American Legion is convinced that.making the new GI Bill permanent is.essential to
ensure that the services will have access to high quality recruits now and in the
future.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes our statement.
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STATEMENT OF HON. RONALD V. DELLUMB

MR. CHAIRMAN:

I DEEPLY APPRECIATE THE OPPORTUNITY TO APPEAR BEFORE YOUR

SUBCOMMITTEE TODAY AS YOU ADDRESS THE IMPORTANT PRIORITY OF

VETERANS' EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS.

FIRST, LET ME SAY THAT THE COUNTRY AS A WHOLE AND IN

PARTICULAR THE MORE THAN 43,000 PARTICIPANTS UNDER THE NEW G.I.

BILL THUS FAR OWE YOUR SUBCOMMITTEE AND THE CHAIRMAN OF THE FULL

COMMITTEE, MR. SONNY MONTGOMERY, A TREMENDOUS DEBT OF GRATITUDE.

AGAINST WHAT AT TIMES SEEMED TO BE OVERWHELMING ODDS, IT WAS

CHAIRMAN MONTGOMERY'S UNFAILING DETERMINATION AND DILIGENCE THAT

WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THIS IMPORTANT EDUCATIONAL BENEFIT HAVING

BECOME LAW.

SINCE PUBLIC LAW 98-525 WAS ENACTED, IT HAS SHARED THE

DISTINCTION OF MANY OTHER DF0ERVING AND PRODUCTIVE PROGRAMS.

UNFORTUNATELY, THAT HAS INCLUDED A RELENTLESS ATTACK FROM THE

REAGAN ADMINISTRATION IN THEIR ATTEMPT TO DISREGARD THE INTENT OF

CONGRESS AND HAVE THE FUNDING FOR THE NEW G.I. BILL CUT OFF, EVEN

BEFORE THE CURRENT THREE-YEAR PROGRAM HAS RUN ITS COURSR. DUE TO

THE PROTECTIVE WATCHFULLNESS OF CHAIRMAN MONTGOMERY, THESE
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ATTEMPTS HAVE NOT BEEN SUCCESSFUL AND HE IS TO BE CREDITED WITH

THE SURVIVAL OF THE PROGRAM THUS FAR.

I AM PROUD TO COSPONSOR THIS COMMITTEE'S NEW INITIATIVE,

H.R. 1085, WHICH WOULD MAKE PERMANENT THE PROGRAM VrICH AFFORDS

VETERANS THESE EDUCATIONAL READJUSTMENT BENEFITS.

MR. CHAIRMAN, I SHARE WITH YOU THE DESIRE TO IMPROVE THE

QUALITY OF LIFE FOR OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN. AS CHAIRMAN'OF

THE ARMED SERVICES SUBCOMMITTEE ON INSTALLATIONS AND FACILITIES/

I HAVE HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO STUDY THE MILITARY QUALITY OF LIFE

ISSUE FIRSTHAND. IT HAS BEEN MY GOAL, IN REPORTING AN

AUTHORIZATION BILL FOR MILITARY CONSTRUCTION EACH YEAR, TO DO

WERYTHING POSSIBLE TO PROVIDE FOR BETTER LIVING QUARTERS,

PHYSICAL FITNESS CENTERS, HEALTH CARE AND DAY CARE CENTERS,

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES AND BETTER LIVING CONDITIONS IN GENERAL.

MR. CHAIRMAN, THE TESTIMONY ON THE NEED FOR THE NEW G.I.

BILL IS ELOQUENT AND THE STATISTICS ARE CONVINCING. THE NEW G.I.

BILL IS A SUCCESS BY ANY STANDARD. THE EDUCATIONAL LEVEL OF

THOSE WHO ARE NOW JOINING THE SERVICE HAS RISEN BECAUSE MANY OF

THESE NEW RECRUITS ARE CONCERNED ABOUT-FURTHERING THEIR EDUCATION

AND THE INCENTIVE OF THE G.I. BILL BRINGS THEM TO THE RECRUITER.

THEREFORE, IT IS AN EFFECTIVE RECRUITING TOOL, AND HIGHER QUALITY
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RECRUITS ARE JOINING. THIS TREND REFLECTS ON THE SERVICES IN

GENERAL, AND THEIR POSITIVE PUBLIC ACCEPTANCE HAS IMPROVED AS

WELL.

BUT MORE THAN THIS, THE NATION DEMONSTRATES ITS COMMITMENT

TO THOSE WHO SERVED IN PROVIDING FOR THE QUALITY OF THE VETERANS

LIFE AFTER THEIR SERVICE. VETERANS ARE LARGELY PEOPLE WHO HAVE

SACRIFICED THEIR TRADITIONAL COLLEGE YEARS TO SERVE THEIR

COUNTRY. BU1 THE EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS THEY RECEIVE NOW AND

SHOULD CONTINUE TO RECEIVE AFTER SERVICE IS MORE THAN A PAY-BACK.

IT IS A RECOGNITION OF OUR MOST PRECIOUS NATIONAL RESOURCE: THE

YOUTH OF OUR NATION.

I BELIEVE THAT THE NATION UNDERSTANDS THAT THERE CAN BE NO

MORE EFFECTIVE WAY TO BALANCE THE BUDGET, LOWER UNEMPLOYMENT,

FIGHT CRIME, AND RAISE THE STANDARD OF LIVING OF OUR CITIZENS

THAN THROUGH EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE TO OUR YOUTH. STUDENT AID

FOR CIVILIANS AND FOR VETERANS REPRESENT THE GREATEST HOPE FOR

THE IMPROVEMENT OF THE HUMAN CONDITION, THE ENLIGHTENMENT OF OUR

CITIZENRY. IT IS MY HOPE THAT AS WE PROGRESS, WE WILL FURTHER

UNDERSTAND THAT A QUALITY EDUCATION IS THE RIGHT OF THE PEOPLE.

YOUR BILL FURTHERS THAT CAUSE.

AGAIN, I THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY BEFORE
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YOUR'SUBCOMMITTEE. PLEASE BE ASSURED THAT I WILL DO WHATEVER

CAN TO ASSIST YOU IN YOUR EFFORTS TO OBTAIN PASSAGE OF THIS

IMPORTANT LEGISLATION.
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee:

I welcome the opportunity to
appear before you in support of the New GIBill. I am here today as a representative

of more than S7,000 American
citizens dedicated to the support

of a strong military which depends on theavailability and recruitment of
young American men and women. I should pointoutthet-, unlike many other military

support organizations, no: of our membersis ON active duty with any branch
of the armed services, nor is the Bevy Leaguean organization restricted to.retfred or,former

members of the military. Infact more than SO% of our members have
never served in the military services.

Primarily, we are ordinary citizens
from all walks of life who are convinced

that the nation needs a strong, viable,
Navy, Marine Corps, Coast Guard andMerchant Marine. Our objective Is education and motivation - to awakeninterest, to encourage cooperation

and to support all matters which aid andimprove our maritime capabilities.

Putting the bottom line first, the Wavy League of the United States
strongly supports the GI bill and

the proposed legislation to make it apermanent program. It is a good program
now and it is hoped that changes will

be incorporated in the future to make It even better.

I would like to read to you from the 1986-1987 Navy League Resolutionsadapted by the membership in July 1986 at our Rational Convention.

"In order to at..act and retain
the best of our youth to the

armed forces, the Wavy League
believes that service in the

military shoulu be rewarded with a total compensation package
consisting of competitive pay

rates, a full program of fringe
benefits, and an attractive retirement

program.

14e consider the GI Bill to be a very important fringe benefit. A fringebenefit that serves both as a recruitment and a readjustment tool.

The GI bill has been an important
ingredient in attracting highly

qualified high school graduates to serve in the military.
Navy statistics, forInstance, indicate that 58% of its December and January recruits °OA for thenew GI Bill. This figure brings the Wavy cumulative total to about 60,000active duty participants which

means that approximately 43% of all recruitshave taken advantage of the new GI Bill since it became available. MarineCorps percentages are similar.

The CI Bill is an American Institution. It is an important part of themilitary benefit program. For more then 43 years it has been available toprovide our service personnel with
educational benefits in return for honorablemilitary service.

During all this tit., it has given literally millions ofyoung Americans an opportunity to adjust
from military service to successful

and productive civilian life.

Recent reports indicate that fewer
hljh school graduates are going tocollege full time because their parents
simply cannot afford the high costs.A recent article in the Washington

Times indicateS that 48T of today's collegestudents attend college with the
assistante of loans of one form or another.Those who borrow money to pay their way through college end up owicp. an Anaverage, 6,000 - 9,000 dollars.
This is indeed a substantial ffnadatal Lurdenfor anyone right out of college and starting a career.

Clearly, today's high cost of
a college education impacts on all but thewealthy. Colleges and universities are

experiencing reduced enrollments. Andat the same time, greater numbers
of the nation's youth - those that are

scholastically prepared and motivated
- ..re financially unable to go tocollege.

The GI bill is also an investment
in our country's future. Servicemen andwomen return to civilian life and college

more mature. and with a greater
understanding of the world around them.

Usually they are better students thanthey were before military service.
With the increased earnings that come froma better education, these veterans will

more than repay the nation for 'he costof the GI Bill.

Keep in mind that as we end the 1980's
and enter the 1990's the

demographics of young people indicate it will be harder and harder for theservices to compete with industry for
mentally and physically qualified young
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men and women. Last year, then Chief of Naval Operations, Admiral James D.
Watkins. in a speech before the World Affairs Council reported that the United
States is racing a downward trend in demographics.

Re cited a Rand Study which found that the 1980 manpower pool of 2.1

million youth will shrink by 20S to 1.7 million by 1990. This means the Armed

Services, so dependent upon quality people, will find it increasingly difficult

to compete for the young people it needs. Should it become impossible to

attract the numbers needed, the alternative is a return to conscription to meet
the armed-services personnel requirements.

By making the new GI Bill a permanent program as well as providing for
adequate compensation and with incentives we assure the armed services of
quality personnel who, upon leaving the service, will be financially ;flitter

able tvi obtain a college education. They will then become more productive

members of the work force as has been proven by two generations of recipients

of the GI Bill.

In closing I urge you to seek approval of this legislation. The time to

act is now before the current law expires. In my opinion, a lengthly delay or

defeat of the legislation will only cause the nation harm.

Mr. Chairman, thank yolv very much for permitting me to appear before your

committee.
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Vietnam Veterans of America strongly supports HR 1085 to

make permanent the Now GI Bill educational assistance programs.

The first resolution passed at the first National Convention of

Vietnam Veterans of America in 1983 is "Bo it resolved, that

the Vietnam Veterans of America vow 'Never again will one

generation of veterans abandon another.'" This statement, from

the Keynote address for the Convention by Congressman David

Bonior, is our commitment to ensure that those who follow us in

fulfilling their obligation of citizenship through military

service are afforded the opportunity to regain their rightful

place in relation uo their peers who chose not to serve. The

Now GI Bill educational assistance programs are important moans

of fulfilling our oligation to assist in the readjustment for

those who serve in uur military forces.

As the newest generation of war veterans, we appreciate

the benefits of advanced education that were available to us

through the Vietnam Era GI Bill. While the climate in

educational institutions and the country itself may have made

it difficult for some of us to take full advantage of the

benefits available, many of us have received advanced education

that would not have been possible without this assistance. It

has enabled us to begin to take our place as leaders in this

country.

It is very encouraging that many new recruits are opting

1
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to give up a substantial part of their first year's salary to

participate in this readjustment program. We are concerned,

however, that when the time comes for them to use this vital

assistance the $300 monthly check will be completely inadequate

to offset the rising cost of advanced education. It is appar-

ent, as happonec with tho Vietnam Era GI Bill, that these young

people will be forced, if they have no other sources of income, .

to attend the least expensive institutions. We recommend the

military services in briefing recruits on the program include

information on education costs. The Veterans Administration,

as part of their educational assistance, must be prepared to

provide information on additional sources of support for

education.

We also cr-rTurago and support the provision of extra edu-

cation benAffts to those who opt to train in skills that are of

critical need or are not easily transferable to the

non-military work force.

There are a number of possible improvements in the

prcgram. These are improvements to encourage full

par"icipation and not necessary changes at this time. Tho

program as it presently operates has the full support of

Vietnam Veterans of America. These suggestions are elements of

'find-tuning that wo will also support.

2
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We view the New GI Bill as a veterans readjustment

program. In this time of needed deficit reduction it is

understandable, yet lamentable, that we must ask those who

sacrifice for us to also sacrifice financially for this

program. But since they do sacrifice financially we must

insure that these funds are not lost to their use if they do

not use them for education.

We recommend:

1. Those "opting in" the program during the first 14 days of

active service be offered the option of $100 per month reduc-

tions in salary for 1 year or $50 per month reductions for 2

years. All others be allowed to "opt in" during the first year

of active duty at $100 per month reduction. This will ensure

that those whose obligation is for 2 years will have paid in

their share before leaving active duty.

Many individuals are entering military service fully aware

of the readjustment benefits of the New GI Bill due to the

efforts of recruiters to inform them of this program. Some of

these, however, do not take advantage of the program due to

financial responsibilities which they have already incurred

including the support of their families. It is our beleif that

the participation of this group will be increased if they have

a lower monthly reduction. Many who have not made up their

mind about participation in the pLuyLams will need more

3
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information anetime to make a decision. They should be given

this extra time to consider this important decision.

2. Anyone leaving active service before fulfilling their first

enlistment obligation who is granted a general or higher

discharge be reimbursed their full contribution upon discharge.

Due to.the rigors of military training some individuals

may prove to be unsuitable for service in the military. There

really is no completely reliable way to determine this suit

ability before enlistment. Those who opt in the New GI Bill

Program and are unable to complete their responsibility through

no fault of their own should not be penalized by loss of their

contribution.

3. Those who do not use any benefits within fiVe years of

leaving active duty be allowed to be reclaim their full

($1,200) contribution.

Some individuals entering military service are unsure of

their future plans and may not consider advanced education to

be a part of that future. In fact they may find that they do

not need or desire to advance their education after military

service. They may have no need of this readjustment benefit.

They should be allowed after a five year period to reclaim

their contribution if they have not used any of their benefits.

4
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It is our belief the need will exist-and many who may have

opted out if they felt they would forfiet their pay rniuction

will, in fact, take advantage of the benefits and contribute

substancially to our society through the use of this program.

4. Those who opted in and have served at least ten years

on active duty and have used no GI Bill benefits be permitted

to transfer those benefits at 1/2 their value to a spouse or

child.

There is a need fus ailitary forces to retain members but

the New GI Bill may be a detriment to this retention because to

be used most effectively the service member would need to leave

active duty. The option of passing on some of the benefit to a

spouse or child only encourage participation by potential

careerists and.will ensure that those whose plans change will

be afforded the oi?ortunity available under the New GI Bill.

5. Military Academy and ROTC graduates be permitted to opt

into the program having their pay reduced by $100 per month for

12 months if they commit to remain on active duty at least 2

years beyond their initial service obligation.

The New GI Bill does not discriminate against those who

have gained education through any other government funded

education programs. Once these individuals have fulfilled

5
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their initial obligation from their education they :;:sould be

offered the opportunity to use this program to further their

eduCation.

The New GI Bill for the Reserves and National Guard has

one major flaw which may be detrimental to retention of highly

skilled and educated individuals. The restriction of type of

education and level should be lifted for Reserve and National

Guard members.

With a large part of our military medical programs being

transfered to the Guard and Reserve we must offer incentives to

retain highly skilled and motivated individuals. We can

certainly expect the opportunity to obtain advanced degrees

that will enhance our service delivery to be a boon to

recruitment and retention and to assist the country in

fulfilling its needs for nurses and medical technicians in many

fields.

Since the establishment of the first GI Bill Program after

World War II millions of America's veterans, who would not

otherwise have the means, have received advanced education

using this important readjustment program. Those who have

fulfilled their obligation of citizenship through military

service deserve to be afforded that same opportunity today.

6
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Thank you for giving Vietnam Veterans of America the

opportunity to express our interest, concern and support for HR

1085.

7
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Joint Commission
On Federal Relations

March 6, 1987

The Honorable Wayne Dowdy, Chairman

Subcommittee on Education, training and Employment
Coomittes on Veterans' Affairs
U.E. House of Representatives
240 Cannon Rouse Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20313

Dear Mr. Chairman:

JC

In responsito your letter of February'20, community colleges in most States
are actively buildi«: casir outreach in working with National Guard and kesarve
units. As your record already indicates, we are making a special effort to
encourage community college agencies in each State to convene drive-in conferences
both to giie community college staff a detailed briefing on the opportunities that
the Montgomery CI gill offers to increase enrollment and to increase dialogue
between the campuses and the local.Guard'afid Easerve units.

In some States, such as North Carolina and Virginia,a strong working
relationship has already developed between community colleges, and Guard and Reserve
units. In North Carolina, for example, the State Department of Ccomunity Colleges
and the tvo-year.colleges net their, target of completing by January what they call
"drive-in visits" with all National Guard units. Thesemeetings served to esta-
blish working relationships between the colleges and local Guard units, to help
ensure -that Guard members make the best use of theirMontgomery CI Bill opportunities.
The colleges are now completing similar meetings with all Reserve units. Similar
networking is being done between the community colleges and the Guard and Reserve
units in Virginia and South Carolina, among other States.

In general, closer working relationships are developing rapidly between Guard
and Reserve units and community colleges across the country. In the coming week,
Hack Fleming and I will be leading drive-in conferences in Denver and Salt Lake to
promote such relationships. National security, the students and the colleges all
benefit because the program' is drawing growing numbers of Guard and Reserve members
into college courses that provide the skills the military systole and the national
economy must have to meet global competition.

As we receive more detailed reports of the program's progress from the States,
we will share them with you. : bank you again for your decisive leadership on this
vital Prolcom.

Frank Mensal
Vice President for Federal Relations, AACJC
Director of Federal Relations, ACM

lthegd

cc: gal Miller

AeowaseeselawamoneyCeappernanses
602elltreeivetrumeits
Suess
Artnargla*VA32033

0414770

AneffunAgedelloaolConlattnilyendJurkoColl<as
One Dupont Circle. N N.

Suits 410
W44/44gton. D.C. 20336

(202)203.7060
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WRITTEN COMMITTEE QUESTIONS AND THEIR RESPONSE

CHAIRMAN DOWDY '1'0 Am FORCE ASSOCIATION

Air Force Association
1501110 Highway, Arington, Virginia 22209-1198 (703) 247-5800

An Indepondant Non Profit Aerospace Organization

How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high
quality young people?

The Air Force can accomplish its mission because it has well
trained, experienced, highly motivated people to operate and
maintain its weapons systems. Its ability to get the mission
done and maintain an effective deteirent force depends on
recruiting and retaining high quality men and women in sufficient
numbers to provide an experienced and combat ready force.

The Air Porce is a high technology organization. It has
been this way for a long time, but is getting into higher and
higher technology each year. If we don't recruit high quality
young people, some of these high technology systems could become

space aged tinker toys. Quality people are the key.

2 53



249

CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO Am FORCE SERGEANTS ASSOCIATION

Air Force Sergeants Association
International Headquarters. P.O. Box 50. Temple Ms, MD 20748 Pnone: (301) 899-3500

QUESTION: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality
young people'

RESPONSE: The Air Force Sergeants Association believes it is absolutely
imperative that the military services continue to recruit high quality
young on and women. It is a proven fact that recruits in the higher men-
tal categories are more likely to complete their enlistments, thus reducing
the number of recruits needed: are more easily trained, thus reducing the
costs associated with training time and attrition due to failure to pro-
gress through the training cycle; and finally high-quality recruits are
less likely to become involved in crimes, incidences of drug abuse or ina-
bility to conform with military disciplines. The bottom line is high-qual-
ity recruits complete their prescribed enlistment contract without incident
and do their job better.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO AIR NATIONAL GUARD

DEPARTMENTS OF THE ARMY AND THE AIR FORCE
NATIONAL GUARD BUREAU

WASHINGTON. 0.C.203102500

Question 1: Does an educational assistance incentive attract a
different kind of recruit from that attracted by

bonuses? Is it important to your service to have both

available?

Answer: Educational assistance has as its primary focus the
accession of quality. goal oriented young men and women into
the broad range of career opportunities within the Air

National Guard. Conversely, the thrust of the bonus programs

is somewhat more narrow. They are targeted to increase,
through significant monetary incentives, enlistments into
specific, well defined wartime required specialties in which

we have historically had recruiting shortfalls. If the Air

National Guard is to continue to appeal to young men and
women (26 percent of our new prior service accessions in
Fiscal Year 1986 were female) with diverse goals for their
futures, it is clearly in our best interests to be ably to
offer both educational benefits and financial indicements.

Question 2: Nov are candidates for service informed of the benefits
available to them under the New C/ Bill?

Answer: The New GI Bill has received extensive publicity in the

media. When queried, more than 60 percent of our new
accessions responded that in their opinion, the New CI Bill

had been publicized to a great degree. Our experience has

shown that most of our applicants make their initial
inquiries concerning the Air National Guard based on a
combination of this advertising plus information from a
Zmiend who has recently enlisted in the Air National Guard.

Wt, accrue an additional benefit from this phenomonon.
Quite simply, quality attracts quality. Individuals with

like interests, lifestyles, and goals tend to cluster

together. Enlisting one member of such an informal group
often precipitates similar interest in his or her

associates. This is hot the word spreads about the "good

deal" in the Air National Guard. The recruiter is trained

to elicit from an applicant just what his or her interests

and goals are. Once this information has surfaced, the
recruiter is in a position to explain precisely how the Air
National Guard can help in fulfilling those interests and

goals.

Question 3: There are those who assert that educational assistance

benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has

been your experience with this? Do you agree with this

assertion?

Answer: The ion that educational assistance benefits are an
incentive to leave the service is, at the very least, open

to dispute. There should be no doubt that the New GI Bill
is effectively providing the Air National Guard access to

the most wanted young men and women in our country. Once

we have successfully enticed them with these benefits, it
is imperative that the leadership and management in the Air
National Guard, and I am talking about officers and senior
Non-Commissioned Officers (NCO.), provide an environment in

which these young men and women can make substantive
contributions, an environment in which their presence is

essential. If we can continue to maintain this kind of

. environment (and in Fiscal Year 1986 we retained 80 percent
of our first term traditional Guardsmen). I em confident
'thit the concerns implicit in this assertion will not be

realized.
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Question 4: How important is it to all of you to attract high quality
young people to military service? :fiat would be the
effect if. in future years. you were without an

educational assistance benefit and unable to bring into
service your current high quality recruits?

Answer: Attracting and recruiting high quality young people for whom
further education is of primary importance in the attainment
of their long range goals is clearly in the best interests of
the Air National Guard. Every personnel study in this area
underscores one key trait: as a group. high school graduates
have a hieter completion rate in basic training and in
technical school. perform more efectively on the job. and
have substantially fever disciplinary problems than do non-
graduates. The complexity of modirn weapons systems and the
increasing involvement of the Air National Cutrd with the
regular Air Force do not allow us to settle for second best
in our personnel accessions. Any diminution of our high
standards will have a long term impact that is both
predictable and intolerable. Predictable in the sense that
we know all too well the high costs incurred when the Armed
Forces are asked to make do with less than the best.
Intolerable in the sense of higher elimination rates from
basic military training and technical school. lessened
productivity resulting from an increase in disciplinary
problems. Given a scenario in which the present high
quality of our young airmen decreases. we can project a
parallel decrease in readiness and effectiveness.

72-772 0 - 87 - 9

l!..c.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCATION

AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUCA1101

Dmsion of G:roernmelvol Man=

FEBRUARY 18, 1987 NEARING OK RR 1085

QUESTION: I believe one of the most important ramifications of the

Haw GI Bill is the development of the really remarkable
relationship that is developing between schools and the
military. Would you comment on this and perhaps share
any personal experiences you have had in this regard?

RESPONSE: The G.I. Bill, and enlightened federal statutes and
policies, have fostered the development of productive
relationships between the military services and colleges
and universities. These education assistance programs
have enabled many active duty personnel, as well as
military veterans, to pursue postsecondary education
opportunities. Among such programs are those sponsored
by the University of Maryland's University College, City
Colleges of Chicago, Big Bend (Washington) Community
College, University of the State of Hew York Regents
College Degrees, Thomas A. Edison College (New Jersey),
and Central Michigan University.

Since 1945, the American Council on Education (ACE)
through its Military Evaluations Program and General
Educational Development (GED) Testing Program has
enabled millions of active duty personnel and veterans
to receiveformal recognition of postsecondary-level
learning acquired in the military services in the form
of academic credit and credentials.

Since 1972, the Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges
(SOC)--now incorporating approximately 400 colleges and
universities--have been meeting the educational needs of
mobile servicemen and women. The SOC associate degree
programs for soldiers (Army) and sailors (Navy) are
formal networks of community colleges that enable
enrollees to pursue, uninterrupted, associate degree
programs from any military station in the world.
Currently, about 90 percent of those enrolled intend to
acquire associate degrees directly related to their
military jobs. Four-year colleges and universities are
now forming baccalaureate degree networks for soldiers.
SOC sponsors are the American Association of Community
and Junior Colleges (AACJC) and American Association of
State College and Universities (AASCU). Eleven other
postsecondary education associations and agencies
(including ACE) cooperate and subscribe to membership
criteria.

The nation's armed services have been quite aggressive
in promoting educational advancement of personnel. The
Army, for example, has announced that in its search for
educational "excellence" it aims to enroll some 90
percent of its total membership in postsecondary
education programs in tilt years ahead.
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CNAIRMAN DOWDY TO ARMY NATIONAL GUARD

DEPARTMENTS OF THE ARMY AND THE AIR FORCE
NATIONALGUMOSURCAU
WASH8NOTON.O.C.203100100

1 2 L'AR 1987

Office of Policy and Liaison

Question 1: Does an educational assistance incentive attract a
different kind of recruit from that attracted by
bonuses? Is it important to your service to have both
available?

Answers The New CI Sill attracts soldiers who either intend to or
are attending college. This provides the Army National Guard
with source of higher civilian educated soldiers to meet
the higher technology of equipment and mission scenarios.
The enlistment and retention bonuses are for filling unit or
critical skill shortages only without regard to college
education. It is important for the Army National Guard to
offer various different enlistment and retention incentives
to achieve the strength mission.

Question 2s Now are candidates for service informed of the benefits
available to them under the New CI Bill?

Answer: Federal law requires that soldiers be notified when eligible
and sign a Notice of Basic Eligibility. Additionally,
recruiters and other personnel routinely inform recruits and
soldiers of their benefits.

Question 3: There are those who assert that educational assistance
benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has
been your experience with this? Do you agree with this
ssertiOni

Answers The Reserve Components` New CI Bill can.only be used while the
soldier remsins an active member of the Selected Reserve.
This assertion of leaving does not apply to the Reserve
Components. The New CI Bill is an important enlistment and
retention tool.

Question 4: Now important is it to all of you to attract high quality
young people to military service? What would be the
e ffect if, in future years, you were without an

educational assistance benefit and unable r4 bring int..
service your current high quality recruits?

Answer: As a reflection of the Total Army, the demand for higher
educated soldiers within the Army National Guard has
escalated sharply in recent years and promises to continue
to do so. A key factor is the equipment, training, and
mission scenarios of the Total Army are becoming more
sophistizated. As an integral part of the Total Army, the
soldiers of the Army National Guard must keep pace with
these changes if they are to meet the challenges of the
future. The Reserve Components' New CI Bill is necessary
to attract and provide soldiers to meet these challenges.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES Ana

01,71C11 Of TAR
101:11CUTIVt:VIOS PRIONDIDIT

ASSOCIATION OF THE UNITED STATES ARMY
POW 01710 .00X rue. AIILMITIM. VIX6011A SASSO 1703) $41.4)00

Q. UOW IMPORTANT IS IT TO OUR ARMED FORGES TO RECRUIT RIGS

QUALITY YOUNG PEOPLE?

A. On behalf of the 166.000+ members of the Association of the
United States Army. I (Major General Robert F. Cocklin, ADS
Rat. Executive Vice President. AUSA) am pleased to provide
this response for the record.

Nothing is more important to the Army than its people.
Nigh quality pimple. accessed as individuals. and infused
regularly through enlisted- and officer-producing recruiting
programs. become the backbone of the Armed Forces which
provides our nation's defense.

Nigh quality young people are:

- more likely to complete their enlistments,

- demonstrably more trainable,

- less prone to indiscipline.

And, they are more likely to grow into the innovative leaders
and technicians each Service needs for tomorrow.

By recruiting high quality young people. the Government eaves
recruiting. training. and OEM funds. which may than be
applied toward other Service needs.

There exists important. inextricable links among education.
recruiting and retention. The Army encourages its soldiers
to make education a life-long pursuit. High quality young
people with personal goals. who desire education and self
improvement. become reliable, dependable soldiers and-enhance

unit combat readiness. In turn. enhanced unit combat
readiness enables the Army leadership to refine the Army's
combat force structure and improve its strategic

deployability.

Despite the forecasted decline in the available pool of
applicants, as important incentives (such as the GI Bill) and

Service needs (such as access to adequate resources for
recruiting) are recognized by the Congress and made
permanent, the Army and its sister Services will be in a
Nittar position to attract high quality young people to serve
in the nation's Armed Forces.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR V' CI
IICADOUARTCRS imago 5TATS5 AIR YORCC

WASNINGTON. O.C. 2030-5060

L. Question: Does an educational assistance incentive attract adifferent kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is itimportant to your service to have both available?

Answer: There is no doubt that the answer to the first partof your question is yes. Education benefits are most appealing
to young people who are goal oriented. They realize the long-term value of higher education. On the other hand there is asegment of the youth population who value the need for availablecash for a host of reasons. Our bonus programs are targeted tocritical skills and have been very effective in our efforts to
meet our qualitative and quantitative recruiting goals. Theavailability of both of these potent recruiting tools has
broadened our potential recruiting market and are two of the pri-mary reasons why Air Force recruiting has been successful.

2. Question: How are candidates for service informed of the
benefits available to they under the New GI Bill (NGIB)?

Answer: New recruits are informed of all the bill's benefitsin a systematic sequence of actions. First, the Air Force
recruiter briefs the potential recruit and gives him/her a pam-phlet titled An Air Force Guido To The New GI Sill. At the Mili-
tary Entrance Processing Stations they are required to read a
series of questions and answers which deal with the NGIB. Aletter is also sent to the members' parents along with the NGIBpamphlet. At basic training all new trainees are briefed
thoroughly on day two of training and given the pamphlet onceagain. On day seven they are given the option to opt in or outof the program.

3. !bastion( There are those who assert that educational
assistance benefits are an incentive to leave service. What hasbeen your experience with this? Do you agree with this asser-tion?

Answer: With the exception of those personnel who, due tohigh year of tenure, will be forced to separate from service
before they can qualify for conversion under the MGM we do not
view educational assistance benefits as a primary incentive to
leave the Air Force. Those who leave do so for a variety ofreasons. Those who choose to stay on with us are encouraged topursue their education. The Air Force has developed a comprehen-sive continuing education program for its personnel with on -base
degree granting opportunities at all of our major bases. The
in-service provisions of both the NGIB and the Vietnam GI gills
encourage our people to take full advantage of thaseopportuni-
ties while pursuing Air Force careers.

4. Question: How important is it to all of you to attract high
quality young peo441 to military service? What would be theeft.ct if, in future years, you ware without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your currenthigh quality recruits?

Answer: It is common knowledge that our weapons systems are
undOlfailiconstant change. With each change the degree of com-plexity and sophistication has increased. This fact is eztolly
true with respect to requirements for

their maintenance andeffectiveness. Due to these facts, the need for us to recruit
and retain high quality young people is no longer a luxury: it isan absolute necessity. Our annual surveys of recruits (over
4,000) tell us wt they elected to enlist in the Air Force. Ourlatest survey reflkw:Its that 63% enlisted to continue my educa-tion as a primary reason why they joined the Air Force. Wetherefore have no doubt that we would suffer severely in the
future without an effective educational

assistance benefit.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY

OFFICE Of 'HE DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFF FOR Pf.RSORNEL

*45/4144010N. DC 203104300

Question: Does an educational assistance incentive attract a
different kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is it
important to your service to'have both available?

Can Elton: The Army subscribes to a dual market concept theory
composed of two major sub - markets within the quality youth
populations. These are employment /skill - oriented. and

college-oriented. Whereas both groups hava-.some common
motivations, such as the desire to serve their country, the
employment-orientedlrouth tend to be mors interested in
job-related benefits. They are interested in learning skills and
also are more likely to view the Army as a permanent employer.
Bonuses are highly effective in persuading them to enlist for
four year terms and hard to fill skills with long training
periods. The college-bound youth, on the other hand are more
likely to be motivated by deferred benefits, such as the
opportunity to finance their future education. They enlist for
the shortest available term and tend to look at military service
in terms of a hiatus from school. The Army:has historically done
well in the employment-oriented segment, but not in the
college-oriented segment. Both are,required to meet our
requirements. 'The,Army uses the GI Bill plus the Army College
Fund as a market expander to tap into the college-oriented
segment. An American Economic Review article concluded that
education benefits are a stronger enlistment incentive for high
quality college-oriented'youth than higher pay.

Question: How are candidates for service informed of the
benefits available to them under the New GI Bill?

Gen Elton: GI Bill information provided to potential recruits
begins with national advertising. The Army uses the full range
of broadcast, print and direct mail vehicles to inform young
Americans of the educational opportunities afforded them by the
GI Bill. Now recruits first get briefed on the GI Bill by the
recruiter. When he processes through the Military Entrance
Processing Station (REPS), he receives a second briefing by a
recruiting guidance counselor as part of hid orientation of his
enlistment contract. One part of this orientation is a video
presentation using the Joint Optical Information Network (JOIN)
system. Prior to the recruits return tofaccess on active duty, a
letter is sent to the parents informing them of the benefits of
the program. Upon arrival at the Army Reception Station, the
recruit receives a final orientation with a movie, partscipates
in a question and answer session and makes the decision to enroll
or disenroll from the program. Education counselors conduct the
briefing at the Reception Stations and are available at every
Army installation to continue the information process.

Question: There are those who assert that educational assistance
benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has been your
experience with this? Do you agree with this assertion?

Gen Elton: The recruit who is truly college-bound would not have
enlisted at all in the absence of educational incentives or for a
longer temin the first place. However, when they leave active
duty, they do not leave the service, but are transferred to the
Reserve Components to complete their total of eight years of
military service obligation. The college-bound youth who serve
short active duty terms provide urgently needed high quality
wanpower.for the Reserve Components.

Question: How important is it to all of you to attract high
quality young people tomilitary service? What would be the
effact if, in future years, you were without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your current
high quality recruits?
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Can Elton: Military readiness depends on the capabilities,
discipline, and motivation of our young men and women in uniform.For the Army, a quality force is a priority objective. The At=,needs quality soldiers who will perform

well during their initialenlistment and will develop into
qualified leaders who can

successfully meet the challenges they will face over the courseof an Army career. It is from these individuals that the Army mustdevelop its cadre of career soldiers. They must be able to adaptto the changing requirements placed
on them as their jobs changethrough second and succeeding enlistments. Quality recruits areyoung men and wocen,with high school diplomas

and AFQT scores incategories I-IIIA. These recruits are more likely to completetheir enlistments, perform better and are less prone toindiscipline. Recruit quality has improved significantly since1980. In 1980 only about half of the Army recruits were highschool diploma graduates (HSDG) and about 521 were AFQT categoryIV when Indiscipline rates were high, and morale and trainingperformance low. Today approximately 901 of the Army recruitsare HSDG and only about 41 are AFQT category IV. Indisciplinerates are down, morale and training performance are up. As aresult of its current HSDG
re.ruiting success, the Army saveshaving to replace from 12 to 14 thousand soldiers (this is

approximately one Division) at a recruit/training cost of around$235M. As recruit quality-goes
up, indiscipline rates (AWOL),violent crime, desertion, etc) go down. For example, AVOLs aredown from over 40 per thousand in 1980 to less than 15 perthousand in 1986. The Army has'conducted.considerable

researchwhich shows that quality soldiers
perform substantially better.The increased complexities of

modern warfare demand that the Army
maintain the quality of its enlisted force. Analyses ofvirtually every measure of performance such as tank firing, airdefense firing exercises, infantry kill ratios, skill testa,promotions and indiscipline indicators supports this concept.Today's recruits will be tomorrow's sergeants.
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Question: Does an educational assistance incentive attract
a different and of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is

it important to your service to have both available?

Generaltheatham: Our experience is similar to that described
by General Elton. Generally, we find that the GI Bill appeals to
the higher quality applicant we are seeking. The enlistment
bonus program is a part of cur force management effort. It
provides an incentive that spreads the talents of new accessions
throughout the force to meet our needs. We use the bonus program
to attract the high quality accessions to the jobs we need them
in, in the months that support our training capability, and for
the terms of enlistment that most effectively invest our training
dollars.

In other words, the GI Bill helps attract a high quality
applicant to the Service while the bonus program focuses them
into areas we need. As such, these two programs complement
rather than compete with each other. Using them together, we
were able to achieve an average term of enlistment of 4.4 years
during FY-86 while improving all our quality indicators. It is
very important for us to continue to have both programs avail-
able - to keep all of the tools in our tool kit.

Question: How are candidates for service informed of the
bens is to them under the New GI Bill?

General Cheatham: The term "GI Bill' has strong name recog-
nition in our country, and is well regarded by the general popula-
tion. We try to use this in our marketing by creating an awareness
that the New GI Bill is available. We do this as part of our
direct mail campaign in letters sent to high school and junior
college students. We have developed posters, and handouts for
our recruiters to take to the school guidance departments adver-
tising the GI Bill. When the recruiter delivers these, we have
provided him with a fact sheet on the program that helps him
brief the guidance personnel on the details that they need to
effectively advise the student. We have incorporated information
on the GI Bill in our recruiters product knowledge book. This
book is used in the applicant's home, generally with his parents,
to answer a variety of questions about the Marine Corps including
education benefits. Finally, recruiting stations send letters to
both the applicant and parents after enlistment. These letters
welcome the family aboard, and highlight a number of issues: our
policy on drugs, personal behavior, and education. These letters
don't provide all the answers, but do cause the applicant and
parents to ask any questions of our recruiters.

All of this is followed by a presentation at recruit training
where we explain the provisions of the GI Bill to the recruits
and they make their choice. Several members of the Committee and
members of the staff have had the opportunity to see our presen-
tation at Parris Island.
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guestion: There are those who assert
that educational assis-tance benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has beenyour experience with this? Do you agree with this assertion?

General Cheatham: That's an easy assertion to make, but whenviewed, in a broader context
I don't think it's a signficantconcern. Let me start by saying that I'm not talking about theReserve GI Bill - I believe there's

a general consensus that theReserve GI Bill is a superb recruiting and retention program thatis working well:.
When you discuss retention and the New GI Bill, I think youneed to consider two

aspects: first, retention through the firstterm and then, retention beyond
the first term. The way theprogram is structured, a Marine must successfully complete afirst enlistment to realize the benefit. The value of the benefit,coupled with his own investment of $1,200.00 serves as a powerfulincentive for a Marine to keep at it and be successful. In thisrespect, the New GI Bill helps us to keep these high qualityMarines in through their first enlistment.

When that first enlistment is done and a Marine is making adecision to reenlist or get out, the availability
of the GI Billwill obviously be a factor.

How important a factor is yet to bedetermined because the groups
participating haven't gotten tothat decision point. The negative incentive is partially offsetby the option of in-service

use and the fact that the benefit isnot lost if not used at that time. Also, adequate funding of ourSelective Reenlistment
Bonus program, allows us to further reduceany negative incentive by

attracting and retaining Marines withparticular This allows us to shape the force by bettcrmatching our people to the requirements.
I think the point that's often

overlooked in this discus-sion is that we need to have at least 50% of our first termenlisted force get out after their initial enlistment topreserve the vigor of the force and to avoid stagnation of thepromotion system. Recognizing this fact and realizing thatmany of our MOS's do not have
the technical skills that carryover to a civilian job, we need to

provide these young Americans
a readjustment benefit to catch "'em back up with their contem-poraries.

uestion: How important is it to all of you to attract highqual ty young people to military service? What would be the
effect if, in future years, you were without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your
current high quality rec'uits?

General Cheatham: People are the single most important ele-
ment of the Marine Corps - I can't over-emphasize that point.
Our experience through the era of the All Volunteer Force is thatas we increased quality, disciplinary problems and non-expiration
of active service attrition went down, while training and retentionimproved. In other words quality Marines produced a better, morecombat-ready Marine Corps. It is very important to me that we
maintain the caliber of our young Marines. If a reduction in the
basic benefits package resulted in a marked decrease in quality,
we would see an increase in the kind of problems that eventually
degrade readiness, end cost money.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO DEPUTY CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS FOR
MANPOWER, PERSONNEL AND TRAINING

DEPUTY CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS
(MANPOWER. PERSONNEL AND TRAINING)

1. Does an educational assistance incentive attract a different
kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is it important
to your service to have both available?

Yes, the Navy's modest enlistment bonus program is primarily
targeted to upper mental group applicants with a high school
diploma who are willing to obligate for six years in oul nuclear
power program. These young people are particularly interested in
the sophisticated technical training the Navy has to oLfer. The
Navy's Sea/College Program is targeted to high quality enlistees
who are willing to make an eight year committment to the Navy
(two years active duty and six years in the Ready Reserve) in
return for assistance in attending college.

Both programs are critical to Navy's needs. Bonus programs
and the GI Bill attract accessions with different obligated
service, and provide different kinds of benefits, each of which
are important to our total recruiting effort.

2. How are candidates for service informed of the benefits
available to them under the new GI Bill?

A descriptive pamphlet for the new GI Bill along with a
question and answer sheet is provided to all applicants by the
recruiter. Accompanying this information is a letter from the
recruiting district commanding officer suggesting a thorough
discussion with parents and/or school guidance counselors prior
to departing for recruit training where the individual is required
to make a decision within the first two weeks on participation in
the new GI Bill.

At recLoit training, the recruits are given two presenta-
tions. The first one is a thorough discussion on the provisions
of the new GI Bill. The second presentation is a recap of the
first one, followed by an extensive question and answer session.
The recruits are then required to make their election to remain
enrolled in the GI Bill or to disenroll. A Department of Defense
form (DD 2366) is used to record the recruit's intent, and filed
in the permanent service record.

3. There are those who assert that educational assistance bene-
fits are an incentive to leave service. What has been your exper-
ience with this? Do you agree with this assertion?

In January 1984 the Chief of Naval Operations testified that
personnel leaving the Navy continually-cited the impending loss of
GI Bill benefits as one of the prime reasons for their decision.
In the two year period preceding passage of the new GI r411 the
loss of GI Bill benefits increased fro' tenth to fourth as the
most important reason for leaving the Navy. Under the new GI Bill
with its conversion provision for Vietnam Era GI Bill eligibles.
there is no longer the compelling reason to leave the service to
use these benefits before the 1989 delimiting date. Also, since
in-service usage is available under the new GI Bill after two
years of active duty, coupled with ten years after discharge in
which to use the benefits. I do not anticipate a conflict with
members desiring to stay in the Navy. My perception, however, is
that transferability would add impetus to our retention efforts.
Over the years hearings have been held on the issue of transfer-
ring benefits to dependents with overwhelming support expressed
by our military personnel. Our Navy retention teams that travel
hroughout the Fleet have also reported on tta popularity of
tansferability. Transferability would be a y sitive retention
incentive.

4. How important is it to all of you to attract high quality
young people to military service? What would be the effect if,
in future years. you were without an educational assistance bene-
fit and unable to bring into service your current high quality
recruits?

It is extremely important to attract high quality recruits
into the Navy. We have been very successful in meeting quality
goals for the past five years. This attainment has contribut
significantly to improved fleet readiness.

We have no data which would demonstrate the impact on
recruiting should we be faced without an educational assistance
benefit program in the future. We can substantiate, however,
that lower quality recruits result in (1) higher attrition and,
therefore, a requirement for more accessions, (2) higher
training costs to maintain the same level of technical abilities,
and (3) more disciplinary problems.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS

MAR 0 4 1987

DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS
National Service and Legislative Headquarters

807 Maine Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20024

(202) 554-3501

March 2, 1987

Honorable Wayne Dowdy
Chairman
Subcommittee on Education,
Training and Employment

House Veterans Affairs Committee
335 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Chairman Dowdy:

This is in reply to your letter of February 20, 1987,
requesting that I respond to questions which you ware unable to
ask during the February 18, 1987, hearing on H.R. 1085.

1. Did you personally use earlier GI Bills or did you have
friends or family members who did? Did this opportunity to
further their education help them catch up with their peers
who did not serve in the military?

I did not use the GI Bill following my military service inVietnam. However, as a service-connected disabled veteran, I
did use my entitlement to vocational rehabilitation as provided
for in Chapter 31, Title 38, U.S. Code.

I might add, that as a DAV National Service Officer, I came
into contact with many veterans who used GI Bill educational
benefits following their service in World War II, Korea and
Vietnam. With very few exceptions, these men and women reported
that the education -Z 'raining they received under the GI Bill
greatly assisted them whes.. 'hey entered the competitive job
market.

2. If our Armed Forces did not have an educational
assistance benefit to off - service candidates, what would
be,the effect on the abi! .y of the military to recruit
high quality young people!

As you know, recent data reveals that the New GI Bill is
the most cost effective means of attracting high quality
recruits. An Army survey also shows that the leading reason
young men and women are enlisting is the educational benefits
afforded them under the New GI Dill. Obviously, the elimination
of the New GI Bill educational benefits would impair the
military's ability to recruit and retain high quality young
people.

Trusting that ybur questions have been answered, I remain,

Sincerely yours,

ICHA . 66IULT
Associate Nations Legislative Director

RPS:am
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO ELISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE NATIONAL
GUARD OF THE UNITED STATES

ENLISTED ASSOCIATION OF THE NATIONAL GUARD OF THE UNITED STATES
ONE MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE NW

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20001

How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality

young people?

I. look inside a mob.le communications van with its racks of electronic

boxes that operate radio and radar equipment will begin to explain the
dependency on mental quality. Watching maintenance people troubleshooting
a problem on the 1+-1 Abrams tank with electronic computerized equipment
will help. Spending a minute in the electronics shop of a military air
base will soon make you aware of the importance of quality in the

military workplace.

The sophistication of modern weapons systems require understanding
complex theory. It is no longer the world of 'lock and load', trigger
squeeze simplicity of bygone days. Today's soldiers, sailors and
airmen are required to maintain and operate advanced technology
weapons in the noise and confusion of the modern battlefield where

decision and reaction time:: ee been reduced to near-instantaneous
manuever. One such weapon - the STINGER missle - requires 18 steps
to fire, then the operator must remember to hold his breath for a

second or two to avoid the noxious fumes expended by the fi, erg.

Clearly, this is not a task for the slow thinker.

Today's military services are computerized to a degree not even
envisioned twenty years ago. Use of the computer is a daily activity
in almost all military occupations. The drive to reduce reaction time
in the employment of offensive and defensive weapons have spawned a

world of black boxes that require extensive training and mastery of

complex theory to maintain. Interpetation of electronic signals is a
new dimension in optical acuity and mental recall. These systems are
only as effective as the human mind is able to grasp their secrets.

Education - and the ability to expand the human intelligent.: - is key
to maintaining the quality of our defense. As technology expands to
provide quicker responses and decision-making, the demand for the
human intelligence to understand, operate and maintain also increases.
Quality - in people as well as equipment - is the key to maintaining
a viable defense capability. We have come a long way in making a service

career attractive to people of this caliber. We must maintain the

momentum and continue to offer the incentives necessary to attract the
best of our young people into the services. The New CI Bill has proven

to be one of the beat of these incentives. It encourages advanced

education and provides the means whereby it may ho achieved. The quality

people we seek are attracted y it; it needs to be a permanent incentive

p gram.

1.-2%reeet:ez

an D. Obermiller, CMS (Ret)
Executive Director
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO FLEET RESERVE ASSOCIATION

FLEET RESERVE ASSOCIATION
Representing All Enlisted Personnel of the

t.I.S. NAVY * U.S. MARINE CORPS * U.S. COAST GUARD

1303 New Hampshire Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20036 (202) 785.2763

The followi:4, is the Fleet Reserve Association's answer to
the question, "How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young People?" .

The Fleet Reserve Association believes it is vital that our
Armed Services recruit the very best among high quality young
Americans because:

All those recruited should be graduates of high school.
We are not just thinking of the academic knowledge a
high school graduate possesses. A high school diploma
proves that the individual has the purpose and persis-
tence to achieve a basic goal in life. A high school
graduate is a proven achiever.

In today's technical world, the Armed Forces are the
leaders in technology and common skills are becoming
more complex and the technical skills have become so
advanced that it will take the persons in the upper
mental group categories to perform the skills required
to maintain the state of readiness that our national
defense requires.

Today's Armed Forces offer almost unlimited training
and education opportunities to those entering the
service. Therefore, it is mandatory that those
recruited have the basic education and learning ability
to absorb this knowledge and apply it in a meaningful
way.

Today, we are in the All Volunteer Force age. That
means the Services must compete with industry and .

private enterprise. This fact makes recruiting and
training expensive. Another factor is the national
demographics. These two factors combined requires that
we recruit the highest quality because in doing so, we
also improve the retention of personnel and thereby
contain the costs of future recruiting and training of
personnel.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR UNIFORMED

SERVICES

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR UNIFORMED SERVICES
SUS HAMPSTEAD WAY

SPRINGFIRLD, VIRGINIA 22151-4094

TEL DOG 760.1342

Sfrvirmonaer's Etta is Gournmxt"
Ettabruld 1968

Q: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality young

people?

A: It is critically important to our
Armed Forces to recruit high quality

young people. In fact, when considering the
issue of combat readiness of our

Aimed Forces, the single-most
important factor is the quality of the people

who serve. This fact has been borne out
in many ways and is clearly shown in

testa and studies conducted by the Army. These studies showed that quality

soldiers, those with high school
diplomas and Armed Forces Qualifying Test

(AFQT) scores placing them in
the categories I through IIIA, perform better

as the chart below shows:

GMAT ARM
AFQT CATEGORY

III8 IV

Air Defense - Stinger Missile

successful engagements
67% 52% 48%

Armor - Rate at which U.S. tank

crews destroyed opposing tanks 7 to 1 1.5 to 1

(NATO - Canadian Cup 1981)

Infantry - Rate at which riflemen

would kill opposing infantry
2 to 1 1 to 1 1 to 1

Armor - Armor crewmen passing skill

qualification training tests (SQT) 94% 922 79%

The chart shows significantly
higher levels of performance for the high

quality soldier. As a result, savings can
be achieved in training costs and

training time. More importantly, when
deployed in combat actions such as

Grenada, lives would be saved and
the chances of success would be greater.

Further, analysis of indiscipline
indicators shows that the quality

soldier is far less likely to be administered punishment
under the Commanders

Article 15, be court martialed, go
AWOL or desert, or to commit violent

crimes.

When all of these factors are
considered, high quality young people are

essential to high quality, combat ready Armed Forces.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF VETERAN PROGRAM
ADMINISTRATORS

National Association of Veterans Program Administrators

N Sortie Rowland, ',melded
c/o Co *mit Side Urivandy, Ctico

QUESTION:

Weans Maks
CY Ionia secoo-on:

MI6) 056.5011A
11Ir

I believe one of the meet important ramifications of the New
GI Bill is the development of the really remarkable
relation hip that is developing-between schools and the
military. Would you comment on this and perhaps share any
personal experiences you have had in this regard'?

ARESPONSE:

One of the most visible responses by the military to the
New GI Bills is their presence at National and Regional
Meetings. During 1986, the National Guard provided speakers
for the Annual Conferenceof the National Association of
Veterans Program Administrators which was held in Denver,
Colorado. The Guard had the opportunity to address about 200
veterans coordinators from across the country. They
presented an excellent audio-visual experience for the group
and emphasized their desire to make the NEW GI BILL a
cooperative effort.

In additi'n to the presentation on the NEW GI BILL,
a condensed seminar on leadership, called the Warrior I
Project, was also demonstrated for the group.

The Army and National Guard were also participants of
the regional meeting of the Alabama Veterans Affairs
Association, both in 1986 and 1987. Addressing a different
sector of education, a presentation was also made at the Loa
Angeles meeting of the American Association of Junior and
Community Colleges (AACJC) in December. This meeting was
attended by college administrators.

'The response to the Army and the Guardsmen by the
educational community has been enthusiastic, and there are
many interesting ideas that have been brought to light. One
such idea is that perhaps community colleges, technical
schools and universities could more fully participate in the
actual training of individuals for military service, thus
addressing some of the duplication of systems between the
military and civilian schools. An excellent starting point
would he to review the American Council on Education (ACE)
guide to evaluation of military credit, perhaps allowing
colleges to provide more of this specific training for the
military.

The new spirit of cooperation is perhaps a result of the
realization that military service is truely not a divorce
from the civilian sector. The military reserves have
required that nfficera attain a certain lever of education to
retain their commissions or to be considered for prom,tion.
This education is a civilian function. If the goals of the
military are to be met, cooreration.and communication with
educational irltitutions is mandatory. It should be pointed
out that prior to the enactment of Chapter 106, there was
little reason for the educational community to work,with
local reserve units.

A negative factor (the difficulty with the Notico of
.

Basic Eligibility) has actually precipitated a greater sense
of "being a part in the same objectives" between veterans
coordinators and reserve units. Both the reserve units and
educational institutions have an interest in the
reservist-student, and often must team up to solve the
eligibility problem-for the Chapter 106 student. A simple
but visible step in this process-ores the sharing of key

270



266

telephone numbers in the Pentagon with Veterans Coordinators.
(Attachment A). When local efforts fail or cannot be
initiated, the school official has access to a person who
will resolve the problem. I have had several occasions to
use the "pentagon connection" to identify a responsible
person at the local level to address a specific problem - and
can happily say that I have met great success.

The new GI Bills are viewed positively by educational
institutions. For many of our students who require
additional financial support, it is an honorable alternative
for funding. It is fortunate that many of the Veterans
Coordinators from the VCIP era (Vietnam-era Veterans program
- Veterans Cost of Instruction Payments Program) have been
retained by the educational institutions. It is also very
fortunate that the new VETERANS EDUCATION OPPORTCNITY PROGRAM
(VEOP) will go into effect on July 1, 1987. When this
program becomes properly Funded, It will encourage colleges
and universities tc retain their qualified professional staff
in veterans services. Their presence on the campuses will
help to forward the development of the military - civilian
linkage.

I am always pleased to have the opportunity to
support the Veterans Affairs Committee. Please contact me if
there is any way in which I can assist you.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO NATIONAL GUARD ASSOCIATION

QUESTICN: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high-quality young people?

GENERAL WEBER: High - quality personnel are a key element in achieving our
national defense goals. The modern battlefield we must prepare for willbe unlike any experienced in our nation's military history. Greaterlevels of intelligence, skills and leadership capabilities will be
required to survive and win. Preparation time for going into battle will
not be equivalent to previous situations. Therefore, we musk mrintain
readiness and assure sustainability within our current force. .

Tin complexity and quantities of'modern equipment in the Arced Force,
to include the National Guard and Reserves, require the ,ability to
understand and work with multiple Modern technologies. Even basic equip-
ment has become more complex. Training levels for these technologies andhe war fighting strategies that are in place require high - qualitypersonnel.

The National Guard must maintain a high state of readiness with a
part-time force. The ability to le'rn skills quickly and retain them
over time with periodic refreoher training is fundamental to the success
of the Guard and Reserves. Total Force policies expect the Guard'and
Reserves to be interactive with and equivalent to the active components
in educational levels and capabilities. Qtly high-quality personnel can
assure our readiness capability, the success of the Total Force policy,
and, in turn, the most-effective lational defense.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO NAVAL RESERVE ASSOCIATION

Naval Reserve Association reply to question posed by Cong. Wayne Dowdy,

Chairman Veterans Affairs Subcommittee on Education. Training and Employment.

How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit high quality young
people?

The Naval Reserve Association has long recognized the importance of high
quality enlistments into the Naval Reserve Force.

The very nature of the Naval Reserve Force structure which not only provides
hardware equipped squadrons and ships but also furnishes individuals to augment
active force ships and squadrons, has always been hi-tech in nature.

Today the complexity and sophistication of our modern weapons systems place

an ever increasing demand for higher quality reservists.

The 'Naval Reserve essentially operates on a three year qualification

training cycle. This requirement is driven both by the limited availability of
the individual reservist and by the complex nature of our modern systems. Often

fleet training courses must be compressed to accommodate the reservists.
Additionally, the reservist must be able to assimilate and retain information
gained in one month for 30 days until the next training session. Experience has

demonstrated that only the high quality individual can successfully progress

through this reserve training cycle and attain the required readiness

qualifications.

The future will be even more demanding as newer equipment is assigned to the

Naval Reserve.

It should also be pointed out that most of the Naval Reserve growth which

occurs in the next three years is in the health care field i.e. Corpsman, lab

techs, etc. Obviously then our requirement for high intelligence is also on the

increase.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO NAVY LEAGUE OF THE UNITED STATES

NAVY LEAGUE OF THE UNITED STATES
ocv.oco toot,

2300 WILSON 001.KEVA140
ARLINGTON VAGINA WO.

TELCP.ONE
.AREA COOS :01. 426.12:a

How important is it to our Armed Farces to recruit highquality young people?

On behalf of the 57,000 members of the Navy League, I an
pleased to provide this response for the record.

The Navy League, in discussions with the Navy, Marine Corps
and Coast Guard, realizes and reaffirms their position that
nothing is more important to the military than its people,
especially high quality Neople., There exist undeniable links
between the quality of an individual entering the military and
the trainability and retainability of that person. Navy, Marine
Corps and Coast Guard figures over the last two years indicate
that high quality young people are more likely to complete their
enlistments, thereby qualifying for the new GI Bill. They are
interested in bettering themselves and are erre trainable, not
only in their ability to complete basic tre4n..ag, but ulxc inmeeting adyanced training. In addition, quality recruits, being
more mature, prove to have feu3r dfsciplinery problems which
cause administrative burden, interrupt. training ad lower
productivity.

Navy figures confirm that the higher a person scores on the
Armed Forces Qualification Test (AFQT), the more satisfactorily
he will complete recruit and specialty school training. For
fiscal year 1986, only 88.5% of the recruits entering the Navy
were in the upper mental groups. This will likely result in
higher attrition ra...es in boot camp and a reduction in the number
of suitable candidates for further schooling. This trend could
have an adverse effect in the future, since th% naval services'
high-tech weapon systems require highly trained intelligent young
men and women to maintain and operate them.

Despite the forecasted decline in the available pool of
applicants the Navy, Marino Corps and Coast Ou&rd, along with the
other services, will be bettor able to attract high quality young
people with the availability of the new GI Bill plus continued
emphasis on providing recruiting incentives.
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NATIONAL CAPITAL. OFFICE

NON COMMISSIONEO
OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

US Noe* %Alarm Street Alecandrie. Virgtola 22314 an) S04311

Questions How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?

Answers It is very important. Eigh quality young Frople
represent the best financial investment of personnel dollars for
several reasons. Foremost, a high quality recruit is more likely
than a non high school graduate to complete his or her
enlistment. This reduces attrition costs by as such as 30
percent. High quality recruits are statistically less likely to
become discipline problems thus further reducing administrative
support costs. High quality recruits are more receptive to
technical training and retain more of what they learn requiring
less retraining (again a savings in outlays) and are
statistically more proficient in their occupational specialties.
In summary, high quality recruits ara cheaper and more proficient
members of the Armed Forces than their lower mental category
counterparts.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF
DEFENSE FOR RESERVE AFFAIRS

RESSRVC A/FAIRS

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT
SECRETARY OF DEeENSE

WASHINGTON. 17 C. 50301

March 23, 1987

MAR '2 5 1987

Question: In your testimony, you state that there was an increase of
8,321 Warear enlistments during the

first fifteen months immediately
following enactment of the New GI Bill.

You also pointed out that 34,500 moreselected reserve recruits were high
school graduates than in fiscal year 1984.Can you quantify these increases for me in terms cLcost savings associatedwith reduced training costs,

reduced attrition, and lowered indiscipline?
Answer: It is too soon to determine the

relationship between reducedattrarcncand thus reduced training
costs) and recruit quality due to the NewCI Bill.

Military personnel quality has traditionally
been defined in terms ofeducational attainment and aptitude test scares. The possession of a highschool diploma, is currently the

accepted best single predictor of successfuladjustment to the military.
Per example, the high school diploma graduate hashad an almost 80-percent chance of

completing his/her initial term of servicecompered with a 60-percent probability
for themes-graduate. The quality ofour root recent accessimus reached

a historic high. brecceeel oceeensatien andquality of life programs; increased
recruiting resources, a more positiveperception of the Nation's youth

toward the military, and outstanding supportLoosen administration that has provided a positive enrcement for militaryservice all contributed to this development.
Attrition continues to be a costly drain on the effectiveness and

readiness of reserve component
units, representing both a serious Ices oftrained manpower and a significant

expense to train replacememts. Thefollowing Table depicts the
average coot estimates for recruiting and trainingeach accession for the reserve exponents.

Reserve Oomccronts
Average Replacasent Coats Per Person

Basic Technical
Recruiting Training Training Total

Army Components* $ 2,100 $ 4,879 $ 9,521 $ 16,500Navy '3,193 3,126 2,401 8,720Air Cagponents** 1,673 4,852 13,660 20,185Marine Corps 4,000 4,100 4,900 13,000

*Includes Arri National Guard and Army Reserve
** Includes Air Force Reserve and Air National Guerd

Caution oust be used in estimating the effect of a single recruiting
incentive in fulfilling all the

accession requirements of the Pervices.
Bduoatienal benefits provide a major incentive in attracting high- qualityrecruits, complementing other

recruiting resources such as targeted enlistmentand reenlistment boeusee, enlistment
options and advertising funds.

Celestials Nero we were in the field last week,
enthusiasm for the New CIBill was very

exempt those associated with the Guard and Reserves.
Several of the recruits we talked with

indicated ehey 3oined the Selected
Reserve because of the New CI Bill. Do you or ce.:ars on your staff go out oldpersonally meet with recruits in order to get a feel for the impact of this
and other benefit program on these individuals?

Answer: All the Services report that the New GI Bill is very popularwith MiThesbars. I am also aware of the popularity of the
Now CI Billprogram among reservists from trip reportsmade by Mr. Montgomery ehidh have

been shared with my staff.

Question: We have had reports that, at the unit level, there appears to be
soa753KZUSion regarding eligibility requirements for Chapter 106. Neat
action is being taken by your office to ensure that these misunderstandings
are cleared sp?

Answer: We agree that there haw been administrative problems
associated

with the New GI Bill program for members of the Selected Reserve. As with
many new programs, start -up problems arose. Last doverber, cur office issued
clarifying guidelines and developed a cceprehensivechecklist for the Services
to use in determining officer and enlisted eligibility. (We produced a
controlled version of the Notice of Basic Eligibility (1703E) form to ensure
program integrity.) Additionally, the Department of Defense leas developed new
data elements and associated reporting systems in order to bettor manege the
program. We have issued various merorande to the ServiCeSemphasizing quality
control seizures and we meet regularly with

ServickreRresentatsess, the
Veterans Administration, and the Defense Manpower Cate Center to discuss
problems associated with continued program integrityand efficiency.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF DEFENSE,
RESERVE FORCES POLICY BOARD

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF DEFENSE
RESERVE FORCES POLICY SOAR°

WASHINGTON. 0 C. 10701.7700

Question: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?

Answer: The Reserve components are essential elements of the
Total Force upon which our country relies for national
security. The challenge of achieving and maintaining
required readiness of National Guard and Reserve units
requires qualified men and women - men and women who
can be trained and are physically fit to fight and
win. The Montgomery GI Bill is an important incotil.e
in attaining qualified young men and women to serve in
the Reserve Components. On Mirch 11, 1987, the last
quarterly meeting, the Reserve Forces Policy
Board passed the following resolution:

Our national security policy to maintain peace
through deterrence and to protect U.S. interests
anywhere in the world requires a strong, fully-manned
armed forces consisting of active and Reserve Com-
ponent personnel. The Montgomery GI Bill of 1984 is
an excellent recruiting aid which must become a
permanent incentive. It is a "Nation Strengthening"
educational incentive which provides ambitious,
patriotic young men and women financial support
necessary for increasing college expens)s.

This bill will help the Armed Forces through the
vicissitudes of the difficult recruiting years, which
are predicted in the early 1990's accoroing to
current demographic analyses.

This Board, as the "principal adviser to the
Secretary of Defense on matters relating to the
Reserve Components" (10 USC 175(c)), strongly urges
the Congress to support this bill and make it
permanent law."
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA

BOB HORAN, ASSOCIATE LEGISLATIVE DIRECTOR

PARALYZED VETERANS OF AMERICA

March 5, 1987

Honorable Wayne Dowdy
U.S. House of Representatives
Committee on Veterans' Affairs
335 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear chairman Dowdy:

Thank you inr your letter dated February 20, 1987. I have reviewed your
questions and are my answers.

Question 1) Did you personally use earlier GI Bills or did you have friends
or family members who did? Did this opportunity to further their education
help them catch up with their peers who did not serve in the military?
Answer 1) Yes, I personally used the GI Bill (Chapter 34) and Vocational
Rehabilitation (Chapter 31) and also had quite a few of my friends that did.
Additionally alp* of my friends and others, who did not serve in the military,
furthered their education while I served in the United States Army in Vietnam.
Upon my arrival back into the civilian workforce, it 4as clearly evident that
prospective employers wanted individuals with either work relate4 experience
or the appropriate education within their respective area. I learned very
quickly that my friends had over a two year headstart on me, so I decided to
utilize my educational opportunity available through the VA to catch up, and
even pass in some cases, my non-veteran counterparts. This Aucation, a
college degree, led to my becoming employed by the State in a very good job,
suited to me and my education.

Question 2) If our Armed Forces did not have an educational assistance
benefit to offer service candidates, what would be the effect on the ability
of the military to recruit high quality young people?
Answer 2) I personally think, as it has been brought out in hearings and
testimony, that the majority (90%) of the young recruits joining are high
school graduates, up from approximately 50 percent in 1980, and a good
majority of those joining state that the educational assistance benefits is
the reason for them signing up. If it had not been for the educational
benefits, I would have not joined the Army.

Sincerely yours,

Bob Moran

Associate Legislative Director

BH/ef
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO RESERVE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION OF THE
UNITED STATES

Reserve Officers Association
of the United States

111E PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION REPRESENTING ALL MII MARY OFFICERS
ARM', * NAV% * AIR }ORLI, * MARINE CORPS * COAST GUARD * PLBLIC HEALTH SERVICE * NOAA

Question: How important is it to our Armed Forces to recruit
high quality young people?

Gen. Hultman: The Reserve Officers Association believes that it
is most desirable to have high quality young people manning our
Armed Forces. The reaso ; behind this belief are many.

In the first place, it costs approximately $10,000 to recruit
a service member. Statistics show that the upper mental category
recruit is much more likely to complete his term of service than
is a lower mental category recruit. The Army estimates that
without the GI Bill there would be an annual reduction of
approximately 6,000 highschool graduates in the upper mental
categories. This in turn would increase attrition by 1,400
losses, at a cost in excess of $25 million when you factor in the
retraining cost of replacements for those who do not complete
their term of service.

In addition, high quality recruits are easier to train and
are quicker to learn how to use the equipment associated with
their military specialty. This in term reduces wear and tear and
brings down training and unit operational costs.

Another decided benefit in having high quality recruits is
the reduction in disciplinary problems. With the increased
percentage of Mental Category I to ILIA personnel in the force
structure, AWOL, desertion and other indiscipline rates have
taken a dramatic nose dive.

All of these factors mentioned support the conclusion that we
are able to have a stronger national defense if the services are
manned by high quality soldiers, sailors and airmen.

The New GI Bill helps to recruit the quality personnel that
the services need. The Reserve Officers Association supports HR
1085, which, when enacted, will make permanent the New GI Bill.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO THE AMERICAN LEGION

for Cod IM Country

* WASHINGTON OFFICE * 'IC' STREET. NW. * WASHINGTON. D C.20006 *
(202) 861-2700 *

1) Did you personally use earlier GI Bills or did you have
friends or family members who did? Did this opportunity to
further their education help them catch up with their p4.ers whodid not serve in the military?

I have numerous friends and colleagues who received both
undergraduate and graduate degrees under the Vietnam Era GIBill. There is no question that this provided a decided
opportunity for them to maintain

educational parity with theirnon-veteran peers.

2) If our Armed Forces did not have an educational
assistance benefit to offer service

candidates, what would be theeffect on the ability of the military to recruit high qualityyoung people?

It is my opinion that the effect would be disastrous.
Moreover, the "baby bust", coupled with the increasingly hightechnical skills needed by all services, the effect would be evenmare severe in the years ahead.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO U.S. COAST GUARD

COINIMACAM WW1.00,1.0C20591-0:01
UMWSUttsGAMGAMI SMVISrMd

Feat G-CC
(202) 366-4280

U.S. COAST GUARD RESPONSES
TO QUESTIONS REGARDING H.R. 1085

FROM THE
SUBCOMMITT3E ON EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND EMPLOYMENT

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON VETERANS' AFFAIRS

1. Does an educational incentive attract a different kind of
recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is it important to your
service tc have both available?

Yes. Recruits tend to fall into two categories: the college
oriented and the employment oriented. Those in the former
category are more attracted by educational incentives and the
latter by bonuses. It is important to have both because they
tend to appeal to different groups of people and, in,the case of
the Coast Guard, each has a specific purpose. The educational
incentives provided by the New G.I. Bill are design^d to attract
individuals of high quality into tie service. We t the
Selective Reenlistment Bonus as a targetted incentive designed to
manage and shape those individuals once they are in the work
force.

2. How are candidate, for service informed of the benefits
available to them under the Mew G.I. Bill?

Coast Guard recruiters are knowledgeable about New G.I. Bill
benefits. They make potential recruits aware of the education
benefits available to them as part of the overall compensation
package for which they are eligible. Individuals are given a
briefing on the New G.I. Bill during the first week of Recruit
Training or Officer Candidate School, and again during the second
week of training, when they are required to sign their allotment
.orms for the program.

3. There are those who assert that educational assistance
benefits are an incentive to leave the service. What has been
your experience with this? e3 you agree with this assertion?

The Coast Guard's only experience in this area hat, been with
active duty personnel eligible for Vietnam-Era G.I. Bill. During
the early 1980's individuals in this category indicated that they
would have to leave the service to make maximum use of their
education benefits, which expire in December 1989. However, the
passage of the Now G.I. Bill, with its option to allow Vietnam-
Era G.I. Bill eligibles to convert their benefits to the new bill
on 1 January 1990, negated that argurent.

The primary purpose of G.I. Bill educational assistance benefits
is to help milita:y personnel readjust to civilian life after
their separation from military service. However, that should not
be construed to mean that the availability of such benefits
serves as an incentive to leave the service.

It is too soon to determine if the New G.I. Bill benefits will be
an incentive for individuals to leave the service. Participants
will not have the opportunity to use such benefits until July
1987 at the earliest. However, it in possible that New G.I. Bill
benefits could be an incentive to leave the service for
individuals who made contributions to the program and then later
decided that they did not wish to participate. Existing
regulations prohibit granting a refund of New G.I. Bill
contributions for any reaacn. Therefore, participants may leave
the service because the benefits are available to them and are
more lucrative out of service than in service This is pure
conjecture, however. We may wish to revisit this issue after a
track record on the use of New G.I. Bill benefits has been
established.

Enclosure
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4. How important is it to all of you to attract high quality
young people to military service? What would be the effect, if
in future years, you were without an educational assistance
benefit and unable to bring into service your current high
quality recruits?

Improving employment opportunities and a declining youth
population make current recruiting efforts for all of the
military services an exceedingly challenging task. Therefore,the New G.I. Bill is becoming even more vital as a recruiting
tool.

If, in future years, the services were to be without an
educational assistance benefit and unable to bring high quality
recruits into the service, the armed services would either be
forced to return to a draft or would be required to recruit
individuals of a lesser a lity who would be unable to cope withthe increased complexitit of national defense. The disastrousramifications of such a situation are obvious. Recruiting high
quality individuals into the military service is not only
important but imperative to our country's defense.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO U.S. MARINE CORPS

Question: Does an educational assistance incentive attract
a different kind of recruit from that attracted by bonuses? Is

it important to your service to have both available?
General Cheatham: Out experience is similar to that described

by General Elton. Generally, we find that the GI Bill appeals to

the higher quality applicant we are seeking. The enlistment

bonus program is a part of our force management effort. It

provides an incentive that spreads the talents of new accessions
throughout the force to meet our needs. We use the bonus program
to attract the high quality accessions to the jobs we need them
in, in the months that support our training capability, and for
the terms of enlistment that most effectively invest our training

dollars.
In other words, the GI Bill helps attract a high quality

applicant to the Service while the bonus program focuses them

into areas we need. As such, these two programs complement

rather than compete with each other. Using them together, we

were able to achieve an average term of enlistment of 4.4 years

during FY-86 while improving all our quality indicators. It is

very important for us to continue to have both programs avail-
able - to keep all of the tools in our tool kit.

Question: How are candidates for service informed of the
benefits available to them under the New GI Bill?

General Cheatham: The term "GI Bill" has strong name recog-

nition in our country, and is well regarded by the general popula-

tion. We try to use this in our marketing by creating an awareness
that the New GI Bill is available. We do this as part of our

direct nail campaign in letters sent to high school and junior

college students. We have developed posters, and handouts for
our recruiters to take to the school guidance departments adver-

tising the GI Bill. When the recruiter delivers these, we have
provided him with a fact sheet on the program that helps him
brief the guidance personnel on the details that they need to

effectively advise the student. We have incorporated information

on the GI Bill in our recruiters product knowledge book. This

book is used in the applicant's home, generally with his parents,
to answer a variety of questions about the Marine Corps including

education benefits. Finally, recruiting stations send letters to

both the applicant and parents after enlistment. These letters

welcome the famaly aboard, and highlight a number of issues; our

policy on drugs, personal behavior, and education. These letters

don't provide all the answers, but do cause the applicant and

parents to ask any questions of our recruiters.
All of this is followed by a presentation at recruit training

where we explain the provisions of the GI Bill to the recruits

and they make their choice. Several members of the Committee and

members of the staff have had the opportunity to see our presen-

tation at Parris Island.
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Question: There are those who assert that educational assis-
tance benefits are an incentive to leave service. What has been
your experience with this? to you agree vith this assertion?

General Cheatham: That's an easy assertion to make, but when
viewed, in a broader context I don't think it's a signficant
concern. Let me start by saying that I'm not talking about the
Reserve GI Bill - I believe there's a general concensus that the
Reserve GI Bill is a superb recruiting and retention program that
is working well.

When you discuss retention and the New GI Bill, I think you
need to consider two aspects; first, retention through the first
term and then, retention beyond the first term. The way the
program is structured, a Marine must successfully complete a
first enlistment to realize the benefit. The value of the benefit,
coupled with his own investment of $1,200.00 serves as a powerful
incentive for a Marine to keep at it and be successful. In this
respect, the New GI Bill helps us to keep these high quality
Marines in through their first enlistment.

When that first enlistment is done and a Marine is making a
decision to reenlist or get out, the availability of the GI Bill
will obviously be a factor. How important a factor is yet to be
determined because the groups participating have:stt gotten to
that decision point. The negative incentive is partially offset
by the option of in-service use and the fact that the benefit is
not lost if not used at that time. Also, adequate funding of our
Selective Reenlistment Bonus program, alloys us to further reduce
any negative incentive by attracting and retaining Marines with
particular skills. This allows us to shape the force by better
matching our people to the requirements.

I think the point that's often overlooked in this discus-
sion is that we need to have at least 50% of our first term
enlisted force get out after their initial enlistment to

preserve the vigor of the force and to avoid stagnation of the
promotion system. Reccinizing this fact and realizing that
many of our MOS's do not have the technical skills that carry
over to a civilian job, we need to provide these young Americans
a readjustment benefit to catch them back up with their contem-
poraries.

Question: How important is it to all of you to attract high
quality young people to military service? What would be the
effect if, in future years, you were without an educational
assistance benefit and unable to bring into service your
current high quality recruits?

General Cheatham: People are the single most important ele-
ment of the Marine Corps - I can't over-emphasize that point.

Our experience through the era of the All Volunteer Force is that
as we increased quality, disciplinary problems and non-EAS attri-
tion went down, while training and retention improved. In other
words quality Marines produced a better, more combat-ready Marine
Corps. It is very important to me that we maintain the caliber
of our young Marines. If a reduction in the basic benefits
package resulted in a marked decrease in quality, we would see
an increase in the kind of problems that eventually degrade
readiness, and cost money.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO VETERANS' ADMINISTRATION

Office of the
Administrator
of Veterans Affairs

Veterans
Administration

Washington DC 20420

Q. 1. When we wrote the New GI Bill, we included as the first
purpose for Chapter 30 the following: "To provide a new educa-
tional assistance program to assist in the readjustment of mem-
bers of the Armed Forces to civilian life after their separa-
tion from military service..."

In your view, is the Congressional intent clear that the
New GI Bill is, first and foremost, a readjustment benefit?

A. 1. Although readjustment is among the stated purposes of the
New GI Bill, the VA traditionally has funded education programs
aimed at providing readjustment benefits to conscripted war-time
veterans. The New GI Bill's basic benefits, as well as the
kickers, are used by DOD as a recruitment tool. Recruitment
tools, including the previous peace-time education benefits
program, traditionally have been funded by DOD.

Q. 2. I can't stress strongly enough the importance of a
smooth, efficient implementation of the Chapter 30 and 106
programs. As I understand it, the proposed regulations have
not yet been published and the interagency agreement h.s not
been completed. When can we expect action to be completed en
these?

A.Z. Executive Order 12291 requires that before publishing no-
tices of proposed rulemaking or final ru)es, agencies must sub-
mit them to the Director of the Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) fo- review. The VA finished drafting regulations to im-
plement chapter 30 on May 19, 1986. They were immediately sent
to 0M8 for review.

OMB subjected these regulations to a lengthy review. Although
members of my staff and other employees of the VA worked with
OMB 'o secure the release of the regulations for publication,
the review process is not yet .omplete. We estimate that pro-
posed regulations will be put..shed within a few months. The
proposed regulations will not implement the portion of Public
Law 99-576 which added more types of training to chapter 30.
Regulations implementing that portion of PL 99-576 which ap-
plies to chapter 30 will appear at a later date.

The VA finished drafting regulations to implement chapter 106
on February 3, 1986, over thirteen months ago. Usually the
Department of Defense develops regulations to implement title
10, U. S. Code. Since chapter 106 is a part of that title, it
is necessary that we obtain the concurrence of the Department
of Defense and the Co.it Guard before publishing the proposed
regulations.

They have been Agreed to by the Department of Defense and
currently are being reviewed by the Coast Guard. Following
approval there, they must be reviewed by OMB.

We are well aware of the difficulties inherent In administering
an education program without implementing regulations. We will
strive to publish proposed regulations for t%is program as soon
as all the agencies involved hPve agreed on heir contents.

Let me just add that we do have published and distributed to
the field stations circulars and other directives that assist
in the administration of the New GI Bill programs.

As to the interagency agreement, the National Oceanic and Atmos-
pheric Administration (NOAA) in the Department of Commerce and
the Public Health Service (PHS) in the Department of Health and
Human Services have concurred in the agreement which the VA pre-

pared. However, the Department .1 Defense, the Department of
Transportation, and Treasury have requested changes which we
are now considering.
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CHAIRMAN DOWDY TO VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED
STATES

VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS OF THE UNITED STATES

OFFICE OF TIE DIRECTOR

Question !I - Did you personally use earlier CI Bills or did you have
friends or family amber. who did? Did this oppozrunity to further
their education help them catch up with their peers who did not serve in the
military?

Res onse SI - Yes, I and several members of my /sally have taken
advantage of past CI educational progress. With respkt to th" impact the CI
Bill has had on career advancement, I can best address ay owr aistory. Upon
,completing high school in 1966 I enlisted In the US Maw) wha I served for
four years. The majority of wy friends, however, went directly into college.
'Upon returning hose these individuals were already esharking on their
'respective where as I was only involved in the initial planning
stage. While they were already beginning their professional careers, I was
just barely initiating the educational process which would allow se to even
consider one of-my own.

Nonetheless.; I did enter into a course of study which I perinea through
the years. However, what was initially only a discrepancy in the level of
educational achievement between my friends and r at that tine was further
compounded by a steadily widening gulf in econoec'and social status. :Say
had, as it were, arrived where as rwas still struggling. to set umiervey.

Fortunately, tharets to the Vietman-Era CI Bill, I was provided with the
econosie mans to achieve my educational goals. Thls educational achievement
eventually lead to my also being able to emhark on a professional career. It
is very clear to se that without the Vietean -Era CI Bill, I would not be in
the position today to respond to a congressional query, of no sell
importance, in the capacity as Assistant Director of the Rational Legislative
Services of the Veterans of Foreign Wars. In this regard, I would also point
out that the entire VFW National Legislative professional staff attended
college under the Vietnan -Era CI Bill.

But as to wiuither I've actually caught up with my peers, it is very
hard to say.

Certainly in terms of professional and academic accomplishment,
I have at lust drawn abreast of quite a number cf them. But I also realize
that the five year jump that the' bad rl me in getting started in their
professions has alloyed them to gather additional expertise in there
respective occupations along with having achieved a significantly ;rester
degree of economic security. In other words, I believe bad I gone directly
into college end then straight to work, without first having served in the
arced forces, my career night now be further along and I would certainly have
sore money in the bank.

Of one thing I as certain, however, without the Vletnan -Era CI Bill, I
would not be where I an today.

question /1 - If our Armed Forces did not have educational assistance
benefit to offer service candidates, what would be the effect on the ability
of the elitary to recruit high quality young people?

Response /2 - As was stated in our written testimony, the VFW is
convinced that the Rev CI Bill is dollar for dollar the most cost effective
means of recruitsent now in existence. The information gathered on this
program leaves ao doubt that the Rev CI Bill is directly responsible for
drastic gains in elitary recruitsent and retention. This is allowing our
nation to maintain and improve its elitary strength levels for both active
duty and reserve forces without implementing a 'draft.'

In support of oar essesseent, the army hog indicated that the New CI
Bill is a stronger enlistunt incentive for highquaility, college orientated
youth than higher pay. The army has also said that 30% of the high quaility
male high school graduates rated education benefits as the single most
important reason for enlisting. Tnrtbermors, an evon higher percentage rated
tha Mew CI Bill as an important reason for enlisting, this is supported by
participation rates now In excess of 80%. Finally the army has indicated that
43% of it's high quaility recruits would

not have joined without the CI Bill
plus. Army College Fund.

In ausetion, it is OUT view that if the CI Dill
Educational Assistance Benefit was alienated, tha impact on armed forces
recruitment would be 'overly detrimental and that our all volunteer armed
forces would be put in jeopardy.
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